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MOTORCAR PARTS OF AMERICA, INC.
GLOSSARY
The following terms are frequently used in the w@ithis report and have the meanings indicatedvbel

“Used Core” — An alternator or starter which hasesed in the operation of a vehicle. Generdily,Used Core is an original equipment
(“OE") alternator or starter installed by the vdaimanufacturer and subsequently removed for reptent. Used Cores contain salvageable
parts which are an important raw material in theapsufacturing process. We obtain most Used Corgsdoiding credits to our customers for
Used Cores returned to us under our core exchamgegm. Our customers receive these Used Coresdamsumers who deliver a Used Core
to obtain credit from our customers upon the pusela a newly remanufactured alternator or stavtéren sufficient Used Cores cannot be
obtained from our customers, we will purchase USetks from core brokers, who are in the businessiging and selling Used Cores. The
Used Cores purchased from core brokers or retumad by our customers under the core exchangegmand which have been physically
received by us, are part of our raw material orkwiorprocess inventory included in long-term coreentory.

“Remanufactured Core” — The Used Core underlyingléernator or starter that has gone through thmreifacturing process and through
that process has become part of a newly remanuéatalternator or starter. The remanufacturing @edakes a Used Core, breaks it down
into its component parts, replaces those comporteatTannot be reused and reassembles the sabrageamponents of the Used Core and
additional new components into a remanufacturestradtor or starter. Remanufactured Cores are irdlird our on-hand finished goods
inventory and in the remanufactured finished goatipct held for sale at customer locations. Usek€ceturned by consumers to our
customers but not yet returned to us continue tddmsified as Remanufactured Cores until we phjlgiceceive these Used Cores. All
Remanufactured Cores are included in our long-teora inventory or in our long-term core inventogpdsit.
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MOTORCAR PARTS OF AMERICA, INC.

Unless the context otherwise requires, all refeesnia this Annual Report on Form 10-K to “the Comypa “we,” “us,” and “our” refer to
Motorcar Parts of America, Inc. and its subsidiaridhis Form 1-K may contain forwardeoking statements within the meaning of the Pe'
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Such fmavlooking statements involve risks and uncertag;itOur actual results may differ
significantly from the results discussed in anyvard-looking statements. Discussions containindidooward-looking statements may be
found in the material set forth und“ltem 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis afaficial Condition and Results of Operations,” as
well as within this Form 10-K generally.

We file annual, quarterly and current reports, pretatements and other information with the Selasriatnd Exchange Commission (“SEC”).
Our SEC filings are available free of charge toghblic over the Internet at the SEC’s websitenatv.sec.gov Our SEC filings are also
available free of charge on our websit&w.motorcarparts.com¥You may also read and copy any document we fila thié SEC at its Public
Reference Room at 100 F. Street, NE, Washingtdd,2D549. Please call the SEC at (800) SEC-033fuftdrer information on the operation
of the Public Reference Room.

PART |
Item 1. Business

General

We remanufacture alternators and starters for itepand domestic cars and light trucks in addittoheavy duty, agricultural and industrial
applications and distribute them predominantly tigtwout the United States and Canada. Our busine$&évy duty, agricultural and indust
applications is in its early stages and does meent a significant portion of our business. [ of light duty alternators and starters are
sold to most of the largest auto parts retail chairthe United States and Canada, including AuteZ®ep Boys, and O’Reilly Automotive
(including CSK Automotive) and various traditiomedrehouses for the professional installers. Weskelauto parts retail chains in total,
currently account for approximately 35% of the NoAmerican after-market for remanufactured altesreaind starters.

We believe that demand for after-market remanufadtalternators and starters is in part drivenhigyrtumber of vehicle miles driven and the
age of vehicles. According to industry statistite, average age of vehicles on the road in Nortlerea is increasing, while miles driven in
North America decreased each month from Januarg #00ugh March 2009. We believe this is primatilg result of the slowdown in tl

U.S. economy during this period.

Historically, our business has focused on the daitrself (“DIY”) market, customers who buy remaactured alternators and starters at an
auto parts store and install the parts themselesbelieve that the do-it-for-me (“DIFM”) marketsa known as the professional installer
market, is an attractive opportunity for growth. Wadieve we are positioned to benefit from this keaiopportunity in two ways: (1) our auto
parts retail customers are expanding their effortarget the professional installer market segraedt(2) we sell our products under private
label and our Quality-Buil®, Talon®, Xtreme® and other brand names directly to suppliers thaismn professional installers. In addition,
we sell our products to original equipment manufeats for distribution to the professional instalbeth for warranty replacement and their
general after-market channels.

While we continually seek to diversify our custorbase, we currently derive, and have historicadlsiveed, a substantial portion of our sales
from a small number of large customers. Duringdig009, 2008 and 2007, sales to our five largestomners constituted approximately 92%,
94% and 96%, respectively, of our net sales. Tagati the risk associated with this concentratibsates, we have increasingly sought to €
into longer-term customer agreements with our mejstomers. These longer-term agreements typicadjyire us to commit a significant
amount of our working capital to build inventorydaincrease production. In addition, they typicafiglude marketing and other allowances
adversely impact near-term revenue and may regsite incur certain changeover expenses.

To offset the pricing pressure and costs associaithdour agreements with our largest customershawe moved almost all our U.S.
remanufacturing operations to lower cost faciliiire$lexico and Malaysia. During fiscal 2009, 200812007, approximately 98%, 91% and
64%, respectively, of our total production was proed by our subsidiaries in Mexico and Malaysia. &pect to maintain production of
remanufactured units that require specialized serand/or rapid turnaround in our U.S. facility fbe near term. In addition, we are nearing
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completion of the transition of our warehousing ahibping/receiving operations from our U.S. fagito our facility in Mexico.

During fiscal 2009, we acquired certain assetsutbotive Importing Manufacturing, Inc. (“AIM”) an8uncoast Automotive Products, Inc.
(“SCP"), specifically the operations which produgeslv and remanufactured alternators and starteisfworted and domestic passenger
vehicles, and for the industrial and heavy dutgrafharkets. These products are sold under Talon@mé®, and other brand names. We
believe these acquisitions expand our customer daggroduct line, including the addition of busisién heavy duty alternator and starter
applications, and expand our market share in Nantierica.

Company Products

Our total net sales is primarily derived from saléseplacement alternators and starters for ingubatind domestic cars and light trucks.
Alternators and starters are nelective replacement parts in all makes and manfelehicles because they are required for a velictperate
Currently, approximately 95% of our units are sioldresale under customer private labels. The lcalassold under our Quality-Built® ,
Talon®, Xtreme®, and other brand names.

Our alternators and starters are produced to mestaged original manufacturer specifications. Wmaanufacture alternators and starters for
virtually all imported and domestic vehicles saidlie United States and Canada. Remanufacturirgesr@ supply of parts at a lower cost to
the end user than newly manufactured parts and sreakadlable automotive parts which are no longérdmanufactured as new. Our
remanufactured parts are sold at competitively fgwiEes than most new replacement parts.

We recycle nearly all materials in keeping with fatus of positively impacting the environment. Neall parts, including metal from the
Used Cores, and corrugated packaging are recycled.

The technology and the specifications for the comemts used in our products, particularly alterrgtbave become more advanced in resp

to the installation in vehicles of an increasingmoer of electrical components such as navigatistesys, steering wheel-mounted electronic
controls, keyless entry devices, heated rear wirsdand seats, high-powered stereo systems and D&j@nsl. As a result of this increased
electrical demand, alternators require more advateehnology and higher grade components and pesales prices of replacement
alternators have increased accordingly. The inargaomplexity of cars and light trucks and the temof different makes and models of
these vehicles have resulted in a significant msean the number of different alternators andestaurequired to service imported and domestic
cars and light trucks. In addition to the over 8,88ck keeping units (“SKUs”) for heavy duty andaaiety of agricultural and industrial
applications, we carry over 4,500 SKUs which caygplications for most imported and domestic cadslayht trucks sold in the United States
and Canada.

Customers: Customer Concentration

Our products are marketed throughout the UniteteStand Canada. Currently, we serve three of tineldogest retail automotive chain stores
with an aggregate of approximately 7,900 retaileistas well as a diverse group of automotive waush distributors.

We are substantially dependent upon sales to ojarroastomers. During fiscal 2009, 2008 and 20@¥ssto our five largest customers
constituted approximately 92%, 94%, and 96%, resyedg, of our net sales, and sales to our largastomer AutoZone, constituted 49%, 5
and 64%, respectively, of our net sales. Any megninmeduction in the level of sales to any of thesistomers, deterioration of any customer’s
financial condition or the loss of a customer cdwde a materially adverse impact upon us.

Customer Arrangements; Impact on Working Capital

We have or are renegotiating long-term agreemeittsmany of our major customers. Under these agestswhich typically have initial
terms of at least four years, we are designatékeasxclusive or primary supplier for specifiedeggiries of remanufactured alternators and
starters. Because of the very competitive natuteefmarket for remanufactured starters and aftersand the limited number of customers
for these products, our customers




have sought and obtained price concessions, signifimarketing allowances and more favorable deligad payment terms in consideration
for our designation as a customer’s exclusive ongry supplier. These incentives differ from contrie contract and can include (i) the
issuance of a specified amount of credits agagtstivables in accordance with a schedule set fiottiie relevant contract, (ii) support for a
particular customer’s research or marketing effprts/zided on a scheduled basis, (iii) discountsitgréin connection with each individual
shipment of product and (iv) other marketing, reseastore expansion or product development sup@éethave also entered into agreements
to purchase certain customers’ Remanufactured i@eeamtory and to issue credits to pay for that iteey according to a schedule set forth in
the agreement. These contracts typically requiaewle meet ongoing performance, quality and fatfdht requirements. An agreement with
one customer grants the customer the right to teateithe agreement at any time for any reasonc@ntracts with major customers expire at
various dates through December 2012.

These longer-term agreements strengthen our cust@fagionships and business base. The increasadrdefor product that we have
experienced has caused a significant increaserimeentories, accounts payable and personnel.othestdemands that we purchase their
Remanufactured Core inventory have also been #isemt and an additional strain on our availablerking capital. The marketing and other
allowances we typically grant our customers in @mion with our new or expanded customer relatigpsshdversely impact the near-term
revenues, profitability and associated cash flaemfthese arrangements. However, we believe thestment we make in these new or
expanded customer relationships will improve owsralt liquidity and cash flow from operations ovine.

Competition

The after-market for remanufactured alternatorsstaders is highly competitive. Our most signifitaompetitors are a division of Remy
International, Inc. and BBB Industries. We also pete with several medium-sized remanufacturersadadye number of smaller regional and
specialty remanufacturers. Overseas manufactyrarscularly those located in China, are increasivegr operations and could become a
significant competitive force in the future.

We believe that the reputation for quality and ouostr service that a supplier enjoys are signifiactors in a customer’s purchase decision.
We believe that these factors favor our companychvprovides quality replacement automotive producpid and reliable delivery
capabilities as well as promotional support. Weedvel that our ability to provide efficient delivedystinguishes us from many of our
competitors and provides a competitive advantagee Rnd payment terms are very important competitctors.

For the most part, our products have not been eteror do we believe that our products are patémtélVe seek to protect our proprietary
processes and other information by relying on tsetzret laws and non-disclosure and confidentialiseements with certain of our employees
and other persons who have access to that infasmati

Company Operations

Production ProcessOur remanufacturing process begins with the readipsed alternators and starters, commonly knaw'iyaed Cores”,
from our customers or core brokers. The Used Caregvaluated for inventory control purposes aed gorted by part number. Each Used
Core is completely disassembled into its fundameatamponents. The components are cleaned in a ggdhat employs customized equipn
and cleaning materials in accordance with the regupecifications of the particular component.cdlinponents known to be subject to major
wear and those components determined not to balskuer repairable are replaced by new componblots-salvageable components of the
Used Core are sold as scrap.

After the cleaning process is complete, the sal@balgecomponents of the Used Core are inspecteteatet as prescribed by our ISO TS
16949 approved quality control program, which ipliemented throughout the production process. ISQEG®I9 is an internationally
recognized, world class, automotive quality systdimon passage of all tests, which are monitoreddsignated quality control personnel, all
the component parts are assembled in a work delkifiinished product. Inspection and testing aredacted at multiple stages of the
remanufacturing process, and each finished praduespected and tested on equipment designednidatie performance under operating
conditions. Finished products are either storeslinwarehouse facility or packaged for immediatersient. To
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maximize remanufacturing efficiency, we store comgrtt parts ready for assembly in our warehousinijtfas. Our management information
systems, including hardware and software, faoditat remanufacturing process from Used Coresishiéd products.

We continue to explore opportunities for improviffjciencies in our remanufacturing process. Inltdst few years, we have reorganized our
remanufacturing processes to combine product fasiith similar configurations into dedicated fagtevork cells. This remanufacturing
process, known as “lean manufacturing”, replacedtiore traditional assembly line approach we haglipusly utilized and eliminated a large
number of inventory moves and the need to trackntory movement through the remanufacturing procHsis new process impacted all of
our production in California and Malaysia and hasmused at our Mexico facility since the beginrohgperations. Because of this “lean
manufacturing” approach, we have significantly rastlithe time it takes to produce a finished praduct

Offshore Remanufacturing. The majority of our remanufacturing operations aack sorting functions are now conducted at oditifies in
Mexico and Malaysia. We also operate a shippingrandiving warehouse and testing facility in Singrap In fiscal 2009, 2008 and 2007, our
foreign operations produced approximately 98%, @b 64%, respectively, of our total unit productibnaddition, we are nearing complet
of the transition of our remaining warehousingpsitig and packing operations from our U.S. facil@your facility in Mexico.

Used Cores and Other Raw MaterialsThe majority of our Used Cores are obtained frost@mers using our core exchange program. The
core exchange program consists of the followinpste

. Our customers purchase from us a remanufacturedaubé sold to their consumt

. Our customers offer their consumers a credikthange their used unit (Used Core) at the timetmsumer purchases a
remanufactured uni

. We, in turn, offer our customers a credit to seadhe&se Used Cores. The credit reduces our accmasivable

Our customers are not obligated to send us alUerl Cores exchanged by their consumers. We hataribally purchased approximately
15% to 20% of our Used Cores in the open market ftore brokers who specialize in buying and sellisgd Cores. Although the open
market is not a primary source of Used Cores,atgsitical source for meeting our raw material deads. Not all Used Cores are reusable.
Remanufacturing consumes, on average, more thableee Core for each remanufactured unit producétioAgh the yield rates depend uj
both the product and customer specifications, eerall average yield rates are about 84%. We usatdl?0 Used Cores to provide sufficient
salvageable components to complete 100 remanuéatfupducts. During the fiscal year ended Marchi2BD9, we purchased approximately
20% of our Used Cores from core brokers.

The price of a finished product sold to our custmsig generally comprised of an amount for remactufang (“unit value”) and an amount
separately invoiced for the Remanufactured Corlidtedd in the product (“Remanufactured Core chargefie Remanufactured Core charge is
equal to the credit we offer to induce the custotoerse our core exchange program and send badksen Cores to us. In accordance with
net-of-core-value revenue recognition policy, & time a sale is recorded, we only recognize asé the unit value of the finished product.
We also record as long-term core inventory the cbRemanufactured Cores included in the finishedds that are shipped to customers and
that we expect to be sent back to us as part afdreeexchange program. During fiscal 2009, appnakely 95% of the Remanufactured Cores
we shipped as part of finished goods were replagesimilar Used Cores sent back to us under o egchange program, resulting in the
issuance of credits equal to the related RemanufadiCore value.

Other materials and components used in remanufagtare purchased in the open market. Our mainlgrgpovided approximately 25%,
20% and 22% of our raw materials purchased duhiediscal years ended March 31, 2009, 2008 and,Z@8pectively, and we rely on that
supplier’s ability to provide us with raw materiatsa timely and cost effective manner; howeveat Bupplier is not our sole supplier of raw
materials. No other supplier provided more than 1¥%ur raw material needs during these periods.
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The ability to obtain Used Cores, materials and ponents of the types and quantities we need isiéakto our ability to meet demand.

Return Rights. Under our customer agreements and general indpsigtice, our customers are allowed stock adjustsnghen their
inventory of certain product lines exceeds thecipdited sales to end-user consumers. Customersvaawes contractual rights for stock
adjustments which range from 3%-5% of total unitslsin some instances, we allow a higher levektdirns in connection with a significant
update order. In addition, we allow customers tarregoods to us that their end-user consumers t@uened to them. This general right of
return is allowed regardless of whether the retiitem is defective. We seek to limit the aggregststock adjustment and other customer
returns to less than 20% of unit sales. Stock aajeist returns do not occur at any specific timarduthe year.

As is standard in the industry, we only acceptrregdrom on-going customers. If a customer ceasagyusiness with us, we have no further
obligation to accept additional product returnsrirthat customer. Similarly, we accept product metand grant appropriate credits from new
customers from the time the new customer relatipnishestablished. This obligation to accept resurom new customers does not result in
decreased liquidity or increased expenses sincenlyeaccept one returned product for each unit solthe new customer. In each case, the
return must be received by us in the original bbthe unit sold.

We provide for the anticipated returns of inventoraccordance with Statement of Financial Accountandards (“SFAS”) No. 48evenue
Recognition When Right of Return Ex(“SFAS No. 48”) by reducing revenue and cost oésdbr the unit value of goods sold based on a
historical return analysis and information obtaiffiexin customers about current stock levels anctigatied stock adjustment returns.

Sales, Marketing and Distribution. We offer one of the widest varieties of alternatamg starters available to the market, and we nbaurke
distribute our products throughout the United S$tatled Canada. Our products for the automotivel itain market are primarily sold under
our customers’ private labels. Since fiscal 2004 have expanded our sales efforts beyond autommtiaé chains to include warehouse
distribution centers serving professional install@ur products are sold under private label amdwoun Quality-Built®, Talon®, Xtreme®,
and other brand names. Products are shipped frorfadilities in Torrance, California, and Tijuariexico, and from our fee warehouse
facilities in Edison, New Jersey and Springfielde@on.

We publish, for print and electronic distributi@ang¢atalog with part numbers and applications foradternators and starters along with a
detailed technical glossary and informational dasab We believe that we maintain one of the masinsive catalog and product identification
systems available to the market.

Employees.As of March 31, 2009, we had 256 employees in thi#dd States, as compared to 311 at March 31, Z0ftantially all of who
were located in Torrance, California. Of our U.&sé&d employees, 83 are administrative personnghiwh 24 are sales personnel. In addition,
at March 31, 2009, we employed 325 persons in $ioigaand Malaysia, as compared to 336 persons eth\B., 2008, and 1,154 persons at
our remanufacturing facility located in Tijuana, ¥, as compared to 1,100 persons at March 318.28Qinion represents all hourly
employees at our Mexico facility. All other empl@ge including our employees in Torrance, Califorai@ non-union. We consider our
relations with our employees to be satisfactory.

Seasonality of Business

Due to their nature and design, as well as thediofitechnology, alternators and starters traditily have failed when operating in extreme
conditions. During the summer months, when the &atpre typically increases over a sustained periditne, alternators were more likely to
fail. Similarly, during winter months, starters vwemnore likely to fail. This seasonality impact ween diminished by the improvement in the
quality of alternators and starters and does noently have a material impact on our sales.

Governmental Regulation

Our operations are subject to federal, state aral laws and regulations governing, among othegthi emissions to air, discharge to waters,
and the generation, handling, storage, transportatieatment and disposal of waste and
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other materials. We believe that our businessesratipns and facilities have been and are beingadge in compliance in all material respects
with applicable environmental and health and sdfetys and regulations, many of which provide fdostantial fines and criminal sanctions
violations. Potentially significant expenditureswever, could be required in order to comply witlolging environmental and health and
safety laws, regulations or requirements that megdopted or imposed in the future.

Evaluation of Strategic Options

We are continuing to evaluate strategic optionsweamight pursue to enhance shareholder values& beuld include an acquisition of anot

company or a sale of our company to a third parere is no assurance, however, that we will @nterany transaction as a result of our
efforts in this regard.




Item 1A Risk Factors

While we believe the risk factors described belosvedl the material risks currently facing our bosis, additional risks we are not presently
aware of or that we currently believe are immatkeneay also impair our business operations. Our ficial condition or results of operations
could be materially and adversely impacted by thieses, and the trading price of our common stoolld be adversely impacted by any of
these risks. In assessing these risks, you shdsddrefer to the other information included in acorporated by reference into this Form 10-K,
including our consolidated financial statements aeldted notes thereto appearing elsewhere or ipocated by reference in this

Form 1(-K .

We rely on a few major customers for a significamtajority of our business, and the loss of any ok#fe customers, significant changes in
the prices, marketing allowances or other importaierms provided to any of our major customers owadse developments with respect to
the financial condition of any of our major custormng would reduce our net income and operating result

Our sales are concentrated among a few major cestomuring fiscal 2009, sales to our five largasttomers constituted 92% of our net
sales, and sales to our largest customer constifl@® of our net sales. Because our sales are mvated, and the market in which we operate
is very competitive, we are under ongoing presfam our customers to offer lower prices, extendagment terms, increased marketing
allowances and other terms more favorable to thesemmers. These customer demands have put codiiimassure on our operating margins
and profitability, resulted in periodic contrachegotiation to provide more favorable prices amohgeto these customers and significantly
increased our working capital needs. In additibis tustomer concentration leaves us vulnerabdamyoadverse change in the financial
condition of any of our major customers. The lossignificant decline of sales to any of our majastomers would reduce our net income and
adversely affect our operating results.

The costs associated with expansion of our offshoeenanufacturing and logistic activities has put dmward pressure on our near-term
operating results. These activities also exposeaigicreased political and economic risks and plazgreater burden on management to
achieve quality standards.

To respond to customer and competitive pressurde wiaintaining or improving gross margins overdinve have moved an increasing
portion of our remanufacturing operations to lowest countries outside the United States. Whiler¢h@anufacturing costs in Mexico are
lower than those we have incurred in our Torra@adifornia facility, we experienced various but teasing inefficiencies associated with our
Mexican operations that adversely impacted ouratpey results during the fiscal years ended Marth2B09, 2008 and 2007. The expansion
of our overseas operations, especially our opersiio Tijuana, Mexico, also increases our exposuplitical, criminal or economic
instability in the host countries and to currenicictfuations.

The complexity associated with the accounting farr@mperating results may continue to result in fltgations in our reported operating
results.

Because we receive most Used Cores, a criticalmafaaturing component, through the core exchanggram with our customers and we
offer marketing allowances and other incentives itn@act revenue recognition, the accounting faraperations is more complex than that
many businesses the same size or larger. We psdyioited and have now remediated our accounte@tnent in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles that resulted itatesients to our financial statements. Steps takeanrrect the previously issued financial
statements included a review of authoritative antiag literature and consultation with accountixperts at the SEC and with external
accountants. Upon completion of this review, weretted our treatment related to accounting for aorentory and revenue recognition.

Interruptions or delays in obtaining component partould impair our business and adversely affect operating results

In our remanufacturing processes, we obtain UsedsCprimarily through the core exchange prograth wir customers, and component
from third-party manufacturers. Historically, thevél of Used Core returns from customers togetlitgr purchases from core brokers have
provided us with an adequate supply of this key
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component. If there was a significant disruptiothia supply of Used Cores, whether as a resuftaeased Used Core acquisitions by existing
or new competitors or otherwise, our operatingvit@s would be materially and adversely impactedaddition, a number of the other
components used in the remanufacturing procesavaitable from a very limited number of supplidrsfiscal 2009, we purchased 25% of our
raw materials from a single supplier. We are, essalt, vulnerable to any disruption in componemtmy, and any meaningful disruption in t
supply would materially and adversely impact ouveraping results.

Increases in the market prices of key component naaterials could negatively impact our profitabijit

In light of the long-term, continuous pressure oigipg which we have experienced from our majortaoeers, we may not be able to recoup
the higher prices which raw materials, particulalyminum and copper, may command in the marketepl/e believe the impact of higher
raw material prices, which is outside our conti®initigated to some extent because we recovebstautial portion of our raw materials from
Used Cores returned to us by our customers thrtheghore exchange program. However, we are unaltletermine what adverse impact, if
any, sustained raw material price increases mag bawur profitability.

Substantial and potentially increasing competitimould reduce our market share and significantly harour financial performance

While we believe we are well-positioned in the neifor remanufactured alternators and starters nfarket is very competitive. In addition,
other overseas manufacturers, particularly thosatéml in China, are increasing their operationscandd become a significant competitive
force in the future. We may not be successful camgegainst other companies, some of which agelathan us and have greater financial
and other resources at their disposal. Increasegbettion could put additional pressure on us tluce prices or take other actions which may
have an adverse effect on our operating results.

Our financial results are affected by alternator drstarter failure rates that are outside our contro

Our operating results are affected by alternatdrstarter failure rates. These failure rates agaited by a number of factors outside our
control, including alternator and starter desidrag have resulted in greater reliability and consigwriving fewer miles as a result of both F
gasoline prices and the slowdown in the U.S. ecgndureduction in the failure rates of alternatorsstarters would adversely affect our sales
and profitability.

Our operating results may continue to fluctuate sifjcantly.

We have experienced significant variations in aurwal and quarterly results of operations. Thasetdhtions have resulted from many fact
including shifting customer demands, shifts in dleenand and pricing for our products and generat@mic conditions, including changes in
prevailing interest rates. Our gross profit peragetfluctuates due to numerous factors, some aftwédnie outside our control. These factors
include the timing and level of marketing allowasggovided to our customers, differences betweeretel of projected sales to a particular
customer and the actual sales during the relewanitigh pricing strategies, the mix of products siaing a reporting period, fluctuations in the
level of Used Core returns during the period, asdegal market and competitive conditions.

Our bank may not waive future defaults under ourettit agreement.

Over the past several years, we have violated @auwpf the financial and other covenants containemur bank credit agreement. To this
point, the bank has been willing to waive theseetant defaults and to do so without imposing aggificant cost or penalty on us. If we falil
to meet the financial covenants or the other okibga set forth in our bank credit agreement inftiiare, there is no assurance that the bank
will waive any such defaults.
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Our level of indebtedness and the terms of our ibtktiness could adversely affect our business aqdidlity position.

Our indebtedness may increase substantially froma tb time for various reasons, including fluctaasi in operating results, marketing
allowances provided to customers, capital expersgitand possible acquisitions. Our indebtednedsl coaterially affect our business because
(i) a portion of our cash flow must be used to gerdebt rather than finance our operations, {(inay eventually impair our ability to obtain
financing in the future, and (iii) it may reducerdiexibility to respond to changes in business andnomic conditions or take advantage of
business opportunities that may arise.

Our largest shareholder has the ability to influeaall matters requiring the approval of our Board Birectors and our shareholders.

As of June 8, 2009, Mel Marks, our founder and menab our Board of Directors, beneficially owned% of our outstanding common stc
As a result of his holdings, Mel Marks has theigbtb exercise substantial influence over us aisdrterests may conflict with the interests of
other shareholders.

Our stock price may be volatile and could declingbstantially.

Our stock price may decline substantially as alteduhe volatile nature of the stock market alden factors beyond our control. The stock
market has, from time to time, experienced extrente and volume fluctuations. Many factors mayseathe market price for our common
stock to decline, including (i) our operating reésdhiling to meet the expectations of securitiealygsts or investors in any quarter,

(i) downward revisions in securities analystsimsttes, (iii) market perceptions concerning ouufatearnings prospects, (iv) public sales of a
substantial number of shares of our common stauk (@) adverse changes in general market condittoegonomic trends.

Our failure to maintain effective internal controlén accordance with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-€xAct of 2002 could have a material
adverse effect on our business and the price of oammon stock.

Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (“3a¥quires our management to assess the effeesgeof our internal control over
financial reporting at the end of each fiscal yaad certify whether or not internal control overafincial reporting is effective. Our independent
accountants are also required to express an opivitbrrespect to the effectiveness of our integmitrols. We expect our SOX compliance
work will continue to require significant commitntesf management time and the incurrence of sigaifigeneral and administrative expen

Unfavorable currency exchange rate fluctuations ddwadversely affect us.

We are exposed to market risk from material moveminforeign exchange rates between the U.S. datid the currencies of the foreign
countries in which we operate. As a result of awmgng operations in Mexico, our primary risk r&ato changes in the rates between the U.S
dollar and the Mexican peso. To mitigate this cuckerisk, we enter into forward foreign exchangatcacts to exchange U.S. dollars for
Mexican pesos. The extent to which we use forwardiin exchange contracts is periodically revieweldyht of our estimate of market
conditions and the terms and length of anticipagegiirements. The use of derivative financial istents allows us to reduce our exposure to
the risk that the eventual net cash outflow resglfrom funding the expenses of the foreign openatiwill be materially affected by changes
the exchange rates. We do not engage in curreremukgion or hold or issue financial instrumentstfading purposes. These contracts expire
in a year or less. Any change in the fair valuéoogign exchange contracts is accounted for ag@ease or decrease to general and
administrative expenses in current period earnings.

We may continue to make strategic acquisitions tfier companies or businesses and these acquisitiot®duce significant risks and
uncertainties, including risks related to integraj the acquired businesses and achieving benefiterf the acquisitions.

In order to position ourselves to take advantaggrafvth opportunities, we have made, and may caatto make, strategic acquisitions that
involve significant risks and uncertainties. Thesks and uncertainties include: (i) the difficultyintegrating newly-acquired businesses and
operations in an efficient and effective mannaéy tfiie

12




challenges in achieving strategic objectives, sastngs and other benefits from acquisitions, {{i§ potential loss of key employees of the
acquired businesses, (iv) the risk of divertingattention of senior management from our operatipr)gisks associated with integrating
financial reporting and internal control systenws) difficulties in expanding information technolpgystems and other business processes to
accommodate the acquired businesses, and (vibefiypairments of goodwill of an acquired business.

Deteriorating conditions in the global credit markeand macroeconomic factors could adversely affect financial condition and results ¢
operations.

Over the past year, significant deterioration i@ fimancial condition of financial institutions heesulted in a severe loss of liquidity and
availability in global credit markets and in higlshort-term borrowing costs, and more stringentdwing terms. Recessionary conditions in
the global economy threaten to cause further tighteof the credit markets, more stringent lenditandards and terms, and higher volatilit
interest rates. The persistence of these conditonkl have a material adverse effect on our bdrrgsvand the availability, terms and cost of
such borrowings. In addition, further deterioratiorthe U.S. economy could adversely affect oupoaate results, which could adversely af
our operating results.

Uncertainty surrounding General Motors’ filing fotbankruptcy protection.

We have been notified by General Motors (“GM”) ahd Bankruptcy Court that we are an “Essential \6ehtb GM. As such, we expect that
we will receive uninterrupted payment of our pred postfiling GM receivables. Inevitably, we anticipatens® uncertainty surrounding GM
the bankruptcy process proceeds, and there cano Assurance that actions taken by other intergstaies, including consumers, will not have
a continuing detrimental effect on our relationshiipevel of continuing business with GM.

Iltem 1B Unresolved Staff Comments

In response to a comment letter we received onalsr80, 2009 from the SEC, we are engaged in dssmas with the SEC staff concerning
filing of certain customer agreements as matenatracts with the SEC. Currently, we have filed twlia believe to be our material contract
with our largest customer. The SEC staff has irtditghat we should file all our customer contrdlots we are substantially dependent upon.

Item 2 Properties

We lease all of the real property used in our gjgmra. We presently lease approximately 147,00@szteet of warehouse, production and
administrative space in Torrance, California. Thespnt term of the lease expires March, 31, 20@2xanhave the option to extend the lease
for an additional five years beginning April 1, 200e also lease approximately 4,005 square fgatewkt to our main Torrance facility that is
used as additional office and record storage spdwelease on this second building has terms wdoatcide with the lease on the main
Torrance building.

On October 28, 2004, we entered into a buildud-lease covering approximately 125,000 squaedeindustrial premises in Tijuana, Mexi
The lease has a term of 10 years from the datfathldy was available for occupancy, and we han@pgtion to extend the lease term for two
additional 5-year periods. In May 2005, we tookgession of these premises. In April 2006, we leaseadditional 61,000 square feet
adjoining our existing space. On October 18, 20@5¢entered into an amendment to lease an adja28r@d0 square feet. This space was
occupied in January 2007 and is used for corevieggisorting and storage related functions. Allemaiments have the same essential terms as
the original lease.

In addition, we occupy approximately 63,000 sqdeet of leased remanufacturing, warehousing, afideo$pace facilities under seven
separate leases, which expire on various dategghrblay 14, 2012, in Singapore and Malaysia.

We also lease approximately 2,067 square feetfueo$pace in Nashville, Tennessee under a leatexpires on May 31, 2012.
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We believe the above mentioned facilities are sigffit to satisfy our foreseeable warehousing, prtida, distribution and administrative offi
space requirements.

Iltem 3 Legal Proceedings

On July 22, 2008, we retired 108,534 shares ofonrmon stock which had been pledged by a forméesfind director in satisfaction of a
$682,000 shareholder note receivable we recordedrinection with the reimbursement amount owedstbyuthat former officer and director
for certain previously advanced legal fees andsgqétis interest accrued from January 15, 2008ititir@uly 22, 2008. The remaining shares
pledged as collateral for this amount were releaselde former officer and director.

We are subject to various other lawsuits and clamtke normal course of business. Management doelelieve that the outcome of these
matters will have a material adverse effect offift@ncial position or future results of operations.

Item 4 Submission of Matters to a Vote of SecurityHolders
Our Annual Meeting of Stockholders of the Comparaswield on March 18, 2009.

Our stockholders voted on proposals to elect dirsand ratify the appointment of Ernst & Young La®our independent registered public
accountants for the fiscal year ending March 30920

All nominees for election to the Board as Directwese elected to serve until the next Annual MeptihStockholders and until their respec
successors are elected and qualified, or untiettréer of such director’s death, resignation onogal. The stockholders also ratified our
selection of the independent registered public aotamts. The number of votes cast for, againstiththeld and the number of abstentions with
respect to each proposal is set forth below:

Proposal 1 Shares For Shares Withheld
Election of Directors

Selwyn Joffe 8,197,66- 515,16¢
Mel Marks 8,182,33! 530,49:
Scott J. Adelsol 8,078,10:i 634,72(
Rudolph J. Borne 6,103,19. 2,609,03
Philip Gay 6,254,522 2,458,30
Duane Miller 8,193,38! 519,44:
Jeffrey Mirvis 8,229,43! 483,39
Proposal 2 Shares For Shares Against Shares Abstaining
Ratification of Ernst & Young LLF 8,628,70 5,00( 79,12
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PART Il

Item 5 Market for Registrant’'s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities

Effective December 3, 2007, our common stock conueértrading on the National Association of SecesiDealers Automated Quotation
(“NASDAQ") Global Market under the trading symbolmAA. Prior to this date, our common stock was tcade the Pink Sheets under the
trading symbol MPAA.PK.

The following table sets forth the high and lowesptices for our common stock during fiscal 2008 dre fourth quarter of fiscal year 2008,
and the high and low bid quotations for our comrmatatk during the first three quarters of fiscal 00he quotations for the first three quar
of fiscal 2008 reflect inter-dealer prices and may necessarily represent actual transactions amstlinclude any retail mankps, markdowr
or commissions.

Fiscal 2009 Fiscal 2008
High Low High Low
1st Quarte $12.0C $5.04 $14.3¢ $11.5C
2nd Quarte $ 7.5C $2.9C $13.0C $10.2¢
3rd Quarte $ 6.2¢ $3.0C $12.1( $ 9.0C
4th Quarte! $ 5.1¢ $3.0¢ $10.8( $ 5.5:2

As of June 8, 2009, there were 11,962,021 sharesrofmon stock outstanding held by 42 holders adne:cWe have never declared or paid
dividends on our common stock. The declaratiomgfarospective dividends is at the discretion ef Board of Directors and will be
dependent upon sufficient earnings, capital requémrets and financial position, general economic &, state law requirements and other
relevant factors. Additionally, our agreement witlr lender prohibits payment of dividends, excéptls dividends, without the lender’s prior
consent.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table summarizes our equity compensgplans as of March 31, 2009:

@ (b) (©
Number of securities
remaining available for future

Number of securities to b~ Weighted-average exercis issuance under equity
issued upon exercise of price of outstanding compensation plans (excludin
outstanding options, options warrants and securities reflected in column
Plan Category warrants and rights rights (@)
Equity compensation plans approved by securitiédens 1,731,08(1) $ 8.32Z 80,85((2)
Equity compensation plans not approved by sechdtgers N/A N/A N/A
Total 1,731,008 $ 8.32 80,85(

(1) Consists of options issued pursuant to our 1984l&8yee Stock Option Plan, 1996 Employee Stock@pflan, 1994 Non-Employee
Director Stock Option Plan, 2003 Lc-Term Incentive Plan and 2004 M-Employee Director Stock Option Ple

(@  Consists of options available for issuance unde2603 Lon-Term Incentive Plan and 2004 N-Employee Director Stock Option Ple
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Performance Graph

The following graph compares the cumulative retorholders of common stock for the five years egditarch 31, 2009 with the NASDAQ
Composite Index and an index for our peer groug fder group is comprised of other automotive aftarket companies: Aftermarket
Technologies Corporation, Dorman Products, Inan&ard Motor Products, Inc., and Proliance Intéonat, Inc. The comparison assumes
$100 was invested at the close of business on M&ttcB004 in our common stock and in each of theparison groups, and assumes

reinvestment of dividends.
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Item 6 Selected Financial Data

The following selected historical consolidated fingl information as of and for each of the fisgafrs ended March 31, 2009, 2008, 2007,
2006 and 2005, has been derived from and shoutddukin conjunction with our consolidated finanattements and related notes thereto.

Fiscal Years Ended March 31,

Income Statement Data 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

Net sales $134,866,00 $133,337,00 $136,323,00 $108,397,00 $96,719,00
Operating income (lost 10,642,00 12,751,00 (2,475,000 6,298,001 13,438,00
Net income (loss 3,857,001 4,607,001 (4,956,001 2,085,001 7,281,001
Basic net income (loss) per sh $ 03z $ 04C % (059 $ 0.2t $ 0.8¢
Diluted net income (loss) per shi $ 03z $ 03¢ $ (0.59 §$ 028 % 0.8F

March 31,

Balance Sheet Dat: 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

Total asset $159,588,00 $141,408,00  $131,986,00 $101,136,00 $85,647,00
Working capital (3,569,001 6,097,00! (26,746,00) 12,851,00 17,328,00
Line of credit 21,600,00! — 22,800,00 6,300,00! —
Capital lease obligatior— less current portio 1,401,001 2,565,00! 3,629,00! 4,857,00! 938,00(
Long term liabilities 7,364,00! 4,654,00! 3,859,00! 3,373,00! 1,040,001
Shareholder equity $ 93,083,000 $ 91,093,000 $ 47,828,00 $ 51,595,000 $48,670,00

Working capital for fiscal years ended March 310@@nd 2005, has been adjusted for the reclagsificaf core inventory as described in
Item 7 “Management’s Discussion and Analysis ofdRitial Condition and Results of Operations”, Caiticcounting Policiednventory,
page 18.

Item 7 Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Fimeial Condition and Results of Operations
Disclosure Regarding Private Securities LitigatiorReform Act of 1995

This report contains certain forward-looking stagers with respect to our future performance thaslire risks and uncertainties. Various
factors could cause actual results to differ matigrirom those projected in such statements. Tasers include, but are not limited to:
concentration of sales to certain customers, chaimgeur relationship with any of our customers iticreasing customer pressure for lower
prices and more favorable payment and other tetresncreasing demands on our working capitalstheificant strain on working capital
associated with large Remanufactured Core invergarghases from customers of the type we haveasorgly made, our ability to obtain a
additional financing we may seek or require, odlitsgtio achieve positive cash flows from operasppotential future changes in our
previously reported results as a result of thetifleation and correction of errors in our accoungtpolicies or procedures or the potential
material weaknesses in our internal controls owericial reporting, lower revenues than anticipdtech new and existing contracts, our
failure to meet the financial covenants or the ptidigations set forth in our bank credit agreetreerd the bank’s refusal to waive any such
defaults, any meaningful difference between prejggroduction needs and ultimate sales to our mes® increases in interest rates, changes
in the financial condition of any of our major cmsters, the impact of high gasoline prices, themakfor changes in consumer spending,
consumer preferences and general economic congliiecreased competition in the automotive padsistry, including increased competition
from Chinese and other offshore manufacturersicdity in obtaining Used Cores and component pariscreases in the costs of those parts,
political, criminal or economic instability in arof the foreign countries where we conduct operatianrrency exchange fluctuations,
unforeseen increases in operating costs, the bptuyrof a major customer and other factors disaliseein and in our other filings with the
SEC.
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Management Overview

We remanufacture alternators and starters for itepand domestic cars and light trucks in additioheavy duty, agricultural and industrial
application and distribute them predominantly tigioout the United States and Canada. Our businese&vy duty, agricultural and industrial
applications is in its early stages and does rmeent a significant portion of our business. [ of light duty alternators and starters are
sold to most of the largest auto parts retail chairthe United States and Canada, including AuteZ®ep Boys, and O’Reilly Automotive
(including CSK Automotive) and various traditiomehrehouses for the professional installers. Weekielauto parts retail chains in total,
currently account for approximately 35% of the NoAmerican after-market for remanufactured altesreabind starters.

We believe that demand for after-market remanufadtalternators and starters is in part drivenhgyrtumber of vehicle miles driven and the
age of vehicles. According to industry statistite, average age of vehicles on the road in Nortlerea is increasing, while miles driven in
North America decreased each month from Januarg g#00ugh March 2009. We believe this is primatilg result of the slowdown in tl

U.S. economy during this period.

Historically, our business has focused on the gamitrself (“DIY”) market, customers who buy remaactured alternators and starters at an
auto parts store and install the parts themselesbelieve that the do-it-for-me (“DIFM”) marketsa known as the professional installer
market, is an attractive opportunity for growth. Wadieve we are positioned to benefit from this ke&opportunity in two ways: (1) our auto
parts retail customers are expanding their effiortarget the professional installer market segraedt(2) we sell our products under private
label and our Quality-Buil®, Talon®, Xtreme® and other brand names directly to suppliers thaismn professional installers. In addition,
we sell our products to original equipment manufeas for distribution to the professional instalbeth for warranty replacement and their
general after-market channels.

While we continually seek to diversify our custorbase, we currently derive, and have historicadlgivetd, a substantial portion of our sales
from a small number of large customers. Duringdig009, 2008 and 2007, sales to our five largestomners constituted approximately 92%,
94% and 96%, respectively, of our net sales. Taati the risk associated with this concentratibsates, we have increasingly sought to €
into longer-term customer agreements with our mejstomers. These longer-term agreements typicadjyire us to commit a significant
amount of our working capital to build inventorydaincrease production. In addition, they typicatfiglude marketing and other allowances
adversely impact near-term revenue and may regsite incur certain changeover expenses.

To offset the pricing pressure and costs associgithdour agreements with our largest customershaxe moved almost all our
remanufacturing operations from our U.S. facilityfidwer cost facilities in Mexico and Malaysia. Ing fiscal 2009, 2008 and 2007,
approximately 98%, 91% and 64%, respectively, aftotal production was produced at our facilitiesMexico and Malaysia. We expect to
maintain production of remanufactured units thguree specialized service and/or rapid turnarourmbia U.S. facility for the near term. In
addition, we are nearing completion of the traositbf our warehousing and shipping/receiving openatfrom our U.S. facility to our facilitie
in Mexico.

During fiscal 2009, we acquired certain assetsltM And SCP, specifically the operations which proehlinew and remanufactured alternators
and starters for imported and domestic passendprcles, and for the industrial and heavy duty aftarkets. We believe these acquisitions
expand our customer base and product line, inciuttia addition of business in heavy duty alternatat starter applications, and expand our
market share in North America.

We operate in one business segment pursuant to 8l8A$31,Disclosures about Segments of Enterprise and Rklatermation.

Critical Accounting Policies

We prepare our consolidated financial statemengéeaordance with generally accepted accountingiplies in the United States, or GAAP.
Our significant accounting policies are discussedétail below and in Note 2 in the Notes to Coitlsted Financial Statements.

In preparing our consolidated financial statementsuse estimates and assumptions for matterat@ahherently uncertain. We base our
estimates on historical experiences and reasomablemptions. Our use of estimates and
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assumptions affects the reported amounts of adisdtidifies and the amount and timing of revenaasd expenses we recognize for and during
the reporting period. Actual results may differfrour estimates.

Our remanufacturing operations require that we medused Cores, a necessary raw material, frontoestomers and offer our customers
marketing and other allowances that impact reveacegnition. These elements of our business géestd accounting issues that are more
complex than many businesses our size or largexddiition, the relevant accounting standards asukis continue to evolve. As a result, cel
of our previously issued financial statements Hasen restated to reflect changes in our applicatidBAAP.

Inventory
Nor-core Inventory

Non-core inventory is comprised of non-core raw matsrithe non-core value of work in process anchtirecore value of finished goods.
Used Cores, the Used Core value of work in proaessthe Remanufactured Core portion of finisheddgawre classified as long-term core
inventory as described below under the caption y-term Core Inventory.”

Non-core inventory is stated at the lower of cost arket. The cost of non-core inventory approximatesrage historical purchase prices paid,
and is based upon the direct costs of materiabanallocation of labor and variable and fixed oeath costs. The cost of non-core inventory is
evaluated at least quarterly during the fiscal yeat adjusted as necessary to reflect current lofveost or market levels. These adjustments
are determined for individual items of inventonthvin each of the three classifications of non-doxentory as follows:

Non-core raw materials are recorded at average costhvidibased on the actual purchase price of ratenadés on hand. The average co
updated quarterly. This average cost is used iinthentory costing process and is the basis facation of materials to finished goods
during the production process.

Non-core work in process is in various stages ofipction, is on average 50% complete and is vadti&d% of the cost of a finished good.
Non-core work in process inventory historically quises less than 3% of the total non-core invenbaiance.

Finished goods cost includes the average costrminoe raw materials and allocations of labor aadable and fixed overhead. The
allocations of labor and variable and fixed ovetheasts are determined based on the average astuaf the production facilities over the
prior twelve months which approximates normal c#pa®his method prevents the distortion in all@htabor and overhead costs that
would occur during short periods of abnormally lomhigh production. In addition, we exclude certairallocated overhead such as
severance costs, duplicative facility overheads;a@std spoilage from the calculation and expers® ths period costs as required in
Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Stagmt No. 151|nventory Costs, an amendment of Accounting Reldzutietin

(“ARB”) No. 43, Chapter 4“SFAS No. 151"). For the fiscal years ended MaBdh 2009 and 2008, costs of approximately $2,012:0Q
$1,599,000, respectively, were considered abnoaméithus excluded from the cost calculation andggthdirectly to cost of sales.

We record an allowance for potentially excess dmblete inventory based upon recent sales hisfoeyguantity of inventory on-hand, and a
forecast of potential use of the inventory. We egwinventory on a monthly basis to identify excgsantities and part numbers that are
experiencing a reduction in demand. In general, mambers with quantities representing a one teettyear supply are partially reserved for at
rates based upon management’s judgment and cansigth historical rates. Any part numbers with gties representing more than a three-
year supply are reserved for at a rate that corsjutessible scrap and liquidation values and magshigigh as 100% of cost if no liquidati
market exists for the part.

The quantity thresholds and reserve rates are @lgeand are based on management’s judgment ansll&dge of current and projected
industry demand. The reserve estimates may, threrdfe revised if there are changes in the overatket for our products or market changes
that in management’s judgment, impact our abititgell or liquidate potentially excess or obsolatentory.
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We apply the guidance provided by the Emergingdsstask Force (“EITF”) Issue No. 02-#&counting by a Customer (Including a Rese
for Cash Consideration Received from a Ver(“EITF No. 02-16"), by recording vendor discountsareduction of inventories that are
recognized as a reduction to cost of sales astlemtories are sold.

Inventory Unreturne

Inventory Unreturned represents our estimate, basdustorical data and prospective informationvided directly by the customer, of finisk
goods shipped to customers that we expect to hened, under our general right of return policyeathe balance sheet date. Because all core:
are classified separately as long term assetsn¥leatory unreturned balance includes only the dddet value of a finished good. The return
rate is calculated based on expected returns witieimormal operating cycle of one year. As suuh rélated amounts are classified in current
assets.

Inventory unreturned is valued in the same manseua finished goods inventory.
Long-term Core Inventory
Long-term core inventory consists of:
. Used Cores purchased from core brokers and héfvémtory at our facilities
. Used Cores returned by our customers and held/anibory at our facilities

. Used Cores returned by end-users to customensabyet returned to us are classified as Rematwriset Cores until they are
physically received by u:

. Remanufactured Cores held in finished goods invgragbour facilities; ani

. Remanufactured Cores held at customer locatism@spart of the finished goods sold to the custof@rthese Remanufactured Cores,
we expect the finished good containing the Remantufad Core to be returned under our general a§heturn policy or a similar
Used Core to be returned to us by the customexaéh case, for cred

Long-term core inventory is recorded at averagmtital purchase prices determined based on aptuahases of inventory on hand. The cost
and market value of Used Cores for which sufficieent purchases have occurred are deemed theasatime purchase price for purchases
that are made in arms length transactions.

Long-term core inventory recorded at average histbpurchase prices is primarily made up of UsedeS for newer products related to more
recent automobile models or products for whichehera less liquid market. We must purchase thesel \Cores from core brokers because our
customers do not have a sufficient supply of thresger Used Cores available for the core exchanogram.

Approximately 15% to 20% of Used Cores are obtainatbre broker transactions and are valued basex/erage purchase price. The avel
purchase price of Used Cores for more recent altdenmodels is retained as the cost for these (@zwds in subsequent periods even as the
source of these Used Cores shifts to our core exghprogram.

Long-term core inventory is recorded at the lower oft @@snarket value. In the absence of sufficienergpurchases, we use core broker ¢
lists to assess whether Used Core cost exceeds@sednarket value on an item by item basis. Tlmagmy reason for the insufficient recent
purchases is that we obtain most of our Used Guorenitory from the customer core exchange program.

Commencing in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007, reelassified all of our core inventories to a léagn asset account. The determination of
the long-term classification was based on our \tieat the value of the cores is not consumed oizezhin cash during our normal operating

cycle, which is one year for most of the cores réed in inventory. According to ARB No. 43, curresisets are defined as “assets or other

resources commonly identified as
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those which are reasonably expected to be realizedsh or sold or consumed during the normal dipgyaycle of the business.” We do not
believe that core inventories, which we classifyoag-term, are consumed because the credits isgumdthe return of Used Cores offset the
amounts invoiced when the Remanufactured Coreaded in finished goods were sold. We do not exgiectore inventories to be consumed,
and thus we do not expect to realize cash, untitelationship with a customer ends, a possibiligt we consider remote based on existing
long-term customer agreements and historical egpeei.

However, historically for approximately 4.5% ofihed goods sold, our customer will not send us@dlCore to obtain the credit we offer
under our core exchange program. Therefore, basediohistorical estimate, we derecognize the wahee for these finished goods upon sale,
as we believe they have been consumed and we balieed cash.

We realize cash for only the core exchange progtamntfall of approximately 4.5%. This shortfall repents the historical difference between
the number of finished goods shipped to customaiglize number of Used Cores returned to us by mesta We do not realize cash for the
remaining portion of the cores because the créstiteed upon the return of Used Cores offset theuatsanvoiced when the Remanufactured
Cores included in finished goods were sold. We atoempect to realize cash for the remaining portibthese cores until our relationship with
a customer ends, a possibility that we consideoterhased on existing long-term customer agreenagmntistorical experience.

For these reasons, we concluded that it is moreogpipte to classify core inventory as a long-texsset.
Long-term Core Inventory Deposit

The long-term core inventory deposit account regmessthe value of Remanufactured Cores we havedgoepurchase from customers, which
are held by the customers and remain on the custopremises. The purchase is made through thargsuof credits against that customer’s
receivables either on a one time basis or oveigaged-upon period. The credits against the custsmeseivable are based upon the
Remanufactured Core purchase price previously kstted with the customer. At the same time, we mé¢be longterm core inventory depo:
for the Remanufactured Cores purchased at its detrmined as noted under Long-term Core Invenidng long-term core inventory deposit
is stated at the lower of cost or market. The established at the time of the transaction basettie then current cost, determined as noted
under Long-term Core Inventory. The difference letwthe credit granted and the cost of the long-tare inventory deposit is treated as a
sales allowance reducing revenue as required UEdér Issue No. 01-%Accounting for Consideration Given by a Vendor ©Gustomer
(Including a Reseller of the Vendor’s Produdt®ITF No. 01-9”). When the purchases are made aveagreed-upon period, the long-term
core inventory deposit is recorded at the same tireeredit is issued to the customer for the paselof the Remanufactured Cores.

At least annually, and as often as quarterly, reidiations and confirmations are performed to deiee that the number of Remanufactured
Cores purchased, but retained at the customerdosaremains sufficient to support the amountsneed in the long-term core inventory
deposit account. At the same time, the mix of Rarfetured Cores is reviewed to determine that ffggegate value of Remanufactured Ce
in the account has not changed during the repoptingpd. We evaluate the cost of Remanufacture@€supporting the aggregate long-term
core inventory deposit account each quarter. Ifdeetify any permanent reduction in either the nemdr the aggregate value of the
Remanufactured Core inventory mix held at the austdocation, we will record a reduction in thedetrerm core inventory deposit account
during that period.
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Revenue Recognitio

We recognize revenue when our performance is cdmmead all of the following criteria established®taff Accounting Bulletin No. 104,
Revenue Recognitic(“"SAB No. 104”), have been met:

» Persuasive evidence of an arrangement e;

» Delivery has occurred or services have been redd

» The selle’s price to the buyer is fixed or determinable,
» Collectibility is reasonably assure

For products shipped free-on-board (“FOB”) shipppaint, revenue is recognized on the date of shifinter products shipped FOB
destination, revenues are recognized on the egtthmatactual date of delivery. We include shippng handling charges in the gross invoice
price to customers and classify the total amouméasnue in accordance with EITF No. 00-A8¢counting for Shipping and Handling Fees i
Costs. Shipping and handling costs are recorded in absales.

Revenue Recognition; Mof-Core-Value Basis

The price of a finished product sold to customsmgdnerally comprised of separately invoiced anmofortthe Remanufactured Core included
in the product (“Remanufactured Core value”) andfie value added by remanufacturing (“unit valu&he unit value is recorded as revenue
based on our then current price list, net of ajpplie discounts and allowances. Based on our exjerieontractual arrangements with
customers and inventory management practices, aippately 95% of the remanufactured alternators staders we sell to customers are
replaced by similar Used Cores sent back for ctaditustomers under our core exchange progranmcdardance with our net-of-core-value
revenue recognition policy, we do not recognizeRleenanufactured Core value as revenue when ttehédiproducts are sold. We generally
limit the number of Used Cores sent back undectiie exchange program to the number of similar Rerf@etured Cores previously shipped
to each customer.

Revenue Recognition and Defer— Core Revenue

Full price Remanufactured Coré&hen we ship a product, we invoice certain custen@rthe Remanufactured Core value portion of the
product at full Remanufactured Core sales pricedoutot recognize revenue for the Remanufacturee Calue at that time. For these
Remanufactured Cores, we recognize core revenws hgmn an estimate of the rate at which our custemvill pay cash for Remanufactured
Cores in lieu of sending back similar Used Coresfedits under our core exchange program.

Nominal price Remanufactured CorWe invoice other customers for the Remanufacturee @alue portion of product shipped at a nominal
Remanufactured Core price. Unlike the full pricarR@aufactured Cores, we only recognize revenue frominal Remanufactured Cores not
expected to be replaced by a similar Used Corelsmit under the core exchange program when weviediiwat we have met all of the
following criteria:

» We have a signed agreement with the customerioavihe nominally priced Remanufactured Coresexpected to be sent back under the
core exchange program, and the agreement musfispeeinumber of Remanufactured Cores our custawibpay cash for in lieu of
sending back a similar Used Core under our corbanm@e program and the basis on which the nomipaitegd Remanufactured Cores are
to be valued (normally the average price per Reffis@tured Core stipulated in the agreeme

» The contractual date for reconciling our recaadd customer’s records of the number of nominailygal Remanufactured Cores not
expected to be replaced by similar Used Coreslserk under our core exchange program must be iauirent or a prior perioc

» The reconciliation must be completed and agredxy tilve customel

» The amount must be billed to the custon
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Deferral of Core RevenueAs noted previously, we have in the past and malye future agree to buy back Remanufactured £iwoen certait
customers. The difference between the credit gdaautel the cost of the Remanufactured Cores bouwgiit ils treated as a sales allowance
reducing revenue as required under EITF No. 01s9a Aesult of the ongoing Remanufactured Core htkfhave have now deferred core
revenue from these customers until there is no@afien that sales allowances associated with Rafaatured Core buybacks from these
customers will offset core revenues that would ntfige be recognized once the criteria noted abave lheen met. At March 31, 2009 and
2008, Remanufactured Core revenue of $5,934,0062,827,000, respectively, was deferred.

Revenue Recognition; General Right of Re

We allow our customers to return goods to us theit end-user customers have returned to them h&héte returned item is or is not
defective (warranty returns). In addition, undex tarms of certain agreements with our customeddsratustry practice, our customers from
time to time are allowed stock adjustments wheir theentory of certain product lines exceeds thécpated sales to end-user customers
(stock adjustment returns). We seek to limit thgragate of customer returns, including warranty stodk adjustment returns, to less than !
of unit sales. In some instances, we allow a hidghezl of returns in connection with a significatdate order.

We provide for such anticipated returns of inveptioraccordance with SFAS No. 4Bevenue Recognition When Right of Return EXigts,
reducing revenue and the related cost of salethéounits estimated to be returned.

Our allowance for warranty returns is establishasklol on a historical analysis of the level of thie of return as a percentage of total unit
sales. Stock adjustment returns do not occur aspagific time during the year, and the expectedllef these returns cannot be reasonably
estimated based on a historical analysis. Our alfme for stock adjustment returns is based on féipeastomer inventory levels, inventory
movements and information on the estimated timiingt@ck adjustment returns provided by our cust@mner

Sales Incentive!

We provide various marketing allowances to ouraungrs, including sales incentives and concessMagketing allowances related to a sin
exchange of product are recorded as a reductioevehues at the time the related revenues arededar when such incentives are offered as
determined in accordance with EITF No. ®10ther marketing allowances, which may only bgliag against future purchases, are records

a reduction to revenues in accordance with a sd¢bes forth in the relevant contract. Sales ineeramounts are recorded based on the value
of the incentive provided.

Goodwill

We account for goodwill under the guidance setfimtSFAS No. 142Goodwill and Other Intangible Assgt$SFAS No. 142”), which
specifies that goodwill and indefinite-lived intabigs should not be amortized. We evaluate goodaillmpairment on an annual basis or
more frequently if events or circumstances occat tould indicate a reduction in fair value of ttempany. Such indicators include, but are
not limited to, events or circumstances such agrdfeant adverse change in the business climatanticipated competition, a loss of key
personnel, adverse legal or regulatory developments significant decline in the market price af common stock. In addition, we identified
a single reporting unit (the Company itself) in@cance with SFAS No. 142, as we had not identifieg components of the Company ben
the one operating segment described in Note leilNtites to Consolidated Financial Statements.

The goodwill impairment test is a two-step impaintniest. In the first step, we compare the faiueadf the reporting unit to its carrying value.
If the fair value of the reporting unit exceeds tlaerying value of the net assets assigned togberting unit, goodwill is not impaired and
therefore we are not required to perform furthetitg. If the carrying value of the net assetsgassi to the reporting unit exceeds the fair v
of the reporting unit, then we must perform theosektstep in order to determine the implied faiueadf the reporting unit’s goodwill and
compare it to the carrying value of the reportimg’s goodwill.

Our market capitalization in the third quarter istl 2009 decreased significantly, which repremgat possible triggering event for potential
goodwill impairment. Accordingly, we performed amdrim goodwill impairment test in accordance WHRAS No. 142.
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For the third quarter 2009 interim impairment test, determined the fair value of the reporting baised on an equal weighting of: (1) a
market capitalization approach, (2) a discountesth ¢lbw analysis, and (3) a market approach. Theketaapitalization is calculated by
multiplying the average share price of our commtoilsfor the last 30 days prior to the measurerdate by the number of outstanding
common shares and adding a control premium. Tre®diged cash flow analysis establishes fair vajuedtimating the present value of the
projected future cash flows of reporting unit apglging a 3% terminal growth rate. The present galfiestimated discounted future cash
flows is determined using significant estimatesesfenue and costs for the reporting unit, drivermsumed growth rates, as well as
appropriate discount rates. The discount rate &6 W&as determined using a weighted-average costpifad that incorporates long-term
government bonds, effective cost of debt, and t®¢ af equity of similar guideline companies. Tharket approach is calculated using market
multiples and comparable transaction data for dunde companies. The guideline information was tdasepublicly available information. A
valuation multiple was selected based on a findf@achmarking analysis that compared the reporimitis benchmark result with the
guideline information. In addition to these finaalaonsiderations, qualitative factors such asrassi descriptions, market served, and
profitability were considered in the ultimate seiea of the multiple used to estimate a value animority basis. A control premium was
applied to the minority basis value to arrive & tbporting unit's estimated fair value on a collitrg basis. The selection and weighting of the
various fair value techniques may result in a higirdower fair value. Judgment is applied in detiing the weightings that are most
representative of fair value. Management has pexddra sensitivity analysis on its significant asgtions and has determined that a change in
its assumptions within selected sensitivity testengls would not impact its conclusion.

Based on this interim assessment, we concludedabsatf December 31, 2008, the carrying value offeporting unit exceeded its fair value
under step one of the test and proceeded to stepgimder step two, we determined that goodwill fdly impaired as the carrying value of
$2,191,000, including the fourth quarter adjustrredr100,000, exceeded the implied fair value sbzand therefore recorded a pre-tax, non-
cash goodwill impairment charge of $2,191,000 asldsed in the Consolidated Statements of Opematiothe third quarter of fiscal 2009.
After recording the impairment charge, we had nodyall remaining on our Consolidated Balance Shasedf March 31, 2009.

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes in accordance withanid issued by the FASB in SFAS No. 188¢ounting for Income Taxesvhich requires
the use of the liability method of accounting focome taxes.

The liability method measures deferred income téyeapplying enacted statutory rates in effechatiialance sheet date to the differences
between the tax basis of assets and liabilitiestlagid reported amounts in the financial statemeFihe resulting asset or liability is adjusted to
reflect changes in the tax laws as they occur. ldateon allowance is provided to reduce deferredassets when it is more likely than not that
a portion of the deferred tax asset will not bdized.

The primary components of our income tax provigioenefit) are (i) the current liability or refundelfor federal, state and foreign income
taxes and (ii) the change in the amount of thede&rred income tax asset, including the effe@rmf change in the valuation allowance.

Realization of deferred tax assets is dependemt opoability to generate sufficient future taxalleome. In evaluating this ability,
management considers our long-term agreementseaith of our major customers that expire at varéaiss through December 2012 and our
Remanufactured Core purchase obligations with icectastomers that expire at various dates throug$h2D11. Based on our forecast of our
future operating results, we believe that it is enlitely than not that future taxable income w# ufficient to realize the recorded deferred tax
assets. We periodically compare our forecaststimaoesults, and there can be no assurance thébtbcasted results will be achieved.

On April 1, 2007 we adopted the Provisions of FAS&rpretation No. 48Accounting for Uncertainty in Income TaxgBIN 48").
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Financial Risk Management and Derivatives

We are exposed to market risk from material moveaminforeign exchange rates between the U.S. dafid the currencies of the foreign
countries in which we operate. As a result of aewgng operations in Mexico, our primary risk r@ato changes in the rates between the U.S
dollar and the Mexican peso. To mitigate this coekerisk, we enter into forward foreign exchangatcacts to exchange U.S. dollars for
Mexican pesos. The extent to which we use forwardifin exchange contracts is periodically reviewelijht of our estimate of market
conditions and the terms and length of anticipageglirements. The use of derivative financial mstents allows us to reduce our exposure to
the risk that the eventual net cash outflow resglfrom funding the expenses of the foreign openatiwill be materially affected by changes
the exchange rates. We do not engage in curreremulgdion or hold or issue financial instrumentstfading purposes. We had foreign
exchange contracts with an aggregate U.S. dollaivalgnt notional value (and materially the sammimal fair value) of $7,224,000 and
$7,303,000 at March 31, 2009 and 2008, respectiVidigse contracts generally expire in a year @ l&ay changes in the fair value of foreign
exchange contracts are accounted for as an incoe@szrease to general and administrative expensesrent period earnings. For the fiscal
years ended March 31, 2009 and 2008, the net efféht foreign exchange contracts was to incrgaseral and administrative expense:
$1,194,000 and to decrease general and adminigtratpenses by $152,000, respectively.

Share-based Payments

Effective April 1, 2006, we adopted SFAS No. 128/(sed 2004)Share-Based Paymen{‘'SFAS No. 123(R)"using the modified prospecti
application method of transition for all our stdocised compensation plans. The modified prospeappécation method of transition requires
that stock-based compensation expense be recavdatl hew and unvested stock options that arenaltely expected to vest as the requisite
service is rendered from April 1, 2006 forward. Atingly, while reported results for subsequertdis/ears reflect the adoption of SFAS No.
123(R), prior year amounts have not been restateeffiect the impact of SFAS No. 123(R).

Fair Value Measurements

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. E&if,Value MeasurementsSFAS No. 157”). SFAS No. 157 defines fair valigethe price
that would be received to sell an asset or patdattsfer a liability in an orderly transaction beem market participants at the measurement
date. It also established a framework for measugirgralue in accordance with GAAP and expandsldiires about fair value measurement.
SFAS No. 157 applies to other accounting pronoumeesithat require or permit fair value measureme&rAS No. 157 was effective for
fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. elav, a FASB Staff Position issued in February 20@8yed the effectiveness of SFAS
No. 157 for one year, but only as applied to naafitial assets and nonfinancial liabilities. Themm of SFAS No. 157 on April 1, 2008 ¢
not have an impact on our financial position, resaf operations or cash flows. We will adopt thevisions of SFAS No. 157 as it relates to
nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilitiesAgpril 1, 2009. The adoption is not expected toehaxy material impact on our financial
position, results of operations or cash flows.

The hierarchy is based upon the transparency otsno the valuation of an asset or liability ashef measurement date. The classification of
fair value measurements within the hierarchy iseagpon the lowest level of input that is signifito the measurement. The three levels are
defined as follows:

. Level 1— Valuation is based upon quoted prices (unadjustedytive markets for identical assets or liakahti

. Level 2 — Valuation is based upon quoted pricessimilar assets and liabilities in active marketsother inputs that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or imectly, for substantially the full term of the fimeial instrument

. Level 3— Valuation is based upon unobservable inputs treasignificant to the fair value measuremt
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The following table summarizes the valuation of short-term investments and financial instrumentthle above SFAS No. 157 categories as
of March 31, 2009:

Fair Value Measurements

Fair Value at Using Inputs Considered as
March 31, 2009 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets
Shor-term investment $ 335,00( $335,00( — —
Liabilities
Deferred compensatic 335,00( 335,00( — —
Forward foreign currency exchange contr: 1,048,001 — $1,048,00! —

Our short-term investments, which fund our deferethpensation liabilities, consist of investmentsnutual funds. These investments are
classified as Level 1 as the shares of these mfitndt trade with sufficient frequency and volurmehable us to obtain pricing information on
an ongoing basis.

The forward foreign currency exchange contractgaraearily measured based on the foreign currepoy and forward rates quoted by the
banks or foreign currency dealers. During the figears ended March 31, 2009 and 2008, an increfabg, 194,000 and a decrease of
$152,000, respectively, in general and administeagixpenses was recorded due to the change irathe of the forward foreign currency
exchange contracts subsequent to entering intodhiacts. The fair value adjustments of $1,048A&@0included in other current liabilities in
the Consolidated Balance Sheet at March 31, 2009.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. T8 Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Finl Liabilities (“S FAS No. 159”).
SFAS No. 159 permits companies to choose to meadiadr value certain financial instruments anldestitems that are not currently required
to be measured at fair value. SFAS No. 159 is #ffedor fiscal years beginning after November 26807. We adopted SFAS No. 159 on
April 1, 2008 and elected not to measure any aaldtifinancial instruments or other items at faitue.

New Accounting Pronouncemen

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141R3jness CombinatiorfsSFAS No. 141(R)"). SFAS No. 141(R) applies to any
transaction or other event that meets the defmitiba business combination. Where applicable, SNAS141(R) establishes principles and
requirements for how the acquirer recognizes analsomes identifiable assets acquired, liabilitiesiaged, non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and goodwill or gain from a bargain pusehadn addition, SFAS No. 141(R) determines whiairination to disclose to enable user:
the financial statements to evaluate the naturefiaadcial effects of the business combinationApril 2009, the FASB issued FSP 141(R)-1,
Accounting for Assets Acquired and Liabilities Ased in a Business Combination That Arise from @geticies, (“FSP 141(R)-1"), which
modified the guidance in SFAS No. 141(R) relateddotingent assets and contingent liabilities. Ails®ecember 2007, the FASB issued
Statement No. 16@0on-controlling Interests in Consolidated Financ&htement§'SFAS No. 160”). This Statement amends Accounting
Research Bulletin No. 5Consolidated Financial Statements,establish accounting and reporting standardth#®non-controlling interest in
a subsidiary and for the deconsolidation of a gliagi. SFAS No. 141(R), as modified by FSP 141(Rasid SFAS No. 160 are required to be
adopted simultaneously and are effective for thet innual reporting period beginning on or aftec@mnber 15, 2008 with earlier adoption
being prohibited. We will adopt both SFAS No. 14),(& modified by FSP 141(R)-1, and SFAS No. 16@pril 1, 2009. There are currently
no non-controlling interests in the Company’s sdiasies, therefore the adoption of SFAS No. 16@asexpected to have any impact. The
adoption of SFAS No. 141(R), as modified by FSP(R311L, will change our accounting treatment foribass combinations on a prospective
basis.

In March 2008, the FASB issued Statement No. D8dglosures about Derivative Instruments and Heddhativities-an amendment of FASB
Statement No. 138SFAS No. 161”). SFAS No. 161 changes the disalesaquirements for derivative instruments and imeggctivities.
Entities are required to provide enhanced discksabout (a) how and why an entity uses derivatisuments, (b) how derivative
instruments and related hedged items are accototemder FASB Statement No. 133 and its relatéelpretations, and (c) how derivative
instruments and related hedged items affect aty&ntinancial position, financial performance, arash flows.
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The guidance in SFAS No. 161 is effective for ficiahstatements issued for fiscal years and int@@mods beginning after November 15,
2008, with early application encouraged. SFAS Ngl. éncourages, but does not require, comparatdabodures for earlier periods at initial
adoption. We adopted SFAS No. 161 on January 19,20hich did not have any material impact on oung€sidated Financial Statements. .
Note 12 in the Notes to the Consolidated Finarfsiatements for required disclosures related tovdtvie instruments and hedging activiti

In April 2009, the FASB issued FASB Staff PositidARSP”) No. 107-1 and APB 28-1Interim Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial
Instruments(“FSP 107-1 and APB 28-1"). FSP 107-1 and APB 2&duire that publicly traded companies includeftiievalue disclosures
required by SFAS No. 107 in their interim financ#htements and is effective for interim and anpealods ending after June 15, 2009, with
early adoption permitted for periods ending afterth 15, 2009, and must be applied prospectively dd/not expect the adoption of FSP 107-
1 and APB 28-1 on April 1, 2009 to have any mateémigact on our consolidated financial statemenits equired disclosures.

In April 2009, the FASB issued FSP FAS 15Métermining Fair Value When the Volume and Leveéaivity for the Asset or Liability Have
Significantly Decreased and ldentifying Transacsidinat Are Not Orderlf'FSP 157-4"). FSP 157-4 provides guidance regardiow to
determine whether there has been a significantdserin the volume and level of activity for theear liability when compared with normal
market activity for the asset or liability. In susiuations, an entity may conclude that transastior quoted prices may not be determinative of
fair value, and may adjust the transactions orepliptrices to arrive at the fair value of the assditbility. FSP 157-4 is effective for interim

and annual reporting periods ending after Jun2Q089, with early adoption permitted for periodsiegdafter March 15, 2009, and must be
applied prospectively. We do not expect the adoptioFSP 157-4 on April 1, 2009 to have any matémgact on our consolidated financial
statements and required disclosures.

In May 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. 188psequent EvenfsSFAS No. 165”). SFAS No. 165 establishes stanglafcaccounting for and
disclosure of events that occur after the balaheetsdate but before financial statements are dstrities are required to disclose the date
through which subsequent events have been evalaatkthe basis for that date. SFAS No. 165 is Bffeon a prospective basis for interim
and annual periods ending after June 15, 2009. Wetlexpect the adoption of SFAS No. 165 on JUhe&B09 to have any material impaci
our consolidated financial statements and requdisclosures.

Subsequent Events

At March 31, 2009, we were not in compliance wigntain of our Credit Agreement covenants requitindo: (i) achieve EBITDA of not less
than $4,500,000 for the fiscal quarter ended M&®1;h2009 and (ii) achieve total EBITDA of not lekan $19,500,000 for the four consecutive
fiscal quarters ended March 31, 2009. In June 2608bank provided us with a waiver of these comtafaults.

In addition, in conjunction with the June 2009 veaiwve entered into a sixth amendment to the Chgglikcement, dated as of June 8, 2009,
with our bank. This amendment, among other thifiysreated a borrowing reserve in the amount ¢6@7,000 to be reserved by our bank
against our Revolving Loan commitment amount aradlable in the event our largest customer is ngésrhaving the receivables owed to us
factored; (ii) amended our EBITDA covenant to regu minimum EBITDA of not less than $2,900,000tfoe fiscal quarter ending June 30,
2009 and to $4,000,000 for each fiscal quartertdter; (iii) amended our trailing twelve month HBIA covenant to require a minimum
trailing twelve month EBITDA of not less than: 32,500,000 for the four consecutive fiscal quarsrding June 30, 2009, (b) $11,250,000
for the four consecutive fiscal quarters endingtSmper 30, 2009, (c) $12,500,000 for the four cousee fiscal quarters ending December
2009 and (d) $17,000,000 for the four consecuiiseaf quarters ending March 31, 2010 and thereadtet (iv) amended our leverage ratio
covenant to require that we maintain a leverage odtnot greater than (x) 2.25 to 1.00 for thedisquarter ending June 30, 2009, (y) 2.50 to
1.00 for the fiscal quarter ending September 3092@nd (z) 2.00 to 1.00 for the fiscal quarteriegdecember 31, 2009 and thereafter.
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Results of Operations

The following table summarizes certain key operatiata for the periods indicated:

Fiscal Years Ended March 31

2009 2008 2007
Gross profil 29.2% 27.% 15.€%
Cash used in operatio $(11,078,00)  $(10,039,00)  $(9,313,00)
Finished goods turnover ( 4.4 4.6 5.3
Finished goods turnover, excluding POS inventojy — — 6.7
Return on equity (3 4.2% 9.6% (10.9)%

(1) Finished goods turnover is calculated by dividing tost of goods sold for the year by the averag@den beginning and ending I-
core finished goods inventory values, for eachaligear. We believe that this provides a usefulsueaof our ability to turn production
into revenue. The finished goods turnover ratiisoal 2007 was positively impacted by the termiorabf the POS agreement in
August 2006

(2) Finished goods turnover, excluding POS inventogaisulated by dividing the cost of goods soldtfar fiscal year by the avera
between beginning and ending non-core finished gameentory values excluding pay-on-scan inventdve. believe that this provides a
useful measure of our ability to manage the invgnichich is within our physical control. This POBangement was terminated in
August 2006

(3) Return on equity is computed as net incomehfe fiscal year divided by shareholders’ equttyh@ beginning of the fiscal year and
measures our ability to invest sharehol’ funds profitably.

Following is our results of operation, reflectedagsercentage of net sales:

Fiscal Years Ended March 31,

2009 2008 2007

Net sales 100.(% 100.(% 100.(%
Cost of goods sol 70.7 72.1 84.4
Gross profil 29.5 27.¢ 15.€
Operating expense

General and administrati\ 14.4 14.¢ 13.:
Sales and marketir 3.6 2.€ 3.C
Research and developmt 1kt 1.C 1.1
Impairment of goodwil 1.€ — —
Operating income (los 7.8 &3 (1.9
Interest expens— net of interest incom 3.1 4.1 4.3
Income tax expense (benel 1.6 2.C (2.9
Net income (loss 2. 3.4 (3.6)

Fiscal 2009 Compared to Fiscal 2008

Net Sale:. Net sales in fiscal 2009 increased by $1,529,00Q,1%, to $134,866,000 compared to net salésdal 2008 of $133,337,000.
This increase was primarily due to sales to newoeners resulting from our acquisitions during fis2@09. We experienced a significant
decrease in our net sales in the fourth quartéiscédl 2009. Our net sales in the fourth quartdfisafal 2009 decreased by $5,973,000, or 16
compared to the same period of the prior yearctifig the impact of changes in the purchasing aturm patterns of our existing customers
addition to the impact of general economic condgicsales in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2009 wiemgacted by (i) an inventory reduction
program initiated by one of our largest customerhée fourth quarter of fiscal 2009, which we bedigesulted in a temporary reduction in s
to that customer and (ii) by a significant dropséles to a customer as a result of an understatalighglay shipments because of an uncertain
financial future. Although we expect our businassdntinue uninterrupted with this customer, theae be no assurance that actions taken by
other interested parties, including consumers, natlhave a continuing detrimental effect on olatrenship or level of continuing business
with this customer.
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Cost of Goods Sold/Gross Profitost of goods sold as a percentage of net salesatest in fiscal 2009 to 70.7% from 72.1% in fis2@08,
resulting in a corresponding increase in our gpoefit percentage of 1.4% to 29.3% in fiscal 208 27.9% in fiscal 2008. This increase in
our gross profit percentage was primarily dueijathg lower per unit manufacturing costs resultiram the increased utilization of our Mex
and Malaysia facilities, and (ii) the reversal d§B307,000 accrual related to the customs dulzsis during fiscal 2009, for which the accr
was initially recorded during fiscal 2008. Thesergases were partially offset by increases in reperiod costs, and a reduction in scrap
metal prices that resulted in less revenue forsoteip metal during fiscal 2009 compared to fis€@8I& Our gross profit in the fourth quarter of
fiscal 2009 decreased by $5,256,000, or 46.6%, eoeapto the same period of the prior year primaglecting (i) customer purchasing and
return patterns, (ii) a reduction in scrap metédq® that resulted in less revenue for our scrajalirend (iii) increases in certain period costs in
the fourth quarter of fiscal 2009 compared to #@e period of the prior year.

General and Administrativé©ur general and administrative expenses for fi208P were $19,479,000, which represents a decodase
$267,000, or 1.4%, from general and administragixgenses for fiscal 2008 of $19,746,000. The deergageneral and administrative
expenses was primarily due to the following: (L8000 of decreased audit and other professiomatss fees, (i) $544,000 of decreased
stock-based compensation, and (i) $393,000 ofetexed severance and other related expenses. ddersases in general and administrative
expenses were partially offset by a net increaskl(#46,000 of expense recorded due to the chandes value of foreign exchange peso
contracts during fiscal 2009.

Sales and MarketingOur sales and marketing expenses for fiscal 200®ased $1,786,000, or 51.7%, to $5,242,000 $8m56,000 for
fiscal 2008. This increase was due primarily toftilowing: (i) $723,000 of increased compensatomense due primarily to the addition of
employees which resulted from our acquisition ofA(ii) $479,000 of increased trade show and adsieg expenses, (i) $211,000 of
increased travel-related expenses, and (iv) $20490creased consulting fees.

Research and DevelopmeOur research and development expenses increasg2By000, or 57.3%, to $1,993,000 in fiscal 20@@rir
$1,267,000 in fiscal 2008. The increase was primeaeiated to an increase in compensation, comgufeées and travel-related expenses in
connection with our heavy duty after-market initiatrelated to alternators and starters.

Impairment of Goodwil. During fiscal 2009, we determined that goodwidlsifully impaired as the carrying value of $2,190,0ncluding the
fourth quarter adjustment of $100,000, exceededntipdied fair value of zero, and therefore we relaat a pre-tax, non-cash goodwill
impairment charge of $2,191,000 as disclosed irCiiesolidated Statements of Operations in the dnatter of fiscal 2009. After recording
the impairment charge, we had no goodwill remairingur Consolidated Balance Sheet as of Marcl2@19.

Interest ExpenstOur interest expense, net of interest income sicali 2009 was $4,196,000. This represents a decoé&d,252,000 over
interest expense, net of interest income, of $50BMIn fiscal 2008. This decrease was primarilsitaitable to a lower balance of receivables
being factored during fiscal 2009 compared to fi2€®8. During fiscal 2009, interest expense inedron the higher average outstanding
balances on our line of credit was offset by loimégrest rates.

Income Tav. In fiscal 2009, we recorded income tax expensk20589,000 compared to income tax expense of $60 in fiscal 2008. This
decrease was primarily due to lower pre-tax incpamtly offset by higher book income tax rates stél 2009 compared to the prior year.

Fiscal 2008 Compared to Fiscal 2007

Net Sale:. Net sales in fiscal 2008 increased by $8,747,00@,0%, excluding the positive impact on ourdis2007 net sales of $11,733,000
associated with the termination of our POS arrareggrim August 2006. Including the impact of therigration of our POS arrangement, our
net sales decreased by $2,986,000 or 2.2%, to $38800 from the net sales in fiscal 2007 of $128,300.

Cost of Goods Sold/Gross Profitost of goods sold as a percentage of net salesatesd in fiscal 2008 to 72.1% from 84.4% in fiR207,
resulting in a corresponding increase in our gpoefit percentage to 27.9% in fiscal 2008 from 2.1 fiscal 2007. The increase in the gross
profit percentage in fiscal 2008 was primarily dae
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the lower per unit manufacturing costs resultimpfimprovements in manufacturing efficiencies atMexican facility, the transition of
majority of remanufacturing to our Mexico facilitgnd the greater utilization of production at operation in Malaysia. In addition, our gross
profit percentage was favorably impacted by theese in customer allowances which had a positingct on our net sales in fiscal 2008.
Our gross profit increase was partly offset byrémording of customs duties accrual of $1,836,00fscal 2008.

General and Administrativéur general and administrative expenses in fise@B2vere $19,746,000, which represents an inci@ase
$1,561,000, or 8.6%, from the general and admatise expense in fiscal 2007 of $18,185,000. Tinisease was primarily due to increases in
the following expenses: (i) $514,000 of increasedksance and other related expenses, (i) $1,00hDcreased audit fees, (i) $466,000 of
increased general and administrative expenses alexico facility due primarily to the ramp-up oftavities at that facility, (iv) $109,000 of
increased expenses related to the closure andeask-bf our warehouse facility in Nashville, TNd gwm) $137,000 of expense related to listing
of our common stock on NASDAQ. In addition, our geal and administrative expenses in fiscal 2007%weduced by the recording of the
shareholder note receivable of $682,000 for reirsdent of indemnification costs. These increaseggireral and administrative expenses
were partly offset by a decrease of (i) $505,008tatk option compensation expense under SFAS BB (revised 2004), “Share-Based
Payment”, (ii) $152,000 as a result of gain recdrdee to the changes in the net effect of the §oreixchange contracts, (iii) $211,000 as a
result of net realized gain recorded from the repl@n of short-term investments for the paymendefierred compensation liabilities in the
fourth quarter of fiscal 2008, and (iv) $685,00@¢ansulting expenses primarily related to the S@Xti®n 404 requirements.

Sales and Marketingur sales and marketing expenses in fiscal 20082dsed $660,000 to $3,456,000 from $4,116,00Gaafi2007. This
decrease was due primarily to decreases in (i) eosgtion related employee benefits of $398,000pdinearily to a reduction in head count,
(i) travel and entertainment expenses of $64,0@Pmarketing expenses of $174,000, and (iv) ediisg expenses of $72,000 related to
changeover expenses incurred in fiscal 2007 in ection with a new customer.

Research and DevelopmeOur research and development expenses decreagd®0y)00, or 13.0%, to $1,267,000 in fiscal 20@8rfr
$1,457,000 in fiscal 2007. This decrease was pilyndwe to higher expenses incurred in fiscal 26€ldted to the development of new
diagnostic equipment for our Mexico and Malaysiailftes.

Interest ExpenstOur interest expense, net of interest income sicafi 2008 was $5,448,000. This represents a decoé&l65,000 over
interest expense, net of interest income, of $5IBin fiscal 2007. This decrease was primarilsilaitable to a decrease in the average
outstanding balance on our line of credit and therelase in short-term interest rates. This decwasegartly offset by the increase in the
average days over which the receivables were fadtas a result of the extended payment terms we prwided certain of our customers.

Income Tav. In fiscal 2008, we recognized income tax exparisk?,696,000 compared to a income tax benefit3pd32,000 in fiscal 2007. At
March 31, 2008, we no longer had any federal netatpng loss carry forward. As a result, we anttgpthat our future cash flow will be more
significantly impacted by our future tax payments.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Overview

At March 31, 2009, we had negative working capfe$3,569,000, a ratio of current assets to cuiiahilities of 0.94:1, and cash of $452,0i
compared to working capital of $6,097,000, a raficurrent assets to current liabilities of 1.lafd cash of $1,935,000 at March 31, 2008.
change in working capital from March 31, 2008 israrily the result of increased short-term borroggrunder our line of credit, which were
primarily used to acquire certain assets of AIM &@P and to offset the reduction in cash resowtaego one of our customer’s suspension of
its receivable discount program to factor our actsueceivable, which was partially offset by desed inventory due to our concerted effort
to reduce inventory levels and by higher net sales.

We have primarily financed our operations through wse of our Revolving Loan and the receivableadiat programs we have with certain of
our customers. In May 2008, one of these custosiegggended the use of its receivable discount pragoat has advised us that it may be in a
position to re-open the use of this program
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sometime in the future. We cannot provide assurématethe program will be reinstated or that a Einprogram with another customer will be
established or continued.

We believe amounts available under our Credit Agnexgt and our cash and short term investments oth &i@nsufficient to satisfy our expec
future working capital needs, capital lease comraitta and capital expenditure obligations over #h twelve months.

Cash Flows

Net cash used in operating activities during fi@09 and 2008 was $11,078,000 and $10,039,008ectgely. The most significant chanc
in operating activities during fiscal 2009 compatediscal 2008 were the reduction in cash resaidiee to one of our customer’s suspension
of its receivable discount program to factor ouraamts receivable partly offset by our concertédréef to reduce our nooere inventory level

Net cash used in investing activities was $9,846 &td $1,476,000 during fiscal 2009 and 2008, wsmdy. The change primarily result
from the acquisition of certain assets of AIM of@84,000, less the $500,000 holdback, the acquisdf certain assets of SCP of $4,320,000,
less the $300,000 holdback and $722,000 note payal8CP related to the acquisition. In additiar, @apital expenditures during fiscal 2009
of $2,317,000 primarily related to IT equipment amghrovements at our Torrance, California and affshfacilities. During fiscal 2008, we
incurred capital expenditures of $1,962,000, winehe primarily related to our Mexican facility angére partly offset by the redemption of
short-term investments for the payment of defecmupensation liabilities.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $32,000 and $12,821,000 during fiscal 2009 and 26&ectively. During fiscal 2009, v
borrowed amounts under our Revolving Loan to fimatihe acquisitions, and to offset the reductiocaish resources due to one of our
customer’s suspension of its receivable discoungnam to factor our accounts receivable. In fi@08, we completed a private placement of
our common stock and warrants, which was substhntised to pay down borrowings under the line refdit and accounts payable balances.

Capital Resources
Equity Transactior

On May 23, 2007, we completed the sale of 3,64159@es of our common stock and warrants to puechpdo 546,283 shares of our
common stock at an exercise price of $15.00 peesfihis sale was made through a private placetoeattcredited investors. The warrants
callable by us if, among other things, the voluneéghited average trading price of our common stecfueted by Bloomberg L.P. is greater
than $22.50 for 10 consecutive trading days. Icafi2008, we charged approximately $3,156,000 ed #nd costs related to this private
placement to additional paid-in-capital. The faatue of the warrants at the date of grant was estichto be approximately $4.44 per warrant
using the Black-Scholes pricing model. The follogveissumptions were used to calculate the fair valltlee warrants: dividend yield of 0%;
expected volatility of 40.01%; risk-free intereatea of 4.58%; and an expected life of five years.

Line of Credit

On October 24, 2007, we entered into an amendedemtated credit agreement (the “Credit Agreemewitl) our bank. Under the Credit
Agreement, the bank continues to provide us witkvalving loan (the “Revolving Loan”) of up to $880,000, including obligations under
outstanding letters of credit, which may not exc@@00,000. In January 2008, we entered into aendment to the Credit Agreement with
our bank. This amendment extended the expiratita afeour credit facility to October 1, 2009.

In May 2008, our Credit Agreement was further angehtb allow us to, among other things, borrow u$16,000,000 under the Revolving
Loan for the purpose of consummating certain péeahificquisitions. The aggregate consideration feaidny single permitted acquisition may
not exceed $7,500,000, and the aggregate consatepid for all permitted acquisitions made durihg term of the Credit Agreement may
not exceed $20,000,000.
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In August 2008, we entered into a third amendmeitié¢ Credit Agreement, which increased the amotiatedit available under the Revolv
Loan from $35,000,000 to $40,000,000. Pursuarttederms of these amendments, we may continueetthesentire available amount under
the Revolving Loan for working capital and gene@aiporate purposes.

In February 2009, we entered into a fourth amendrtethe Credit Agreement with our bank. This ammadt extended the expiration of the
credit facility to April 15, 2010. Among other tlgs, this amendment also increased the fee paysghls to our bank by 0.125% per annum on
the unutilized amount of Revolving Loan and inceshthe applicable margin rate of the Revolving Loan

In April 2009, we entered into a fifth amendmenthe Credit Agreement with our bank. This amendmamiong other things, allows us to use
usance (deferred payment) letters of credit andireg us to instruct that any purchaser of our astoreceivable is to remit payments directly
to our bank.

At March 31, 2009, we were not in compliance wigntain of our Credit Agreement covenants requitindo: (i) achieve EBITDA of not less
than $4,500,000 for the fiscal quarter ended M&®1;h2009 and (ii) achieve total EBITDA of not lekan $19,500,000 for the four consecutive
fiscal quarters ended March 31, 2009. In June 2608bank provided us with a waiver of these comtdafaults.

In addition, in conjunction with the June 2009 veaiwve entered into a sixth amendment to the Chgglikcement, dated as of June 8, 2009,
with our bank. This amendment, among other thifiysreated a borrowing reserve in the amount ¢6@7,000 to be reserved by our bank
against our Revolving Loan commitment amount arallalle in the event our largest customer is ngésrhaving the receivables owed to us
factored; (ii) amended our EBITDA covenant to regqu minimum EBITDA of not less than $2,900,000tfoe fiscal quarter ending June 30,
2009 and to $4,000,000 for each fiscal quartertdter; (iii) amended our trailing twelve month HBIA covenant to require a minimum
trailing twelve month EBITDA of not less than: 32,500,000 for the four consecutive fiscal quarsrding June 30, 2009, (b) $11,250,000
for the four consecutive fiscal quarters endingtSmper 30, 2009, (c) $12,500,000 for the four cousee fiscal quarters ending December
2009 and (d) $17,000,000 for the four consecuiiseaf quarters ending March 31, 2010 and thereadtet (iv) amended our leverage ratio
covenant to require that we maintain a leverage odtnot greater than (x) 2.25 to 1.00 for thedisquarter ending June 30, 2009, (y) 2.50 to
1.00 for the fiscal quarter ending September 3092@nd (z) 2.00 to 1.00 for the fiscal quarteriegdecember 31, 2009 and thereafter.

The bank holds a security interest in substantalllpf our assets. At March 31, 2009, the balasfdbe Revolving Loan was $21,600,000.
There was no outstanding balance on the Revolvaaplat March 31, 2008. Additionally, we had resdr$2,201,000 of the Revolving Loan
for standby letters of credit for worker’s compeimainsurance and $128,000 reserved for commeletiglrs of credit as of March 31, 2009.
As of March 31, 2009, $16,071,000 was availablecutide Revolving Loan, and of this, $7,500,00@&erved for use in the event our largest
customer discontinues its current practice of hguaar receivables factored.

The Credit Agreement (as amended), among othegghgontinues to require us to maintain certaiarfaial covenants, including cash flow,
fixed charge coverage ratio and leverage ratioiaciddes a number of restrictive covenants, inelgdimits on capital expenditures and
operating leases, prohibitions against additioméébtedness, payment of dividends, pledge of aaaétfoans to officers and/or affiliates. In
addition, it is an event of default under the Crédjreement if Selwyn Joffe is no longer our CEO.

Borrowings under the Revolving Loan bear inter¢gtither the bank’s reference rate or London IraekbOffered Rate (“LIBOR”) as selected
by us for the applicable interest period plus,ankecase, an applicable margin which is determiuedterly on a prospective basis as below:

Leverage Ratio as of the End of the Fiscal Quarte
Greater Than or

Base Interest Rate Selected by us Equal to 1.50 to 1.0 Less Than 1.50 to 1.C
Bank's Reference Rate, pl 1.25% per yea 1.0% per yea
Bank's LIBOR Rate, plu: 2.5% per yea 2.25% per yea
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Our ability to comply in future periods with thefincial covenants in the Credit Agreement, as aegnalill depend on our ongoing financial
and operating performance, which, in turn, willdubject to economic conditions and to financiakibass and other factors, many of which
beyond our control and will be substantially departcbn the selling prices and demand for our prtsjwtistomer demands for marketing
allowances and other concessions, raw materia$,cast our ability to successfully implement ouer@l business strategy, including
acquisitions. If a violation of any of the coversmntcurs in the future, we would attempt to obtaimaiver or an amendment from our bank.
assurance can be given that we would be succeasghik regard.

Receivable Discount Prograr

Our liquidity has been positively impacted by reedie discount programs we have established witlaicecustomers and their respective
banks. Under these programs, we have the optisaltthose customers’ receivables to those banasiatcount to be agreed upon at the time
the receivables are sold. The discount under tloigrpm averaged 4.9% during fiscal 2009 and hasvalll us to accelerate collection of
receivables aggregating $72,299,000 by an avera@t3odays. While these arrangements have redusediarking capital needs, there can be
no assurance that these programs will continukerfuture. These programs resulted in interestresgef $3,089,000 during fiscal 2009.
Interest expense resulting from these programsadvogtease if interest rates rise, if utilizatidrttiese discounting arrangements expands or if
the discount period is extended to reflect moreffakile payment terms to customers.

In May 2008, one of these customers suspendedstheflits receivable discount program, but hassadlvus that it may be in a position to re-
open the use of this program sometime in the fuliye cannot provide assurance that the progranbeileinstated or that a similar program
with another customer will be established or cardith

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

At March 31, 2009, we had no off-balance sheemfiirag or other arrangements with unconsolidatediesor financial partnerships (such as
entities often referred to as structured financepearcial purpose entities) established for purposéacilitating off-balance sheet financing or
other debt arrangements or for other contractusdlyow or limited purposes.

Multi-year Vendor Agreements

We have or are renegotiating long-term agreemeittsmany of our major customers. Under these agesésnwhich typically have initial
terms of at least four years, we are designatédeasxclusive or primary supplier for specifiedeggiries of remanufactured alternators and
starters. In consideration for our designation asstomer’s exclusive or primary supplier, we tylii provide the customer with a package of
marketing incentives. These incentives differ froomtract to contract and can include (i) the isseanf a specified amount of credits against
receivables in accordance with a schedule set fortthe relevant contract, (ii) support for a pautar customer’s research or marketing efforts
provided on a scheduled basis, (iii) discounts g@in connection with each individual shipmenpadduct and (iv) other marketing, research,
store expansion or product development supporths¥e also entered into agreements to purchaserceastomers’ Remanufactured Core
inventory and to issue credits to pay for that meey according to a schedule set forth in the agrents. These contracts typically require that
we meet ongoing performance, quality and fulfillmesguirements. Our contracts with major custoneagsire at various dates ranging through
December 2012. There are Remanufactured Core medidigations with certain customers that explireagious dates through July 2011.

In March 2005, we entered into an agreement wittagor customer. As part of this agreement, ourgiedion as this customer’s exclusive
supplier of remanufactured imported alternators staders was extended from February 28, 2008 te®eer 31, 2012. In addition to
customary marketing allowances, we agreed to aedné customer’s imported alternator and startendeifactured Core inventory by issuing
$10,300,000 of credits over a five-year periocthie fourth quarter of fiscal 2008, the total credd be issued was reduced to $9,940,000,
resulting from the reconciliation of the numbeRd#Emanufactured Core inventory available at custdawations. The amount of credits issued
is subject to adjustment if sales to the custoneerehse in any quarter by more than an agreedpgreentage. The customer is obligated to
purchase the Remanufactured or Used Cores in gterner’s inventory upon termination of the agreenfienany reason. Currently, this
agreement is being

33




renegotiated pursuant to the sale or combinatidwofof our customers. As of March 31, 2009 and&@®proximately $1,884,000 and
$3,623,000, respectively, of credits remain todsaiéd. As we issue credits to this customer, wabbsit a long-term core inventory deposit
account for the value of the Remanufactured Coreritory estimated to be on hand with the customdrsaibject to purchase upon termina
of the agreement, and reduce revenue by the anbgumhich the credit exceeds the estimated Rematwust Core inventory value.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005, we entereio ia five-year agreement with one of the worldigést automobile manufacturers to supply
this manufacturer with a new line of remanufactumtdrnators and starters for the United StatesGamhdian markets. We expanded our
operations and built-up our inventory to meet #guirements of this contract and incurred certaindition costs associated with this build-up.
As part of the agreement, we also agreed to ghasittistomer $6,000,000 of credits that are issseshles to this customer are made. Of the
total credits, $3,600,000 was issued during fi2€8l6 and $600,000 was issued in the each of trendeguarters of fiscal 2007, 2008, and
2009. The remaining $600,000 is scheduled to heibin the second fiscal quarter of fiscal 2010e Areement also contains other typical
provisions, such as performance, quality and foiéint requirements that we must meet, a requirethentve provide marketing support to
customer and a provision (standard in this manufact vendor agreements) granting the customerighé to terminate the agreement at any
time for any reason.

In July 2006, we entered into an agreement witbva customer to become its primary supplier of alitwrs and starters. This agreement was
amended in January 2008 to extend the contraagérrough January 31, 2011. As part of this amenrdnwe also agreed to accelerate
$2,300,000 of promotional allowances provided urilisragreement. These promotional allowances wikerwould have been earned by the
customer during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008 ¢he first quarter of fiscal 2009.

The longer-term agreements strengthen our custoeteionships and business base. However, theyredadt in a continuing concentration of
our revenue sources among a few key customersegpite a significant increase in our use of workdagital to build inventory and increase
production. This increased production causes s@amif increases in our inventories, accounts payahtl employee base, and customer
demands that we purchase their Remanufacturedi@ggetory can be a significant strain on our adddacapital. In addition, the marketing
and other allowances that we have typically graot@dcustomers in connection with these new or edpd relationships adversely impact the
near-term revenues and associated cash flows fregetarrangements. However, we believe this inarehbusiness will improve our overall
liquidity and cash flow from operations over time.

Capital Expenditures and Commitments

Our capital expenditures were $2,674,000 in fi2€49, including the capital expenditures acquinedeu capital leases. A significant portior
these expenditures relate to our IT equipment anpfdvements at our production facilities. We expraotfiscal 2010 capital expenditure to be
approximately $1.5 million. We expect to use ourkirng capital and incur additional capital leasdéigdtions to finance these capital
expenditures.
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Contractual Obligations

The following summarizes our contractual obligai@md other commitments as of March 31, 2009, aaeffect such obligations could have
on our cash flow in future periods:

Payments Due by Period

Less than 1t03 4t05 More than 5
Contractual obligations Total 1 year years years years
Capital (finance) lease obligations $ 3,208,001 $ 1,755,001 $ 1,258,00! $ 195,00( $ =
Operating lease obligations ( 14,110,00 2,664,001 5,120,00! 3,187,00! 3,139,00!
Core purchase obligations ( 3,131,00! 2,892,00! 168,00( 50,00( 21,00(
Severance agreement and releast 115,00( 115,00( — — —
Line of credit 21,600,00 21,600,00 — — —
Unrecognized tax benefits ( 128,00( — 128,00( — —
Other lon(-term obligations (6 21,685,00 9,054,00! 8,636,00! 2,581,00! 1,414,001
Total $63,977,00 $38,080,00 $15,310,00 $6,013,001 $4,574,00!

(1) Capital Lease Obligations represent amouméswhder finance leases of various types of machiexed computer equipment that are
accounted for as capital leas

(2) Operating Lease Obligations represent amadumsfor rent under our leases for office and waske facilities in California, Tennessee,
Malaysia, Singapore and Mexic

(3) Remanufactured Core Purchase Obligations represembligations to issue credits to two large agnesal smaller customers for t
acquisition of the customers’ core inventory. Ogirement with one of our major customer is beimgegetiated pursuant to the sale or
combination of two of our custome

(4) Severance agreement and release obligations repaseobligation for salaries and other relatepesmses

(5) We are unable to reliably estimate the timing afifa payments related to uncertain tax positidmsigfore, $859,000 of income tay
payable has been excluded from the table above eMenyvlong-term income taxes payable, includedwrbalance sheet, includes these
uncertain tax positions, reduced by the associaeral deduction for state tax

(6) Other Long-Term Obligations represent comreitits we have with certain customers to provide etar§ allowances in consideration
for supply agreements to provide products overfimee period.

Customs Duties

We received a request for information dated Apgil 2007 from the U.S. Bureau of Customs and BoRdetection, or CBP, concerning the
importation of products remanufactured at our Msiauy facilities. In response to the CBP’s requastpegan an internal review, with the
assistance of customs counsel, of our custom dpteeedures. During this review process, we iderttib potential exposure related to the
omission of certain cost elements in the appraisdae of used alternators and starters, which werenufactured in Malaysia and returned to
the United States since June 2002.

We recorded an accrual for $1,836,000 as of Mafg2B08, representing the estimated maximum vaitieeogprobable claim. In

February 2008, we paid approximately $278,000 ¢oGBP, which included the payment of duties, faes, interest on the value of certain
components that were used in the remanufactuteegbrtoducts shipped back to us. On May 6, 200§ aiet an additional $126,000 to the C
covering duties, fees and interest on the valuzedhin components that were used in the remanurfaof the products shipped back to us
during the period from April 1, 2007 to March 3D08. These payments reduced the accrued liabdidtgrded in connection with the claim.
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During the three months ended June 30, 2008, wavext notification from the CBP stating that thepdisclosure had been reviewed and
determined to be valid, therefore, no further pegeskare likely to be assessed and the review Weaed regarding remanufactured units shiy
back to us from Malaysia. The accrual of $1,307 ,8@8 reversed, reducing cost of goods sold foafi2009.

Iltem 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures Almut Market Risk

Our primary market risk relates to changes in ggerates and foreign currency exchange rates.éflagk is the potential loss arising from
adverse changes in market prices and rates, imgudferest rates and foreign currency exchangsr&te do not enter into derivatives or o
financial instruments for trading or speculativegmses. As our overseas operations expand, ousarto the risks associated with foreign
currency fluctuations will continue to increase.

Our primary interest rate exposure relates to otstanding line of credit and receivables discarangements, which have interest costs that
vary with interest rate movements. Our $40,000@@dit facility bears interest at variable basesatqual to the LIBOR rate or the bank’s
reference rate, at our option, plus a margin rafgeddant upon our most recently reported leverati iThis obligation is the only variable r
facility we have outstanding. Based upon the $21,@100 that was outstanding under our line of cratdiarch 31, 2009, an increase in interest
rates of 1%, would have increased our annual hetdst expense by $216,000. In addition, for ed€l0$00,000 of accounts receivable we
discount over a period of 180 days, a 1% increasetérest rates would decrease our operatingteebyl$500,000.

We are exposed to foreign currency exchange riséramt in our anticipated purchases and assetbadnilities denominated in currencies ot
than the U.S. dollar. We transact business in tfoesgn currencies which affect our operationg: balaysian ringit, the Singapore dollar, and
the Mexican peso. Our total foreign assets weré485000 and $7,517,000 as of March 31, 2009 an8,2@8pectively. In addition, as of
March 31, 2009 and 2008, we had $787,000 and $864r8spectively, due from our foreign subsidiari&ile these amounts are eliminated
in consolidation, they impact our foreign curretignslation gains and losses.

In fiscal 2009 and 2008, we have experienced imnadtgains relative to our transactions involviig tMalaysian ringit and the Singapore
dollar. Based upon our current operations relatetti¢se two currencies, a change of 10% in excheatge would result in an immaterial
change in the amount reported in our financiakstents.

Our exposure to currency risks has increased sicexpansion of our remanufacturing operatioridéxico. Since these operations will be
accounted for primarily in pesos, fluctuationshe value of the peso are expected to have a graeuad of impact on our reported results. To
mitigate the risk of currency fluctuation betwebe tJ.S. dollar and the peso, in August 2005 we éga&nter into forward foreign exchange
contracts to exchange U.S. dollars for pesos. Xkeneto which we use forward foreign exchange k@amts is periodically reviewed in light of
our estimate of market conditions and the termslangth of anticipated requirements. The use afvdéve financial instruments allows us to
reduce our exposure to the risk that the eventelat@sh outflow resulting from funding the expensiethe foreign operations will be materie
affected by changes in exchange rates. These ctsganerally expire in a year or less. Any charigésir values of foreign exchange
contracts are reflected in current period earniBgsed upon our forward foreign exchange contratéded to the peso, an increase of 10% in
exchange rates at March 31, 2009 would have inedeasr general and administrative expenses by ajppately $561,000. During fiscal
2009, we recorded an increase in general and astnaitive expenses of $1,194,000, while in fiscdl@@ve recorded a decrease in general anc
administrative expenses of $152,000 associatedthdthe forward exchange contracts.

Item 8 Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
The information required by this item is set fartithe Consolidated Financial Statements, commegnaimpage F-1 included herein.
Item 9 Changes in and Disagreements with Accountasiton Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.
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Item 9A Controls and Procedures
a. Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We conducted an evaluation required by the Seeariixchange Act of 1934, as amended (“Exchange) Aottler the supervision and with
participation of our Chief Executive Officer, Chiginancial Officer, and Chief Accounting Officef, the effectiveness of the design and
operation of our disclosure controls and procedweslefined in Rule 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) oEkehange Act, as of the end of the period
covered by this Annual Report. Based on this evelnaour Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financ@fficer, and Chief Accounting Officer
concluded that our disclosure controls and procesiwere effective.

b. Inherent Limitations Over Internal Controls

Our internal control over financial reporting issigned to provide reasonable assurance regardinghtiability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples. Management does not
expect, however, that the Company’s internal cdsitngll prevent or detect all errors and fraud. Asgntrol system, no matter how well
designed and operated, is based upon certain aisasipnd can provide only reasonable, not abschstgurance that its objectives will be
met. Further, no evaluation of internal controla paovide absolute assurance that misstatementsdreor or fraud will not occur or that all
control issues and instances of fraud, if any, withe Company have been detected.

c. Management's Report on Internal Control Over Fancial Reporting

The Company’s management is responsible for estabfj and maintaining adequate internal controt émancial reporting as defined in
Rule 13a-15(f) of the Exchange Act. Under the suipam and with the participation of our Chief Exige Officer, Chief Financial Officer,
and Chief Accounting Officer, we conducted an eatin of the effectiveness of our internal contreér financial reporting as of March 31,
2009, based on the guidelines establishddternal Control - Integrated Framewoigsued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidns
the Treadway Commission (“COSQO”). Based on theltest this evaluation, management has concludatttie Company’s internal control
over financial reporting was effective as of Magh 2009.

Ernst & Young LLP, the Company’s independent registi public accounting firm, assessed the effentise of our internal control over
financial reporting as of March 31, 2009. Ernst &g LLP, has issued an attestation report commiwith management’s assessment that is
included on page 47 of this Annual Report.

d . Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reportm

There were no changes in the Company’s internatabover financial reporting during the fourth gtex ended March 31, 2009 that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely tatenglly affect, the Company’s internal control ofi@ancial reporting.

Iltem 9B Other Information

None.
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PART Il
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpora¢ Governance

The information required by this item is incorp@aeby reference to our Definitive Proxy Statemartdnnection with our next Annual
Meeting of Stockholders (the “Proxy Statement”).

Item 11. Executive Compensation
The information required by this item is incorpaeby reference to the Proxy Statement.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial @Qvners And Management and Related Stockholder
Matters

The information required by this item is incorp@eby reference to the Proxy Statement.
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transa@ins, and Director Independence
The information required by this item is incorp@e@by reference to the Proxy Statement.
Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this item is incorp@eby reference to the Proxy Statement.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.

a. Documents filed as part of this report:

(1) Index to Consolidated Financial Statements:

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accourfings 47

Consolidated Balance She: F-1

Consolidated Statements of Operati F-2

Consolidated Statement of Sharehol’ Equity F-3

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flc F-4

Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme F-5
(2) Schedules

Schedule I— Valuation and Qualifying Accoun S1
(3) Exhibits:

Number Description of Exhibit Method of Filing

3.1 Certificate of Incorporation of the Compa Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the @amy’s

3.2 Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation of thenGmany
3.3 Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation of thenGany
3.4 Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation of then@any
3.5 Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation of thengmany
3.6 By-Laws of the Company

4.1 Specimen Certificate of the Company’s common stock
4.2 Form of Underwriter's common stock purchase warrant
4.3 1994 Stock Option Pla

4.4 Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreems

4.5 1994 Nol-Employee Director Stock Option Pl

39

Registration Statement on Form SB-2 declared éfiecn
March 22, 1994 (th“1994 Registration Statem).

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the @any’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No. 33-974@8)atted
effective on November 14, 1995 (the “1995 Regigirat
Statemer”).

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to the @amy’s Annua
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended M&th1997
(the“1997 Form 1-K").

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.4 to the @any’s Annua
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended M&3&h1998
(the“1998 Form 1-K").

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit C to the Cony’s proxy
statement on Schedule 14A filed with the SEC onéyaler 25,
2003.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to thedlB&gistration
Statement

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to thedlB&gistration
Statement

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to thedlB&gistration
Statement

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to thedlB&gistratior
Statement

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to thedlB&gistratior
Statement

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to the @amy’s Annua
Report on Form 10-KSB for the fiscal year ended dWie81,
1995.




Number

Description of Exhibit

Method of Filing

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

411

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

1996 Stock Option Pla

Rights Agreement, dated as of February 24, 199&noybetwee
the Company and Continental Stock Transfer andtTCompany,
as rights ager

2003 Long Term Incentive Plan

2004 Noi-Employee Director Stock Option Pl

Registration Rights Agreement among the Companytiae
investors identified on the signature pages thedsted as of
May 18, 2007

Form of Warrant to be issued by the Company tostors in
connection with the May 2007 Private Placen

Amendment to Lease, dated October 3, 1996, by atwiden the
Company and Golkar Enterprises, Ltd. relating tditaahal
property in Torrance, Californi

Lease Agreement, dated September 19, 1995, byetneén
Golkar Enterprises, Ltd. and the Company relatinthe
Compan’s facility located in Torrance, Californ

Agreement and Plan of Reorganization, dated agof A, 1997,
by and among the Company, Mel Marks, Richard Markd
Vincent Quek relating to the acquisition of MVR addijoh

Form of Indemnification Agreement for officers adidectors

Warrant to purchase common stock, dated April 002 by anc
between the Company and Wells Fargo Bank, National
Association

Amendment No. 1 to Warrant dated May 31, 2001, a

between the Company and Wells Fargo Bank, National
Association

Form of Employment Agreement, dated February 183208y anc
between the Company and Selwyn J

Letter Agreement, dated July 17, 2002, by and betwibe
Company and Houlihan Lokey Howard & Zukin Cap
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Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.6 to the @amy’s
Registration Statement on Form S-2 (No. 333-37¢9éc)ared
effective on November 18, 1997 (the “1997 Regigirat
Statemer”).

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.8 to the8 8&gistratior
Statement.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.9 to the @any’s
Registration Statement on FormBSiled with the SEC on April 2
2004.

Incorporated by reference to Appendix A to the Rr8xatemen
on Schedule 14A for the 2004 Annual Shareholderstivig.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to CutriReport or
Form 8-K filed on May 18, 2007.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to CuriReport on
Form ¢-K filed on May 18, 2007

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to thee@nber 31,
1996 Form 10-Q.

1997 Form 1-K. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 te
1995 Registration Statement.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.22 to tB87L.Form 10K.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.25 to tB87
Registration Statemer

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.29 to theR21(-K.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.32 to the210-K.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.42 to th8@21(-K.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.43 to th821(-K.




Number

Description of Exhibit

Method of Filing

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15*

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

Second Amendment to Lease, dated March 15, 2002eba
Golkar Enterprises, Ltd. and the Company relatimgrbperty in
Torrance, Californi:

Separation Agreement and Release, dated Februa®p3,
between the Company and Anthony So

Employment Agreement, dated April 1, 2003, betwiben
Company and Charles Yeagl|

Form of Warrant Cancellation Agreement and Reledatd
April 30, 2003, between the Company and Wells F&gok,
N.A.

Form of Agreement, dated June 5, 2002, by and testwee
Company and Sun Trust Ba

Credit Agreement, dated May 28, 2004, between thragany an
Union Bank of California, N.A.

Addendum to Vendor Agreement, dated May 8, 2004y den
AutoZone Parts, Inc. and the Comps

Employment Agreement, dated November 1, 2003, batviiee
Company and Bill Laughlil

Form of Orbian Discount Agreement between the Comzend
Orbian Corp

Form of Standard Industrial/lCommercial M-Tenant Lease
dated May 25, 2004, between the Company and Golkar
Enterprises, Ltd for property located at 530 Majplenue,
Torrance, Californit

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated February 28, 2@ddeen the
Company and Mel Mark

Build to Suit Lease Agreement, dated October 2842@monc
Motorcar Parts de Mexico, S.A. de CV, the Compamy Beatrix
Flourie Geoffroy

Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement, dated 1A
2004, between the Company and Selwyn J

Third Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as afilA,

2006, between Motorcar Parts of America, Inc. antbb Bank of
California, N.A.

41

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.44 to th821(-K.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.45 to th8210-K.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.46 to th8210-K.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.47 to th821(-K.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.38 to the210-K.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to tlwenPany’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended M&th2004
(the“2004 1(-K").

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to th8£21(-K.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to th8£21(-K.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to tA8£21(-K.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to th8£21(-K.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to Foi-K filed with
the SEC on March 29, 200

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to CutriReport or
Form 8-K filed on November 2, 2004.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to CuriReport on
Form ¢-K filed on April 25, 2005

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to CuriReport on
Form 8-K filed on April 24, 2006.




Number

Description of Exhibit

Method of Filing

10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28*

10.29

10.30

10.31

10.32

10.33

10.34

10.35

Union Bank of California, N.A. Revolving Note, ddtas of
April 10, 2006, executed by Motorcar Parts of Aroarilnc. and
Union Bank of California. N.A

Settlement Agreement and Mutual Release, Secu@diBsory
Note and Stock Pledge Agreement, all dated Jun2(,
between the Company and Mr. Richard Me

Fourth Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated asugfust 8,
2006, between Motorcar Parts of America, Inc. antbb Bank of
California, N.A.

Revolving Note, dated as of August 8, 2006, exetbteMotorca
Parts of America, Inc. and Union Bank of CaliformaA.

Amendment No. 3 to Pay-On-Scan Addendum, dated 82}
2006, between AutoZone Parts, Inc. and the Com

Amendment No. 1 to Vendor Agreement, dated Aug@seR06,
between AutoZone Parts, Inc. and Motorcar Parsnoérica, Inc.

Lease Agreement Amendment, dated October 12, 2@@6ecer
the Company and Beatrix Flourie Geffr

Fifth Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as oféober 10
2006, between Motorcar Parts of America, Inc. antbb Bank of
California, N.A.

Third Amendment to Lease Agreement, dated as oehdber 20,
2006, between Motorcar Parts of America, Inc. antk&
Enterprises, Ltd

Amendment No. 2 to Employment Agreement betweet
Company and Selwyn Jof

Sixth Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as ofd&1,
2007, between Motorcar Parts of America, Inc. antbb Bank of
California, N.A.

Side letter regarding Credit Agreement, dated M&th2007,
between Motorcar Parts of America, Inc. and UniamiBof
California, N.A.

Non-revolving Note, dated March 21, 2007, executed lmgdvtar
Parts of America, Inc. in favor of Union Bank ofl@@nia, N.A.

42

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to CuriReport or
Form 8-K filed on April 24, 2006.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to CutriReport on
Form 8-K filed on June 28, 2006.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to CuriReport or
Form 8-K filed on August 16, 2006.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to CuriReport on
Form &K filed on August 16, 200¢

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to CuriReport on
Form &K filed on August 30, 200¢

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to CurfiReport on
Form &K filed on August 30, 200¢

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to CutriReport or
Form ¢-K filed on October 20, 200!

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to CuriReport or
Form 8-K filed on November 11, 2006.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to CurfReport on
Form 8-K filed on November 27, 2006.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to CuriReport or
Form &K filed on December 7, 200

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to CutriReport or
Form 8-K filed on March 29, 2007.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to CuriReport on
Form 8-K filed on March 29, 2007.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.3 to CutriReport or
Form ¢-K filed on March 29, 2007




Number

Description of Exhibit

Method of Filing

10.36

10.37

10.38

10.39

10.40

10.41

10.42

10.43

10.44

10.45

10.46

10.47

10.48

Securities Purchase Agreement among the Companthe
investors identified on the signature pages thedsted as of
May 18, 2007

Seventh Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated dsioé 27,
2007, between Motorcar Parts of America, Inc. antbb Bank of
California, N.A.

Eighth Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated asuajust 7,
2007, between Motorcar Parts of America, Inc. antbb Bank of
California, N.A.

Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated @stober 24,
2007, between Motorcar Parts of America, Inc. antbb Bank of
California, N.A.

First Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit émgent,
dated as of January 14, 2008, between Motorcas B&America,
Inc. and Union Bank of California, N./

Revolving Note, dated as of January 14, 2008, dreldoy
Motorcar Parts of America, Inc. in favor of Uniomufik of
California, N.A.

Letter Agreement between the Company and Mervyn tdlo€h,
dated February 6, 20(

Amendment No. 3 to Employment Agreement betweer
Company and Selwyn Jof

Second Amendment to Amended and Restated Credéefgent
dated as of May 13, 2008, between Motorcar Parfsndrica,
Inc. and Union Bank of California, N./

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, datefl as
December 31, 2008, by and between the Company ang/s
Joffe

Fourth Amendment to Amended and Restated Crediégent
dated as of January 30, 2009, between the Compahyaion
Bank, N.A.

Revolving Note, dated as of January 30, 2009, dreldoy the
Company in favor of Union Bank, N./

Fifth Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit Agent,

dated as of April 6, 2009, between the Companyldmidn Bank,
N.A.
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Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to CutriReport or
Form 8-K filed on May 18, 2007.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.37 to th@2Form 10K.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.38 to tenk1(-Q filed
on August 9, 2007.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to CurfiReport on
Form 8-K filed on October 24, 2007.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to CuriReport or
Form 8-K filed on January 17, 2008.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to CuriReport on
Form 8-K filed on January 17, 2008.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to CuriReport or
Form ¢-K filed on February 6, 200t

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to CutriReport or
Form &K filed on March 27, 200¢

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to CutriReport or
Form 8-K filed on May 15, 2008.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to CutriReport on
Form 8-K filed January 7, 2009.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Quéyt€urrent
Report on Form 10-Q filed February 9, 2009. Filedehwvith.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Quéyt€urrent
Report on Form 1-Q filed February 9, 2009. Filed herewi

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to CutriReport on
Form 8-K filed April 15, 2009.




Number Description of Exhibit Method of Filing

10.49* Vendor Agreement dated as of March 31, 2009, betlee Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to CutriReport or
Company and AutoZone Parts, |i Form &K filed May 5, 2009

10.50* Core Amendment to Vendor Agreement, dated as otMat, Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to CuriReport on
2009, between the Company and AutoZone Parts Form &K filed May 5, 2009

10.51 Sixth Amendment and Waiver to Amended and Resi@tedit Filed herewith.

14.1

18.1

211

23.0

23.1

311

31.2

31.3

32.1

Agreement, dated as of June 8, 2009, between thgp&uay and
Union Bank, N.A.

Code of Business Conduct and Ett Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.48 to th@2Form 1-K.
Preferability Letter to the Company from Grant Titon LLP Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 18.1 to the26orm 1-K.
List of Subsidiarie: Filed herewith

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing Ernst  Filed herewith
& Young LLP

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing Grant Filed herewith
Thornton LLP

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant$ection 302 ¢ Filed herewith
the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 20

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuat $ection 302 of Filed herewith.
the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 20

Certification of Chief Accounting Officer pursuaiot Section 302 Filed herewith.
of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 20

Certifications of Chief Executive Officer, Chiefrfeincial Officer Filed herewith.
and Chief Accounting Officer pursuant to Sectiot @ the
Sarbanes Oxley Act of 20(

*

Portions of this exhibit have been granted confidéitreatment by the SE(
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 18{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regidthas duly caused this report to be signed
on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duthaiized.
MOTORCAR PARTS OF AMERICA, INC

Dated: June 15, 200 By: /s/ David Lee
David Lee
Chief Financial Officer

Dated: June 15, 200 By: /s/ Kevin Daly
Kevin Daly
Chief Accounting Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xga Act of 1934, this Report on Form 10-K has Imgned by the following persons on
behalf of the Registrant in the capacities andhendates indicated:

/s/ Selwyn Joffe Chief Executive Officer and Direct June 15, 200
Selwyn Joffe (Principal Executive Officer)
/s/ David Lee Chief Financial Officer June 15, 2009
David Lee (Principal Financial Officer)
/s/ Kevin Daly Chief Accounting Office June 15, 200
Kevin Daly (Principal Accounting Officer)
/sl Mel Marks Director June 15, 2009
Mel Marks
/s/ Scott Adelson Director June 15, 2009
Scott Adelsor
/s/ Rudolph Borne Director June 15, 200
Rudolph Bornec
/s/ Philip Gay Director June 15, 2009
Philip Gay
/s/ Duane Millet Director June 15, 200
Duane Miller
/sl Jeffrey Mirvis Director June 15, 2009

Jeffrey Mirvis
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MOTORCAR PARTS OF AMERICA, INC.

AND SUBSIDIARIES
March 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007
CONTENTS

REPORTS OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINKERMS
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF SHAREHOLDEF EQUITY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT?¢
SCHEDULE IIl— VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
The Board of Directors and Shareholders of MotoRats of America, Inc.

We have audited Motorcar Parts of America,’ imternal control over financial reporting as ofitdh 31, 2009 based on criteria establit
in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issuedtry Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of theg@ivay Commission (the COSO
criteria). Motorcar Parts of America, Inc.’s manamgat is responsible for maintaining effective indrcontrol over financial reporting, and for
its assessment of the effectiveness of internakrabaver financial reporting included in the acquenying Management’s Report on Internal
Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibilé to express an opinion on the Company’s intezaatrol over financial reporting based
on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance withsthedards of the Public Company Accounting Ovetdigltard (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet amidbtain reasonable assurance about whethetigfenternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe©tsr audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness et@st#ig and evaluating the design and operatifegtdfeness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsre® considered necessary in the circumstancesdlieve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financiapogting is a process designed to provide reasoragsierance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordantegenerally accepted accounting princip
A company’s internal control over financial repogiincludes those policies and procedures thagi€ithin to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbettransactions and dispositions of the assdtseofompany; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgeaparation of financial statements in accor@éawith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expendituree®tbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabturance regarding prevention or timely deteafainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company'’s assets that could lzareaterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, intercahtrol over financial reporting may not preventletect misstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods afgect to the risk that controls may become inadézjbecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Motorcar Parts of America, Imgaintained, in all material respects, effectivinal control over financial reporting as of
March 31, 2009, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with thedards of the Public Company Accounting Oversigdrd (United States), the consolida
balance sheet of Motorcar Parts of America, In@fddarch 31, 2009, and the related consolidatatéstents of operations, shareholders’
equity, and cash flows for the year ended March2809 and our report dated June 10, 2009 expresseadqualified opinion thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP
Los Angeles, California
June 10, 2009
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Motorcar Parts of America, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of Motorcar Parts of America, Inc. aribiliaries (the “Company”) as of
March 31, 2009 and 2008 and the related consotidsttgements of operations, shareholders’ equity cash flows for the years ended
March 31, 2009 and 2008. Our audits also inclutied?009 and 2008 financial statement schedulellistéhe Index at Item 15(a)(2). These
financial statements and schedule are the respbitysdf the Company’s management. Our respongibiB to express an opinion on these
financial statements and schedule based on outsaudi

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstais of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBlgUnited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtaasonable assurance about whether the finatataiments are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on alasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disis in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princiged and significant estimates made by managemeniglhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaeaferred to above present fairly, in all materéggpects, the financial position of Motorcar
Parts of America, Inc. and subsidiaries at March2BD9 and 2008, and the consolidated resultsedf tperations and their cash flows for the
years ended March 31, 2009 and 2008 in conformitly W.S. generally accepted accounting principfdso, in our opinion, the related 20
and 2008 financial statement schedule, when coresida relation to the basic consolidated finanstatements taken as a whole, presents
fairly in all material respects the information gath therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), Motorcar Parts of
America, Inc.’s internal control over financial m@fing as of March 31, 2009, based on criteriatdstaed in Internal Control-Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoringa@imgtions of the Treadway Commission and our tegeted June 10, 2009, expressed
an unqualified opinion thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP
Los Angeles, California
June 10, 2009
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Motorcar Parts of America, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidatednsates of operations, changes in shareholders’yeauid cash flows for the year ended
March 31, 2007 of Motorcar Parts of America, Ined @dubsidiaries (the “Company”). These financiatesinents are the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to egpran opinion on these financial statements basedr audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedgdof the Public Company Accounting Oversightfq®@nited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtaasonable assurance about whether the finatataiments are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on aliasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digids in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princiged and significant estimates made by managemenielhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our auditiges a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaenferred to above present fairly, in all mateapects, the results of operations and cash
flows for the year ended March 31, 2007 of Motorfearts of America, Inc. and subsidiaries in confrwith accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated findrstetements, the Company adopted Statement of€ielaAccounting Standards No. 123(R)
Share-Based Paymentising the modified prospective transition methsdf April 1, 2006.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forng@ingpinion on the basic financial statements taea whole. Schedule Il is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a reguyirart of the basic financial statements. Thigdale has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic firerstatements for the year ended March 31, 20@7 iarour opinion, is fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic finadrgti@ements taken as a whole.

As described in Note 21, the Company has disclageassible underpayment of duties payable to tie Oustoms and Border Protection.

/s/ GRANT THORNTON LLP
Irvine, California

June 28, 2007 (except for
Note 21 as to which the de

is October 15, 2007)
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MOTORCAR PARTS OF AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets
March 31, 2009 and 2008

ASSETS
Current assett
Cash
Shor-term investment
Accounts receivabl— net
Inventory— net
Inventory unreturne
Deferred income taxe
Prepaid expenses and other current a:
Total current asse
Plant and equipmer— net
Long-term core inventor
Long-term core inventory depos
Long-term accounts receivak
Long-term deferred income tax
Intangible asset— net
Other asset

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl
Note payable
Accrued liabilities
Accrued salaries and wag
Accrued worker compensation clainm
Income tax payabl
Line of credit
Other current liabilitie:
Current portion of capital lease obligatic
Total current liabilities
Deferred income, less current porti
Deferred core revent
Deferred gain on se-leasebacl
Other liabilities
Capitalized lease obligations, less current por
Total liabilities
Commitments and Contingenci
Shareholde’ equity:

Preferred stock; par value $.01 per share, 5,000s88res authorized; none iss|
Series A junior participating preferred stock; patue $.01 per share, 20,000 shares authorize@ non

issued

Common stock; par value $.01 per share, 20,000s886:s authorized; 11,962,021 and 12,070,5
shares issued and outstanding at March 31, 2002@0®| respectivel

Additional paic-in capital
Additional paic-in capita-warrant
Shareholder note receival
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) inc¢
Retained earnings (accumulated defi
Total shareholde’ equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

2009 2008
$ 452,000 $ 1,935,00
335,00( 373,000
11,121,00 2,789,001
27,923,00 32,707,00
4,708,001 4,124,001
8,277,001 5,657,001
1,355,001 1,608,00!
54,171,00 49,193,00
13,997,00 15,996,00
62,821,00 50,808,00
24,451,00 22,477,00
— 767,000
989,00( 1,357,001
2,564,001 —
595,00 810,00(
$159,588,00  $141,408,00
$ 24,507,00 $ 32,401,00
722,00 —
1,451,00! 2,200,001
3,162,001 3,396,001
1,895,001 2,042,001
1,158,001 392,00
21,600,00 —
1,624,001 954,00
1,621,00! 1,711,000
57,740,00 43,096,00
— 122,00(
5,934,001 2,927,001
843,00( 1,340,001
587,001 265,000
1,401,00 2,565,001
66,505,00 50,315,00
120,00 121,00(
92,459,00 92,663,00
1,879,00 1,879,00!
— (682,00)
(1,984,001 360,00(
609,00 (3,248,00)
93,083,00 91,093,00
$159,588,00  $141,408,00

The accompanying notes to consolidated financé#éstents are an integral part hereof.
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MOTORCAR PARTS OF AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Operations
Years Ended March 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007

Net sales
Cost of goods sol
Gross profi
Operating expense
General and administrati\
Sales and marketir
Research and developm
Impairment of goodwil
Total operating expens
Operating income (lost
Other expense (income
Interest expens
Interest incomt
Income (loss) before income tax expense (ber
Income tax expense (benel
Net income (loss

Basic net income (loss) per shi
Diluted net income (loss) per sh

Weighted average number of shares outstan:
Basic

Diluted

2009

2008

2007

$134,866,00 $133,337,00 $136,323,00
95,319,00 96,117,00 115,040,00
39,547,00 37,220,000  21,283,00
19,479,00 19,746,000  18,185,00
5,242,001 3,456,001 4,116,001
1,993,001 1,267,001 1,457,001
2,191,001 _ _
28,905,00 24,469,00 _ 23,758,00
10,642,00 12,751,00 (2,475,001
4,215,001 5,514,001 5,996,00!
(19,000 (66,000 (83,000
6,446,001 7,303,001 (8,388,001
2,589,00! 2,696,001 (3,432,001
$ 3,857,000 $ 4,607,000 $ (4,956,000
$ 03 $ 04C $ (0.5%)
$ 03 $ 03¢ $ (0.5%)
11,995,62 11,522,32 8,348,06!
12,086,12 11,808,21 8,348,06!

The accompanying notes to consolidated financiéstents are an integral part hereof.
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MOTORCAR PARTS OF AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Shareholders’ Equity
For the years ended March 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007

Additional Paid- Additional Paid- Accumulated Other Retained Earnings
Common Stock in Capital in Capital Shareholder Note Comprehensive (Accumulated Comprehensive
Shares Amount  Common Stock Warrants Receivable Income (Loss ) Deficit) Total Income (Loss)
Balance at March 31, 20( 8,316,10! $ 83,00 $ 54,326,000 $ — 3 — % 85,00 $ (2,899,00)) $51,595,00!
Exercise of option 57,017 1,00C 293,00( — — — — 294,00(
Tax benefit from employe:
stock options exercise — — 172,00( — — — — 172,00(
Impact of tax benefit on
APIC pool — — (107,000 — — — — (107,000
Compensation recognizec
under employee stock
plans — — 1,557,001 — — — — 1,557,001
Shareholder note receivat — — — — (682,00() — — (682,00()
Unrealized gain on
investment: — — — — — 82,00( — 82,000 $ 82,00(
Foreign currency translati — — — — — (127,000 — (127,000 (127,000
Net loss — — — — — — (4,956,00) (4,956,000 (4,956,001
Comprehensive Los $ (5,001,000
Balance at March 31, 20( 8,373,12:  84,00( 56,241,00 — (682,00() 40,00( (7,855,00) 47,828,00
Exercise of option 55,524 1,00(C 262,00( — — — — 263,00(
Tax benefit from employe:
stock options exercise — — 162,00( — — — — 162,00(
Impact of tax benefit on
APIC pool — — (44,000 — — — — (44,000
Compensation recognizec
under employee stock
plans — — 1,052,001 — — — — 1,052,001
Common stock and
warrants issued upon
PIPE offering, net of
expense: 3,641,90¢  36,00( 34,990,000 1,879,001 36,905,00
Unrealized loss on
investment: — — — — — (120,000 — (120,000 $ (120,000
Foreign currency translati — — — — — 440,00( — 440,00( 440,00(
Net income — — — — — — 4,607,00! 4,607,001 4,607,001
Comprehensive Incorr $ 4,927,000
Balance at March 31, 20( 12,070,55 121,00( 92,663,00! 1,879,001 (682,00() 360,00( (3,248,00) 91,093,00
Compensation recognized
under employee stock
plans — — 508,00( — — — — 508,00(
Retirement of common
stock in satisfaction of
shareholder note
receivable (108,539 (1,000 (712,000) 682,00( (31,000
Unrealized loss on
investment: — — — — — (64,000 — (64,000 $ (64,000
Foreign currency translati — — — — — (2,280,001) — (2,280,000 (2,280,001)
Net income — — — — — — 3,857,00! 3,857,001 3,857,001
Comprehensive Incomr $ 1,513,001
Balance at March 31, 20( 11,962,02 $120,00( $ 92,459,000 $ 1,879,000 $ — 3 (1,984,000 $ 609,00( $93,083,00

The accompanying notes to consolidated financé#éstents are an integral part hereof.
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MOTORCAR PARTS OF AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended March 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007

2009 2008 2007
Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income (loss $ 3,857,000 $ 4,607,000 $ (4,956,00i)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to @meshcused in operating activitie
Depreciation and amortizatic 3,136,00! 2,960,001 2,323,00!
Impairment of goodwil 2,191,00! — —
Amortization of intangible asse 326,00( — —
Amortization of deferred gain on s-leasebacl (521,000 (518,0010) (518,000
Provision for inventory reserwvi 36,00( 1,017,001 379,00(
Provision for (recovery of) customer payment diperecies 915,00( (294,000 (71,000
Provision for doubtful accoun 225,00( 124,00( 175,00(
Deferred income taxe (2,252,001 1,571,001 (3,444,000
Shar-based compensation expel 508,00( 1,052,001 1,557,001
Impact of tax benefit on APIC po — 44,00( 107,00(
Shareholder note receivat — — (682,000
Gain on redemption of shi-term investmen — (211,000 —
Loss on disposal of ass¢ 4,00( 45,00( —
Changes in current assets and liabilit
Accounts receivabl (9,789,001 (1,127,001 11,538,00
Inventory 6,833,00! (1,103,001 (936,000
Inventory unreturne (584,000 (238,000) (2,938,001
Income tax receivabl — 1,675,001 (1,668,001
Prepaid expenses and other current a 369,00( 296,00( (949,000
Other asset 207,00( (301,000) (97,000
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit (10,179,00) (10,839,00) 21,702,00
Income tax payabl 870,00( 137,00( (738,000
Credit due custome — — (1,793,001
Deferred core revent 3,007,00! 1,352,001 1,575,001
Long-term accounts receivak 767,00( — —
Long-term core inventor (9,894,000 (9,082,001 (8,670,001
Long-term core inventory deposi (1,974,001 (860,000 (20,791,00)
Other liabilities 864,00( (346,000 (418,000
Net cash used in operating activit (11,078,00) (10,039,00) (9,313,001
Cash flows from investing activitie
Purchase of property, plant and equipn (2,317,001 (1,962,001 (5,887,001
Purchase of business (7,462,001 — —
Change in short term investme (67,000 486,00( (117,000
Net cash used in investing activiti (9,846,000 (1,476,001 (6,004,001
Cash flows from financing activitie
Borrowings under line of crec 52,310,00 48,700,00 50,636,00
Repayments under line of cre (30,710,00) (71,500,00) (34,136,00)
Payments on capital lease obligatis (1,868,001 (1,664,001 (1,531,001
Exercise of stock optior — 262,00( 294,00(
Excess tax benefit from employee stock options@sed — 162,00( 172,00(
Proceeds from issuance of common stock and war — 40,061,00 —
Stock issuance cos — (3,156,001 —
Impact of tax benefit on APIC po — (44,000 (107,000
Net cash provided by financing activiti 19,732,00 12,821,00 15,328,000
Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢ (291,000 280,00( (62,000
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equis (1,483,000 1,586,001 (51,000
Cash and cash equivale— Beginning of perioc 1,935,001 349,00( 400,00(
Cash and cash equivale— End of perioc $ 452,000 $ 1,935000 $ 349,00
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow informat
Cash paid (received) during the period
Interest $ 4,048,000 $ 5,421,000 $ 5,807,00!
Income taxe: 3,404,00! (1,344,000 1,995,001
Non-cash investing and financing activiti
Property acquired under capital le: $ 357,000 $ 743,000 $ 371,00(
Holdback on purchase of busines 800,00( — —
Note payable on purchase of busin 722,00( — —



Retirement of common stock in satisfaction of shalder note receivab 682,00(

The accompanying notes to consolidated financé#éstents are an integral part hereof.
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MOTORCAR PARTS OF AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
for the years ended March 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007

1. Company Background and Organization

Motorcar Parts of America, Inc. and its subsidiafthe “Company” or “MPA”) remanufacture and distrie alternators and starters for
imported and domestic cars and light trucks. Thiepacement parts are sold for use on vehicles iaft&l vehicle purchase. These automo
parts are sold to automotive retail chain storesvaarehouse distributors throughout the UnitedeStand Canada and to a major automobile
manufacturer.

The Company obtains used alternators and stademsnonly known as Used Cores, primarily from itstomers (retailers) as trade-ins. It also
purchases Used Cores from vendors (core brokehng)rétailers grant credit to the consumer wherusiggl part is returned to them, and the
Company in turn provides a credit to the retailgoureturn to the Company. These Used Cores agssential material needed for the
remanufacturing operations. The Company has reraatwrfng, warehousing and shipping/receiving openatfor alternators and starters in
Mexico, California, Singapore and Malaysia. In didah, the Company utilizes third party warehousstriiution centers in Edison, New Jersey
and Springfield, Oregon.

In October 2008, the Company established a whaellyedl subsidiary incorporated in Canada, MotorcatsRd Canada, Inc. This new
subsidiary is expected to provide sales and marfestervices to the Company. Currently, this subsydiloes not have assets or results of
operations.

The Company operates in one business segment ptitsuatatement of Financial Accounting Standat8&AS”) No. 131 Disclosures about
Segments of Enterprise and Related Information

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidatior

The accompanying consolidated financial statemiatade the accounts of Motorcar Parts of Ameriona,and its wholly owned subsidiaries,
MVR Products Pte. Ltd., Unijoh Sdn. Bhd., Motor&arts de Mexico, S.A. de C.V. and Motorcar Part€afiada, Inc. All significant inter-
company accounts and transactions have been etedina

Reclassifications

Certain items in the Consolidated Balance Shedhfofiscal year ended March 31, 2008 have bedassitied to conform to fiscal 2009
classifications.

Cash

The Company maintains cash balances in local ccigeiin Singapore and Malaysia and in local and JaBar currencies in Mexico for use
by the facilities operating in those foreign coiggr The balances in these foreign accounts trigusiato U.S. dollars at March 31, 2009 and
2008 were $198,000 and $278,000, respectively.

Accounts Receivabl

The allowance for doubtful accounts is developeskbaupon several factors including customer copditity, historical write-off experience
and any known specific issues or disputes whicktesd of the balance sheet date. Accounts receiablwritten off only when all collection
attempts have failed. The Company does not requitateral for accounts receivable.

The Company has receivable discount programs that heen established with certain customers amdréspective banks. Under these
programs, the Company has the option to sell tbase®mers’ receivables to those banks at a distoure agreed upon at the time the
receivables are sold. Once the customer choosehwhistanding invoices are going to be made adailr factoring, the Company can
accept or decline the bundle of invoices providdtk factoring agreements are non-recourse, and foaehot be reclaimed by the customer or
its bank after the related invoices have been fadto
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Inventory
Nor-core Inventory

Non-core inventory is comprised of non-core raw matsrithe non-core value of work in process andchtrecore value of finished goods.
Used Cores, the Used Core value of work in proaessthe Remanufactured Core portion of finisheddgare classified as long-term core
inventory as described below under the caption §-tarm Core Inventory.”

Non-core inventory is stated at the lower of cost arket. The cost of non-core inventory approximatesrage historical purchase prices paid,
and is based upon the direct costs of materiabanallocation of labor and variable and fixed oeath costs. The cost of non-core inventory is
evaluated at least quarterly during the fiscal yeat adjusted as necessary to reflect current loiveost or market levels. These adjustments
are determined for individual items of inventonthvin each of the three classifications of non-doxentory as follows:

Non-core raw materials are recorded at average costhvidibased on the actual purchase price of ratenadés on hand. The average co
updated quarterly. This average cost is used intrentory costing process and is the basis farcation of materials to finished goods
during the production process.

Non-core work in process is in various stages otlpction, is on average 50% complete and is vadti&®d% of the cost of a finished good.
Non-core work in process inventory historically quises less than 3% of the total non-core invenbaiance.

Finished goods cost includes the average costrmtonee raw materials and allocations of labor aadable and fixed overhead. The
allocations of labor and variable and fixed ovetheasts are determined based on the average astiaf the production facilities over the
prior twelve months which approximates normal cégadhis method prevents the distortion in cosiast twould occur during short periods
of abnormally low or high production. In additidche Company excludes certain unallocated overheell &s severance costs, duplicative
facility overhead costs, and spoilage from the dation and expenses them as period costs as eglguilFinancial Accounting Standards
Board (“FASB”) Statement No. 15Inventory Costs, an amendment of Accounting Resdautietin (“ARB”) No. 43, Chapter 4'SFAS

No. 151"). For the years ended March 31, 2009 &@B2costs of approximately $2,019,000 and $1,589,fespectively, were considered
abnormal and thus excluded from the cost calculaitd charged directly to cost of sales.

The Company records an allowance for potentiallyess and obsolete inventory based upon recenttsatesy, the quantity of inventory on-
hand, and a forecast of potential use of the irorgniThe Company reviews inventory on a monthlyibssidentify excess quantities and part
numbers that are experiencing a reduction in demargeneral, part numbers with quantities représgra one to three-year supply are
partially reserved for at rates based upon managesrjadgment and consistent with historical rat®sy part numbers with quantities
representing more than a three-year supply arevexséor at a rate that considers possible scrddignidation values and may be as high as
100% of cost if no liquidation market exists foe thart.

The quantity thresholds and reserve rates are @lgeand are based on management’s judgment anwll&dge of current and projected
industry demand. The reserve estimates may, therdfe revised if there are changes in the ovaratket for the Company’s products or
market changes that, in management’s judgment,dttha Company’s ability to sell or liquidate paiafly excess or obsolete inventory.

The Company applies the guidance provided by therBimg Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Issue No. 02Aécounting by a Customer
(Including a Reseller) for Cash Consideration Reedifrom a Vendaof‘EITF No. 02-16"), by recording vendor discountsareduction of
inventories that are recognized as a reductiomst af sales as the inventories are sold.

Inventory Unreturne(

Inventory Unreturned represents the Company’s @séinbased on historical data and prospectiverirdition provided directly by the
customer, of finished goods shipped to customesttie Company expects to be returned after thenbalsheet date. Because all cores are
classified separately as long term assets, thextowe unreturned balance includes only the addétdvafue of finished goods. The return rat
calculated based on expected returns within thmaboperating cycle of one year. As such, the edlamounts are classified in current assets.

Inventory unreturned is valued in the same mansd¢he Company’s finished goods inventory.
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Long-term Core Inventory
Long-term core inventory consists of:
» Used Cores purchased from core brokers and hétd/émtory at the Compa’'s facilities,
» Used Cores returned by the Comp’s customers and held in inventory at the Com’s facilities,

» Used Cores returned by eusers to customers but not yet returned to the @osnpre classified as Remanufactured Cores uetjl dine
physically received by the Compar

» Remanufactured Cores held in finished goods invgrabthe Compar’s facilities; anc

* Remanufactured Cores held at customer locatioaspast of finished goods sold to the customer.tRese Remanufactured Cores,
Company expects the finished good containing thmdeifactured Core to be returned under the Compaygrieral right of return poli
or a similar Used Core to be returned to the Comgrthe customer, in each case, for cre

Long-term core inventory is recorded at averag®tital purchase prices determined based on aptuahases of inventory on hand. The cost
and market value of Used Cores for which sufficieaent purchases have occurred are deemed theasatime purchase price for purchases
that are made in arms length transactions.

Long-term core inventory recorded at average histbpurchase prices is primarily made up of UsedeS for newer products related to more
recent automobile models or products for whichdhera less liquid market. The Company must putiasse Used Cores from core brokers
because its customers do not have a sufficientlgubphese newer Used Cores available for the eadange program.

Approximately 15% to 20% of Used Cores are obtainezbre broker transactions and are valued basex/erage purchase price. The avel
purchase price of Used Cores for more recent altdenmodels is retained as the cost for these (@zwds in subsequent periods even as the
source of these Used Cores shifts to the core egehprogram.

Long-term core inventory is recorded at the lowfecast or market value. In the absence of sufficienent purchases, the Company uses core
broker price lists to assess whether Used Corescasteds Used Core market value on an item byligesis. The primary reason for the
insufficient recent purchases is that the Compdrigiins most of its Used Core inventory from thetaoer core exchange program.

Commencing in the fourth quarter of fiscal 200& @ompany reclassified all of its core inventotiea long-term asset account. The
determination of the long-term classification waséxd on its view that the value of the cores iscoasumed or realized in cash during the
Company’s normal operating cycle, which is one yeamost of the cores recorded in inventory. Adiog to ARB No. 43, current assets are
defined as “assets or other resources commonlyifiiehas those which are reasonably expected tedékzed in cash or sold or consumed
during the normal operating cycle of the busine$sé Company does not believe that core inventonbgh the Company classifies as long-
term, are consumed because the credits issuedthpaaturn of Used Cores offset the amounts inebigken the Remanufactured Cores
included in finished goods were sold. The Compamgschot expect the core inventories to be consuaretithus the Company does not ex|
to realize cash, until its relationship with a aumser ends, a possibility that the Company considerste based on existing lotgAm custome
agreements and historical experience.

However, historically for approximately 4.5% ofihed goods sold, the Compasgustomer will not send the Company a Used Coobtain
the credit the Company offers under its core exghgrogram. Therefore, based on the Company’sridatestimate, the Company
derecognizes the core value for these finished gopdn sale, as the Company believes they havedeesumed and the Company has
realized cash.

The Company realizes cash for only the core exah@nggram shortfall of approximately 4.5%. Thisrstadl represents the historical
difference between the number of finished goodgd to customers and the number of Used Coresesttio the Company by customers.
The Company does not realize cash for the remajmimtjon of the cores because the credits issued thge return of Used Cores offset the
amounts invoiced when the Remanufactured Coreaded in finished goods were sold. The Company doegxpect to realize cash for the
remaining portion of these Remanufactured Coreitstelationship with a customer ends, a podityhihat the Company considers remote
based on existing long-term customer agreement$iatatical experience.
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For these reasons, the Company concluded thatnibie appropriate to classify core inventory asrgiterm asset.

Long-term Core Inventory Deposit

The long-term core inventory deposit account regmessthe value of Remanufactured Cores the Comparohased from customers, which are
held by the customers and remain on the custorpezgiises. The purchase is made through the isswdimcedits against that customer’s
receivables either on a one-time basis or ovegagea-upon period. The credits against the custemexeivable are based upon the
Remanufactured Core purchase price previously kstiad with the customer. At the same time, the Gany records the long-term core
inventory deposit for the Remanufactured Corestmsed at its cost, determined as noted under Lenng-€ore Inventory. The long-term core
inventory deposit is stated at the lower of cosharket. The cost is established at the time ofrn@saction based on the then current cost,
determined as noted under Long-term Core Inveniing. difference between the credit granted anddise of the long-term core inventory
deposit is treated as a sales allowance reducinue as required under EITF No. 01A8counting for Consideration Given by a Vendor to a
Customer (Including a Reseller of the Vendor’'s Ricid,(“EITF No. 01-9”). When the purchases are made aveagreed-upon period, the
long-term core inventory deposit is recorded atstéuime time the credit is issued to the customeathiopurchase of the Remanufactured Cores.

At least annually, and as often as quarterly, reidiations and confirmations are performed to deiee that the number of Remanufactured
Cores purchased, but retained at the customeridosaremains sufficient to support the amountsmeed in the long-term core inventory
deposit account. At the same time, the mix of Rarfetured Cores is reviewed to determine that ffggegate value of Remanufactured Ci
in the account has not changed during the repoptargpd. The Company evaluates the cost of conggmting the aggregate long-term core
inventory deposit account each quarter. If the Camyddentifies any permanent reduction in eithernbimber or the aggregate value of the
Remanufactured Core inventory mix held at the austdocation, the Company will record a reductionhe long-term core inventory deposit
account during that period.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordaitbeguidance issued by the FASB in SFAS No. &;ounting for Income Taxes
which requires the use of the liability method ofaunting for income taxes.

The liability method measures deferred income téyeapplying enacted statutory rates in effechatlialance sheet date to the differences
between the tax basis of assets and liabilitiestlagid reported amounts in the financial statemeFihe resulting asset or liability is adjusted to
reflect changes in the tax laws as they occur. ldaten allowance is provided to reduce deferredassets when it is more likely than not that
a portion of the deferred tax asset will not bdized.

The primary components of the Company’s incomeptaxision (benefit) are (i) the current liability ;efund due for federal, state and foreign
income taxes and (ii) the change in the amount@fet deferred income tax asset, including thecefif any change in the valuation
allowance.

Realization of deferred tax assets is dependemi thpp Company ability to generate sufficient future taxablednee. In evaluating this abilit
management considers the Company'’s long-term agnmesnwith each of its major customers that expineadous dates through

December 2012 and the Company’s Remanufactured fiLwchase obligations with certain customers tRpire at various dates through
July 2011. Based on management’s forecast of tmep@ay’s future operating results, management bedighat it is more likely than not that
future taxable income will be sufficient to realthe recorded deferred tax assets. Managementjeaily compares its forecasts to actual
results, and there can be no assurance that theafsted results will be achieved.

On April 1, 2007 the Company adopted the ProvismiSASB Interpretation No. 4&ccounting for Uncertainty in Income TaxgBIN 48").

Plant and Equipmen

Plant and equipment are stated at cost, less adateduepreciation and amortization. The cost ditaahs and improvements are capitalized,
while maintenance and repairs are charged to eepghen incurred. Depreciation and amortizationproeided on a straight-line basis in
amounts sufficient to relate the cost of depreeia@ssets to operations over their estimated selives Machinery and equipment are
amortized over a range from seven to ten yearsc®©&quipment and fixtures are amortized over gedrom three to ten years. Leasehold
improvements are amortized over the lives of tispeetive leases or the service lives of the leddeimprovements, whichever is shorter.
Amortization of assets recorded under capital leésecluded in depreciation expense.
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Goodwill

The Company accounts for goodwill under the guidaset forth in SFAS No. 148500dwill and Other Intangible Asset'SFAS No. 142"),
which specifies that goodwill and indefinite-livedangibles should not be amortized. The Compamjuates goodwill for impairment on an
annual basis or more frequently if events or cirstamces occur that would indicate a reductioniimviaue of the Company. Such indicators
include, but are not limited to, events or circuamses such as a significant adverse change inuiedss climate, unanticipated competition, a
loss of key personnel, adverse legal or regulademelopments, or a significant decline in the magkiee in the Company’s common stock.

Intangible Asset:

The Company’s intangible assets other than goodndlffinite-lived and amortized on a straight-lbeesis over their respective useful lives, and
are analyzed for impairment under the guidancéostt in SFAS No. 144Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Lomget Assets
(“SFAS No. 144") when and if indicators of impairmesxist.

Foreign Currency Translation

For financial reporting purposes, the functionatrency of the foreign subsidiaries is the localrency. The assets and liabilities of foreign
operations are translated into the reporting cayréb).S. dollar) at the exchange rate in effe¢hatbalance sheet date, while revenues and
expenses are translated at average exchange uaiteg the year in accordance with SFAS No.B&eign Currency TranslationThe
accumulated foreign currency translation adjustneptesented as a component of Other Comprehehsivene in the Consolidated Staten
of Shareholders’ Equity.

Revenue Recognitio

The Company recognizes revenue when performantieeb@ompany is complete and all of the followinijecia established by the Staff of the
SEC in Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 10Revenue RecognitigiSAB No. 104”), have been met:

» Persuasive evidence of an arrangement e:

» Delivery has occurred or services have been redd

» The selle’s price to the buyer is fixed or determinable,
» Collectibility is reasonably assure

For products shipped free-on-board (“FOB”) shippgaint, revenue is recognized on the date of shiinter products shipped FOB
destination, revenues are recognized on the estithtatactual date of delivery. The Company incluslépping and handling charges in its
gross invoice price to customers and classifiesdtad amount as revenue in accordance with EITF@0e10,Accounting for Shipping and
Handling Fees and Cos(“EITF No. 00-10"). Shipping and handling costs ageorded as cost of sales.

Unit value revenue is recorded based on the Compaarice list, net of applicable discounts and alloses. The Company allows customel
return slow moving and other inventory. The Compprgvides for such returns of inventory in accoawith SFAS No. 48Revenue
Recognition When Right of Return ExX(“SFAS No. 48”). The Company reduces revenue amstl @bsales for the unit value of goods sold that
are expected to be returned based on a histodatiairanalysis and information obtained from custsmabout current stock levels.

The Company accounts for revenues and cost of esalamet-of-core-value basis. Management hasrdated that the Company’s business
practices and contractual arrangements resultpnoapnately 95% of the remanufactured alternatoid starters sold being replaced by similar
Used Cores sent back for credit by customers utge€ompany’s core exchange program. Accordingly,Gompany excludes the value of
Remanufactured Cores from revenue by applying SNAS48 by analogy.

When the Company ships a product, it recognizesbéigation to accept a similar Used Core sent haaler the core exchange program by

recording a contra receivable account based uppR#&manufactured Core price agreed upon by the @ayrgind its customer. Upon receip

a Used Core, the Company grants the customer & beeed on the Remanufactured Core price billetirastores the Used Core to on-hand
inventory.
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When the Company ships a product, it invoices gedastomers for the Remanufactured Core portioth@foroduct at full Remanufactured
Core sales price. For these Remanufactured Ctre&dmpany recognizes core revenue based uporiaratesof the rate at which the
Company’s customers will pay cash for Remanufadt@eres in lieu of sending back similar Used Cdoesredits under the Company’s core
exchange program.

In addition, the Company recognizes revenue reletd&temanufactured Cores originally sold at a nafiimice and not expected to be repla
by a similar Used Core under the core exchangergnogUnlike the full price Remanufactured Cores, @ompany only recognizes revenue
from nominally priced Remanufactured Cores not etgreto be replaced by a similar Used Core serk bader the core exchange program
when the Company believes it has met all of thiefdhg criteria:

* The Company has a signed agreement with the custmwering the nominally priced Remanufactured Garet expected to be replac
by a similar Used Core sent back under the coreange program. This agreement must specify the auoftRemanufactured Cores its
customer will pay cash for in lieu of sending bacgimilar Used Core and the basis on which the naltyi priced Remanufactured Cores
are to be valued (normally the average price pendeifactured Core stipulated in the agreem

» The contractual date for reconciling the Compamgtords and customer’s records of the numbeomiimally priced Remanufactured
Cores not expected to be replaced by a similar \@s#d sent back under the core exchange programbraus the current or a prior
period.

» The reconciliation of the nominally priced Remarmtfed Cores must be completed and agreed to byustemer
e The amount must be billed to the custon

The Company has agreed in the past and may inutheefagree to buy back Remanufactured Cores. ifleeethce between the credit granted
and the cost of the Remanufactured Cores boughtibdreated as a sales allowance reducing revasiwequired under EITF No. 01-9. As a
result of the increasing level of RemanufacturedeGmuybacks, the Company now defers core revemue these customers until there is no
expectation that the sales allowances associatddReimanufactured Core buybacks from these custowidtroffset Remanufactured Core
revenues that would otherwise be recognized oreeriteria noted above have been met. At Marcl28@9 and 2008 Remanufactured Core
revenue of $5,934,000 and $2,927,000, respectivelg,deferred.

Marketing Allowances

The Company records the cost of all marketing adloges provided to its customers in accordance Rt No. 01-09. Such allowances
include sales incentives and concessions. Volumtemketing allowances related to a single exchafigeoduct are recorded as a reduction of
revenues at the time the related revenues arededar when such incentives are offered. Other ataty allowances, which may only be
applied against future purchases, are recordededuation to revenues in accordance with a scleeskti forth in the relevant contract. Sales
incentive amounts are recorded based on the véliie incentive provided. See “Note 13. Commitmetd Contingencies” for a more
complete description of all marketing allowances.

Advertising Cost:

The Company expenses all advertising costs asredufdvertising expenses for the fiscal years dridarch 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 were
$227,000, $95,000, and $201,000, respectively.

Net Income (Loss) Per Shat

Basic net income (loss) per share is computed \adidg net income (loss) by the weighted averagalmer of shares of common stock
outstanding during the period. Diluted net incomosg) per share includes the effect, if any, frbmpotential exercise or conversion of
securities, such as stock options and warrantghwiliould result in the issuance of incremental shaf common stock.
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The following presents a reconciliation of basid ailuted net income (loss) per share.

Years ended March 31

2009 2008 2007

Net income (loss $ 3,857,00 $ 4,607,001 $(4,956,001)
Basic share 11,995,62 11,522,32 8,348,06!

Effect of dilutive stock options and warral 90,50: 285,89: —
Diluted share: 12,086,12 11,808,21 8,348,06!
Net income (loss) per shal

Basic $ 0.32 $ 0.4C $ (0.59)

Diluted $ 0.32 $ 0.3¢ $ (0.59)

For the year ended March 31, 2009, the effectlatide options and warrants excludes 1,249,900omgtand 546,283 warrants with exercise
prices ranging from $6.11 to $15.00. For the yeateel March 31, 2008, the effect of dilutive optiamsl warrants excludes 294,039 options
and 546,283 warrants with exercise prices rangiogn f$11.50 to $19.13 per share. For the year ehtiedh 31, 2007, the effect of dilutive
options and warrants excludes 1,270,649 optionis @iercise prices ranging from $1.10 to $19.13spere.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial stateméntonformity with accounting principles geneyalkcepted in the United States (“GAAP”)
requires management to make estimates and assus it affect the reported amounts in the conatdilifinancial statements and
accompanying notes. Actual results could diffenfrihose estimates. On an on-going basis, the Coympaaiuates its estimates, including
those related to the carrying amount of propergntand equipment; valuation and return allowarfioeseceivables, inventories, and deferred
income taxes; accrued liabilities; and litigatiordalisputes.

The Company uses significant estimates in the ttion of sales returns. These estimates are lmsé¢ite Company’s historical return rates
and an evaluation of estimated sales returns fimeniic customers.

The Company uses significant estimates in the tztion of the lower of cost or market value of Ialegm core inventory.

The Company’s calculation of inventory reserve®lags significant estimates. The basis for the imory reserve is a comparison of inventory
on hand to historical production usage or saleamek.

The Company records its liability for self-insunedrkers’ compensation by including an estimatehefltability associated with total claims
incurred and reported as well as an estimate ofabdities associated with incurred, but not repd, claims determined by applying the
Company'’s historical claims development factortsoeistimate of the liabilities associated with imed and reported claims.

The Company uses significant estimates in the ttion of its income tax provision or benefit bying forecasts to estimate whether it will
have sufficient future taxable income to realizedéferred tax assets. There can be no assurdratébe Company’s taxable income will be
sufficient to realize such deferred tax assets.

The Company uses significant estimates in the engoalculation of potential liabilities from uncairt tax positions that are more likely than
not to occur.

A change in the assumptions used in the estimatesafes returns, inventory reserves and incomestaguld result in a difference in the rel:
amounts recorded in the Company’s consolidatedhfiizh statements.

Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalehtsi-term investments, accounts receivable, adsqayable and accrued liabilities
approximate their fair value due to the short-teature of these instruments. The carrying amouisedline of credit and other long-term
liabilities approximate their fair value based amrent rates for instruments with similar charastars.
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Stock Options and Sha-Based Payments

Effective April 1, 2006, the Company adopted SFAS W23 (revised 2004Fhare-Based Payment'SFAS No. 123(R)”) using the modified
prospective application method of transition fdrital stock-based compensation plans. The modfiredpective application method of
transition requires that stodkased compensation expense be recorded for alandwnvested stock options that are ultimately ebgokto ves
as the requisite service is rendered from AprRdQ6 forward.

In November 2005, the FASB issued Staff PositidBRJFFAS 123 (R)-3Transition Election Related to Accounting for treexEffects of
Share-Based Payment AwaidBSP 123 (R)-3"). FSP 123 (R)-3 provides an elexdlternative transition method for calculating ool of
excess tax benefits available to absorb tax defotés recognized subsequent to the adoption of IFAIL23(R). The Company had
significant vested options on their adoption ddt8BAS 123(R) and therefore has elected to comipai#ePI1C pool as described in paragraph
81 of SFAS 123(R). The excess tax benefits foy#ars ended March 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 (detechiased on the requirements of
paragraph 81 of SFAS 123(R)) are presented ashaocalow from operations and a cash inflow fromafincing activities.

The fair value of stock options used to computelstzased compensation expense, which is refleategpiorted results under SFAS No. 123
(R), is estimated using the Black-Scholes optiaaipg model, which was developed for use in estingathe fair value of traded options that
have no vesting restrictions and are fully traredfée. This model requires the input of subjectissuanptions including the expected volatility
of the underlying stock and the expected holdimgppeof the option. These subjective assumptioeshased on both historical and other
information. Changes in the values assumed andindbée model can materially affect the estimatéagfvalue. Options to purchase 84,000,
58,000 and 411,500 shares of common stock weraegtauring the years ended March 31, 2009, 200880d, respectively.

The table below summarizes the Black-Scholes ogfaring model assumptions used to derive the wethhverage fair value of the stock
options granted during the periods noted.

Years ended March 31,

2009 2008 2007
Weighted average risk free interest 1 2.61% 4.0&% 4.64%
Weighted average expected holding period (ye 5.1t 3.1¢ 5.9C
Weighted average expected volatil 40.95% 24.7%% 40.5%%
Weighted average expected dividend y —% —% —%
Weighted average fair value of options grar $ 2.0¢ $ 2.6¢ $ 5.5¢

Credit Risk

The majority of the Company’s sales are to leadingpmotive after market parts suppliers. Managerbelitves the credit risk with respect to
trade accounts receivable is limited due to the gamy’s credit evaluation process and the natuits @ustomers. However, should the
Company’s customers experience significant cash fimblems, the Company’s financial position arglitts of operations could be materially
and adversely affected, and the maximum amourdssf that would be incurred would be the outstandéegivable balance at March 31, 20

Deferred Compensation Pla

The Company has a deferred compensation plan ftaicenembers of management. The plan allows ppatits to defer salary, bonuses and
commission. The assets of the plan are held insh émd are subject to the claims of the Compagereeral creditors under federal and state
laws in the event of insolvency. Consequently tthst qualifies as a Rabbi trust for income taxpmses. The plan’s assets consist primarily of
mutual funds and are classified as “available &e.8 The investments are recorded at market valith,any unrealized gain or loss recorded
as other comprehensive income or loss in sharetsdldguity. Adjustments to the deferred compensatibligation are recorded in operating
expenses. The Company did not redeem any shortiteestments during the year ended March 31, 2808 redeemed $634,000 of short-
term investments for the payment of deferred coreation liabilities during the year ended March 3208. The carrying value of plan assets
was $335,000 and $373,000, and deferred compensail@ation was $335,000 and $373,000 at Marct2B809 and 2008, respectively.
During the year ended March 31, 2009 a reductiexpense of $92,000 was recorded related to therréef compensation plan, while expense
of $40,000 was recorded during the year ended Matcl2008.
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Comprehensive Income or Loss

SFAS No. 130Reporting Comprehensive Incomestablished standards for the reporting and ayspl comprehensive income or loss and its
components in a full set of general purpose fir@rstatements. Comprehensive income or loss iselkfas the change in equity during a
period resulting from transactions and other evantscircumstances from non-owner sources. The @oyip total comprehensive income or
loss consists of net unrealized income or loss flemign currency translation adjustments and Uiae@ gains or losses on short-term
investments. The Company has presented compreleeinsiome or loss on the Consolidated Statemenhafebolders’ Equity.

Fair Value Measurements

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. E&if,Value Measuremen(§SFAS No. 157”). SFAS No. 157 defines fair valigethe price
that would be received to sell an asset or patdatesfer a liability in an orderly transaction beem market participants at the measurement
date. It also established a framework for measusirgzalue in accordance with GAAP and expandsld®ires about fair value measurement.
SFAS No. 157 applies to other accounting pronoumeesithat require or permit fair value measureme&RrAS No. 157 was effective for
fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. ey, a FASB Staff Position issued in February 2@@ayed the effectiveness of SFAS
No. 157 for one year, but only as applied to nanfitial assets and nonfinancial liabilities. Themwm of SFAS No. 157 on April 1, 2008 ¢
not have an impact on the Company’s financial pasitresults of operations or cash flows. We wilbpt the provisions of SFAS No. 157 as it
relates to nonfinancial assets and nonfinancibllitees on April 1, 2009. The adoption is not egpe to have any material impact on the
Company'’s financial position, results of operationgash flows.

The hierarchy is based upon the transparency otsnp the valuation of an asset or liability ashef measurement date. The classification of
fair value measurements within the hierarchy iseagpon the lowest level of input that is signifito the measurement. The three levels are
defined as follows:

. Level 1— Valuation is based upon quoted prices (unadjustedytive markets for identical assets or liakahti

. Level 2 — Valuation is based upon quoted pricessimilar assets and liabilities in active marketsother inputs that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or imélctly, for substantially the full term of the fimaal instrument

. Level 3— Valuation is based upon unobservable inputs treasigmnificant to the fair value measurem

The following table summarizes the valuation of @@mpany’s short-term investments, deferred comgt@rsand financial instruments by the
above SFAS No. 157 categories as of March 31, 2009:

Fair Value Measurements

Fair Value at Using Inputs Considered as
March 31, 2009 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets
Shor-term investment $ 335,00( $335,00( — —
Liabilities
Deferred compensatic 335,00( 335,00 — —
Forward foreign currency exchange contr: 1,048,001 — $1,048,00! —

The Company’s short-term investments, which fuedigferred compensation liabilities, consist ofstments in mutual funds. These
investments are classified as Level 1 as the sloduthese mutual funds trade with sufficient fregeyeand volume to enable the Company to
obtain pricing information on an ongoing basis.

The forward foreign currency exchange contractgarearily measured based on the foreign currepoy and forward rates quoted by the
banks or foreign currency dealers. During the figears ended March 31, 2009 and 2008, an increfabg, 194,000 and a decrease of
$152,000, respectively, in general and administeagixpenses was recorded due to the change irathe of the forward foreign currency
exchange contracts subsequent to entering intoahgacts. The fair value adjustments of $1,048j800cluded in other current liabilities in
the Consolidated Balance Sheets at March 31, 2009.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. T3 Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Final Liabilities (“S FAS No. 159”).
SFAS No. 159 permits companies to choose to measdag value certain financial instruments anlestitems that are not
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currently required to be measured at fair valuASNo. 159 is effective for fiscal years beginnafter November 15, 2007. The Company
adopted SFAS No. 159 on April 1, 2008 and electdmmeasure any additional financial instrumemtether items at fair value.

New Accounting Pronouncemen

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141R3jness CombinatiorfsSFAS No. 141(R)"). SFAS No. 141(R) applies to any
transaction or other event that meets the defimitiba business combination. Where applicable, SNAS141(R) establishes principles and
requirements for how the acquirer recognizes analsomes identifiable assets acquired, liabilitiesiaged, non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and goodwill or gain from a bargain pusehadn addition, SFAS No. 141(R) determines whiairination to disclose to enable user:
the financial statements to evaluate the naturefiaadcial effects of the business combinationApril 2009, the FASB issued FSP 141(R)-1,
Accounting for Assets Acquired and Liabilities Ased in a Business Combination That Arise from @geticies, (“FSP 141(R)-1"), which
modified the guidance in SFAS No. 141(R) relateddotingent assets and contingent liabilities. Ails®ecember 2007, the FASB issued
Statement No. 16@0on-controlling Interests in Consolidated Financ&htement§'SFAS No. 160”). This Statement amends Accounting
Research Bulletin No. 5Consolidated Financial Statements,establish accounting and reporting standardth#®non-controlling interest in
a subsidiary and for the deconsolidation of a gliasi. SFAS No. 141(R), as modified by FSP 141(Rasid SFAS No. 160 are required to be
adopted simultaneously and are effective for thet innual reporting period beginning on or aftec@mnber 15, 2008 with earlier adoption
being prohibited. The Company will adopt both SFA& 141(R), as modified by FSP 141(R)and SFAS No. 160 on April 1, 2009. There
no non-controlling interests in the Company’s sdiasies, therefore the adoption of SFAS No. 16@asexpected to have any impact. The
adoption of SFAS No. 141(R), as modified by FSP(R31L, will change the Company’s accounting treattrfer business combinations on a
prospective basis.

In March 2008, the FASB issued Statement No. D8dglosures about Derivative Instruments and Heddhativities-an amendment of FASB
Statement No. 138SFAS No. 161”). SFAS No. 161 changes the disalesaquirements for derivative instruments and imeggctivities.
Entities are required to provide enhanced discksabout (a) how and why an entity uses derivatisuments, (b) how derivative
instruments and related hedged items are accototesmder FASB Statement No. 133 and its relatéelpretations, and (c) how derivative
instruments and related hedged items affect aty&ntinancial position, financial performance, acakh flows. The guidance in SFAS No. 161
is effective for financial statements issued fecéil years and interim periods beginning after Mover 15, 2008, with early application
encouraged. SFAS No. 161 encourages, but doesaquite, comparative disclosures for earlier peratdsitial adoption. The Company
adopted SFAS No. 161 on January 1, 2009, whicmdichave any material impact on the Company’s cliseted financial statements. See
Note 12 for required disclosures related to deeainstruments and hedging activiti

In April 2009, the FASB issued FASB Staff PositidASP”) No. 107-1 and APB 28-1Interim Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial
Instruments(“FSP 107-1 and APB 28-1"). FSP 107-1 and APB 2&duire that publicly traded companies includeftievalue disclosures
required by SFAS No. 107 in their interim financ#htements and is effective for interim and anpealods ending after June 15, 2009, with
early adoption permitted for periods ending aftarth 15, 2009, and must be applied prospectiveig. Company does not expect the adoj
of FSP 107-1 and APB 28-1 on April 1, 2009 to hamg material impact on its consolidated financiataments and required disclosures.

In April 2009, the FASB issued FSP FAS 15M&termining Fair Value When the Volume and Levéaiivity for the Asset or Liability Have
Significantly Decreased and ldentifying Transacsidinat Are Not Orderlf'FSP 157-4"). FSP 157-4 provides guidance regardiow to
determine whether there has been a significantdserin the volume and level of activity for theear liability when compared with normal
market activity for the asset or liability. In susiuations, an entity may conclude that transastior quoted prices may not be determinative of
fair value, and may adjust the transactions oregliptices to arrive at the fair value of the assditibility. FSP 157-4 is effective for interim

and annual reporting periods ending after Jun@89, with early adoption permitted for periodsiegdafter March 15, 2009, and must be
applied prospectively. The Company does not exihecadoption of FAS 15%-on April 1, 2009 to have any material impact tsnconsolidate
financial statements or required disclosures.

In May 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. 188psequent EvenfsSFAS No. 165”). SFAS No. 165 establishes stanglafdaccounting for and
disclosure of events that occur after the balaheetsdate but before financial statements are dsdtrities are required to disclose the date
through which subsequent events have been evalaatkthe basis for that date. SFAS No. 165 is Bffieon a prospective basis for interim
and annual periods ending after June 15, 2009 Cimepany does not expect the adoption of SFAS Nb&.och6June 30, 2009 to have any
material impact on its consolidated financial staats or required disclosures.
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3. Acquisitions

On May 16, 2008, the Company completed the acdurisdf certain assets of Automotive Importing Maatfiring, Inc. (“AIM”), specifically

its operation which produced new and remanufactahednators and starters for imported and domestssenger vehicles. These products are
sold under Talof®, Xtreme® and other brand names. The acquisition was constednparrsuant to a signed definitive purchase ageeé¢m
dated April 24, 2008.

The Company believes the acquisition of AIM expaitslsustomer base and product line, includingatigition of business in heavy duty
alternator and starter applications. The followtalgle reflects the preliminary allocation of theghase price:

Consideration and acquisition costs

Cash consideratic $3,727,001
Purchase price hold ba 500,00(
Acquisition cost: 437,00(

$4,664,00!

Purchase price allocation:

Accounts receivable, net of allowanc $ (221,000
Inventory 2,853,00!
Trademarks 212,00(
Customer relationshir 1,441,001
Non-compete agreemer 50,00(
Goodwill 329,00(
Total purchase pric $4,664,00!

The definitive purchase agreement was amended gnli8la2008. The amendment provided for an additiooatingent consideration of up to
$400,000 to AIM if the net sales to certain custmsrexceed an agreed upon dollar threshold duriegéniod June 1, 2008 to May 31, 2009.
The net sales to these customers did not exceeaptieed upon threshold and hence the Company dvexpect any additional payment un
this definitive purchase agreement.

On August 22, 2008, the Company completed the aitopn of certain assets of Suncoast AutomotivedBets, Inc. (“SCP”), specifically its
operation which produced new and remanufacturedreltors and starters for the automotive, industrid heavy duty after-markets. These
products were sold under the SCP™ brand name. dduésition was consummated pursuant to a signest psschase agreement, dated
August 13, 2008.

The Company believes the acquisition of SCP entsatheeCompany’s market share in North America. &tro& information is not presented
as the assets, results of operations and purchiasegb SCP were not significant to the Companyassolidated financial position or results of
operations, individually or in the aggregate witk icquisition of AIM.
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The following table reflects the preliminary alltice of the purchase price:

Consideration and acquisition costs

Cash consideratic $2,448,00!
Purchase price hold ba 300,00(
Note payable 1,293,001
Acquisition costs 279,00(
$4,320,001
Purchase price allocation:
Accounts receivable, net of allowanc $ (95,000
Inventory 1,366,001
Trademarks 156,00(
Customer relationshiy 970,00(
Non-compete agreemer 61,00(
Goodwill 1,862,001
Total purchase pric $4,320,001

The note payable to SCP of $1,293,000 bears initatgsime plus 1% and is payable in monthly instahts of $100,000 beginning in
October 2008. During the year ended March 31, 2pf8cipal and interest of $571,000 and $29,008peetively, was paid on the note payi
to SCP.

The results of operations of certain assets acdjfiicen AIM and SCP are included in the Consolidei¢gtement of Operations from their
respective acquisition dates.

4. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The Company accounts for goodwill under the guidaset forth in SFAS No. 142, which specifies thadwill and indefinite-lived
intangibles should not be amortized. The Compamyuates goodwill for impairment on an annual basisore frequently if events or
circumstances occur that would indicate a redudtidair value of the Company. Such indicators g, but are not limited to, events or
circumstances such as a significant adverse chartge business climate, unanticipated competittoloss of key personnel, adverse legal or
regulatory developments, or a significant declméhie market price in the Company’s common statkaddition, the Company identified a
single reporting unit (the Company itself) in adamce with SFAS No. 142, as it had not identifiag @@mponents of the Company beneath
the one operating segment described in Note 1.

The goodwill impairment test is a two-step impainniest. In the first step, the Company comparedafr value of the reporting unit to its
carrying value. If the fair value of the reportingit exceeds the carrying value of the net asssigiaed to the reporting unit, goodwill is not
impaired and therefore, the Company is not requivguerform further testing. If the carrying valokethe net assets assigned to the reporting
unit exceeds the fair value of the reporting uthien the Company must perform the second stepdier@o determine the implied fair value of
the reporting unit’s goodwill and compare it to ttarying value of the reporting unit's goodwill.

The Companys market capitalization in the third quarter ot&k2009 decreased significantly, which represeatpdssible triggering event 1
potential goodwill impairment. Accordingly, the Cpany performed an interim goodwill impairment tesaccordance with SFAS No. 142.

For the third quarter 2009 interim impairment tés¢ Company determined the fair value of the répgunit based on an equal weighting of:
(1) a market capitalization approach, (2) a distedicash flow analysis, and (3) a market appro@lea.market capitalization is calculated by
multiplying the average share price of the Compsiegmmon stock for the last 30 days prior to thasneement date by the number of
outstanding common shares and adding a controliprenThe discounted cash flow analysis establishievalue by estimating the present
value of the projected future cash flows of theoréipg unit and applying a 3% terminal growth raftee present value of estimated discounted
future cash flows is determined using significastireates of revenue and costs for the reporting driven by assumed growth rates, as we
appropriate discount rates. The discount rate &6 W&as determined using a weighted-average costpifad that incorporates long-term
government bonds, effective cost of debt, and &®¢ af equity of similar guideline companies. Tharket approach is calculated using market
multiples and comparable transaction data for dinds companies. The guideline information was Basepublicly available information. A
valuation multiple was selected based on a findbs@achmarking analysis that compared the reporimitis benchmark result with the
guideline information. In addition to these finaalaonsiderations, qualitative factors such asrassi descriptions, market served, and
profitability were
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considered in the ultimate selection of the mudtipted to estimate a value on a minority basisomtrol premium was applied to the minority
basis value to arrive at the reporting unit’s eatied fair value on a controlling basis. The setectind weighting of the various fair value
techniques may result in a higher or lower faiuealdJudgment is applied in determining the weigigtithat are most representative of fair
value. The Company has performed a sensitivityyamsabn its significant assumptions and has detechthat a change in its assumptions
within selected sensitivity testing levels would mapact its conclusion.

Based on this interim assessment, the Company uetithat, as of December 31, 2008, the carryihgevaf the Company’s reporting unit
exceeded its fair value under step one of theatedtproceeded to step two. Under step two, the @agngdetermined that goodwill was fully
impaired as the carrying value of $2,191,000, idclg the fourth quarter adjustment of $100,000¢eexied the implied fair value of zero, and
therefore recorded a pre-tax, non-cash goodwilkiimpent charge of $2,191,000 as disclosed in thes@Glalated Statements of Operations in
the third quarter of fiscal 2009. After recordimg timpairment charge, the Company had no gooderitlaining on its Consolidated Balance
Sheet as of March 31, 2009.

The following is a summary of the Company’s intdilgiassets as of March 31, 2009, which resulted fite acquisitions of AIM and SCP
during the year ended March 31, 2009. The Compandynio goodwill or intangible assets at March 31080

March 31, 2009 March 31, 2008
Amortization Gross Carrying Accumulated Gross Carrying Accumulated
Period Value Amortization Value Amortization

Intangible assets subject to amortizatior

Trademarks 5-7 years $  368,00( $ 45,00( $ — $ —
Customer relationshif 7 years 2,411,00! 265,00( — —
Non-compete agreemer 5 years 111,00( 16,00( — —
Total $ 2,890,001 $ 326,00( $ = $ —

Amortization expense related to intangible assets $826,000 during the year ended March 31, 2008 afgregate estimated amortization
expense for intangible assets is as follows:

Year ending March 31,

2010 $ 428,00(
2011 428,00(
2012 428,00(
2013 428,00(
2014 393,00(
Thereaftel 459,00(
Total $2,564,00!

5. Short-Term Investments

The short-term investments account contains thetsie$ the Company’s deferred compensation plae.plan’s assets consist primarily of
mutual funds and are classified as available fta. & of March 31, 2009 and 2008, the fair maskdtie of the short-term investments was
$335,000 and $373,000, and the liability to plartipants was $335,000 and $373,000, respectively.

6. Accounts Receivable— Net

Included in Accounts receivable — net are significaffset accounts related to customer allowaneesssl, customer payment discrepancies,
in-transit and estimated future unit returns, eated future credits to be provided for Used Coedsrned by the customers and potential bad
debts. Due to the forward looking nature and tlffeidint aging periods of certain estimated offseaints, they may not, at any point in time,
directly relate to the balances in the open tra®ants receivable.
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Accounts receivable — net is comprised of the felfgy at March 31:

Accounts receivabl— trade
Allowance for bad debi
Customer allowances earn
Customer payment discrepanc
Customer finished goods returns accrt
Customer core returns accru
Less: total accounts receivable offset acco
Total accounts receivab— net

Warranty Returns

2009 2008
$40,126,00 $ 25,740,00
(243,00() (18,000)
(5,109,00)  (2,178,00)
(681,00() (492,00()
(10,097,00)  (7,977,00i)
(12,875,00)  (12,286,00)
(29,005,00)  (22,951,00)
$11,12100 $ 2,789,00

The Company allows its customers to return goodegédCompany that their end-user customers hauened to them, whether the returned
item is or is not defective (warranty returns). T@mnpany accrues an estimate of its exposure teantgrreturns based on a historical analysis
of the level of this type of return as a percentafgmtal units sales. The warranty return accisi@cluded under the customer finished goods

returns accruals in the above table.

Change in the Company’s warranty return accruasifollows at March 31:

Balance at beginning of peri
Charged to expens
Amounts processe

Balance at end of peric

F-18

2009 2008
$ (2,824,00) $ (3,455,00)
31,99500  29,373,00
(32,223,00)  (30,004,00)
$ (2,596,000 $ (2,824,00)




7. Inventory

Non-core inventory, Inventory unreturned, Long-termecmventory, Long-term core inventory depositesnprised of the following at

March 31:
2009 2008
Non-core inventory
Raw materialt $ 9,810,001 $11,406,00
Work-in-process 56,00( 155,00(
Finished good 19,643,00 23,206,00
29,509,00 34,767,00
Less allowance for excess and obsolete inver (1,586,001 (2,060,000
Total $27,923,00 $32,707,00
Inventory unreturned $ 4,708,00 $ 4,124,001
Long-term core inventory
Used cores held at comp?'s facilities $17,580,00 $12,630,00
Used cores expected to be returned by custo 2,799,00! 2,255,00!
Remanufactured cores held in finished go 15,536,00 15,407,00
Remanufactured cores held at customers loca 27,501,00 21,218,00
63,416,00 51,510,00
Less allowance for excess and obsolete inver (595,000) (702,000
Total $62,821,00 $50,808,00
Long-term core inventory deposit $24,451,00 $22,477,00
8. Plant and Equipment
Plant and equipment, at cost, are as follows atmad.:
2009 2008
Machinery and equipme| $ 25,798,000 $ 25,360,00
Office equipment and fixture 5,499,00! 5,763,00!
Leasehold improvemen 6,187,00! 6,582,00!
37,484,00 37,705,00
Less accumulated depreciation and amortize (23,487,00) (21,709,00)
Total $ 13,997,000 $ 15,996,00

Plant and equipment located in the foreign coustribere the Company has production facilities ofieiccumulated depreciation, totaled
$4,967,000 and $6,295,000 at March 31, 2009 an8,2@8pectively. These assets constitute subdtgraibthe long-lived assets of the

Company located outside of the United States.

9. Pay-on-Scan Arrangement; Termination of Pay-on-&n Arrangement; and Inventory Transaction with Largest Customer

In May 2004, the Company and its largest custom#ared into a four-year agreement. Under the sinit terms of this agreement, the

Company became the primary supplier of importeeratitors and starters for eight of this customgisibution centers and agreed to sell this
customer certain products on a “pay-on-scan” (“Pasis. Under the significant terms of the PO&ragement, the Company was entitled to
receive payment upon the sale of products to eatsusy the customer. As part of the 2004 agreentemparties agreed to use reasonable
commercial efforts to convert the overall purchggielationship to a POS arrangement by April 2@G08), if the POS conversion was not fully
accomplished by that time, the Company agreed o $24,000,000 of this
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customer’s inventory to a POS arrangement by psiagahis inventory through the issuance of creafit$1,000,000 per month over a 24-
month period ending April 2008.

The POS conversion was not completed by April 2@D@l, the parties agreed to terminate the POS amagigt as of August 24, 2006. As part
of the August 2006 agreement, the customer purdhhi®se products previously shipped on a POS bHsis transaction, after the application
of the Company'’s revenue recognition policies, éased sales by $19,795,000 for the fiscal yearcehtzgch 31, 2007. The August 2006
agreement also extended the term of the Compamniy’spy supplier rights from May 2008 to August 2008

Also under the significant terms of this agreem#r,Company purchased approximately $19,980,0@80eo0fustomer’s Remanufactured Core
inventory by issuing credits to the customer irt trmount in August 2006. In establishing the reldteg-term core inventory deposit account,
the Company valued these Remanufactured Coreslé 8,000 based on the then current cost of lomg-t@re inventory. The difference of
$8,062,000 was recorded as a sales incentive axwdiegly reflected as a reduction of sales forytear ended March 31, 2007. When the
relationship between the Company and the custonus, ¢his agreement calls for the customer to pbayCtompany for unreturned
Remanufactured Cores in cash. This cash payméasid on the contractual value for each unretuResdanufactured Core. As of March 31,
2007, the long-term core inventory deposit balaetated to this agreement was approximately $1908®0 Long-term core inventory deposit
related to this August 31, 2006, transaction hashanged, but the total balance in the accounirttasased due to an additional subsequent
Remanufactured Core purchases.

The net effect of the termination of the POS aresment, after application of the Company’s revermgdgnition policies was an increase in net
sales of $11,733,000 for the fiscal year ended K&t 2007.
10. Capital Lease Obligations

The Company leases various types of machinery amgbuater equipment under agreements accounted faapdisl leases and included in pl
and equipment as follows at March 31:

2009 2008
Cost $ 7,213,00! $ 8,289,00!
Less: accumulated amortizati (4,129,000 (3,909,001
Total $ 3,084,00! $ 4,380,00!
Future minimum lease payments at March 31, 200¢hf®capital leases are as follows:
Year ending March 31,
2010 $ 1,755,00!
2011 996,00(
2012 262,00(
2013 153,00(
2014 42,00(
Thereaftel —
Total minimum lease paymer 3,208,00!
Less amount representing inter (186,000
Present value of future minimum lease payn 3,022,00!
Less current portio (1,621,000
$ 1,401,001

On October 26, 2005, the Company entered into ataale-leaseback agreement with a bank. Thesaggat provided the Company with
$4,110,000 in equipment financing repayable in rigrinstallments of $81,000 over the 60 month tefrthe lease agreement, with a one
dollar purchase option at the end of the lease.t&ha financing arrangement has an effective isteae of 6.75%. The proceeds from the
agreement were used to reduce the outstandingdeaiarthe Compang'line of credit with the bank, which had been usefiscal 2006 to fun

the purchase of fixed assets.

Assets financed under the agreement had a netuado& of $1,517,000. The difference between thenfing provided, which was based on
the fair market value of the equipment, and theboek value of the equipment financed was accoufuteds a deferred gain on the sale-
leaseback agreement. The deferred gain is beingtizesbat a monthly rate of $43,000 over the esimidive year
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life of the capital lease asset and is accountedda@n offset to general and administrative exp&nst March 31, 2009 and 2008, the deferred
gain remaining to be amortized was $843,000 ang4$1000, respectively.

11. Line of Credit and Factoring Agreements

On October 24, 2007, the Company entered into aanded and restated credit agreement (the “Creditéxgent”) with its bank. Under the
Credit Agreement, the bank continues to provideGbmpany with a revolving loan (the “Revolving Ldaof up to $35,000,000, including
obligations under outstanding letters of creditjolhmay not exceed $7,000,000. In January 2008Ctmpany entered into an amendment to
the Credit Agreement with its bank. This amendnesténded the expiration date of the credit factiityOctober 1, 2009.

In May 2008, the Company’s Credit Agreement wathieramended to allow the Company to, among ottirgs, borrow up to $15,000,000
under the Revolving Loan for the purpose of consatimg certain permitted acquisitions. The aggregatesideration paid for any single
permitted acquisition may not exceed $7,500,000,tha aggregate consideration paid for all permhigtequisitions made during the term of
Credit Agreement may not exceed $20,000,000.

In August 2008, the Company entered into a thirérmdment to the Credit Agreement, which increasedthount of credit available under the
Revolving Loan from $35,000,000 to $40,000,000sRant to the terms of these amendments, the Compampyontinue to use the entire
available amount under the Revolving Loan for wogkcapital and general corporate purposes.

In February 2009, the Company entered into a foamtendment to the Credit Agreement with its bariks Bmendment extended the
expiration of the credit facility to April 15, 2018mong other things, this amendment also increéisedee payable by the Company to its t
by 0.125% per annum on the unutilized amount ofRkeolving Loan and increased the applicable maagim of the Revolving Loan. The
applicable margin rate, which ranges from 1.0%yger to 2.5% per year, is determined based on ¢timep@ny’s leverage ratio as of the end of
each fiscal quarter.

In April 2009, the Company entered into a fifth ardment to the Credit Agreement with the Companwgiskb This amendment allows the
company to use usance (deferred payment) lettarsedft, and among other things, requires the Compainstruct that any purchaser of the
Company’s accounts receivable is to remit paymeinestly to the Company’s bank.

At March 31, 2009, the Company was not in compkawith certain of its Credit Agreement covenantpiigng the Company to: (i) achieve
EBITDA of not less than $4,500,000 for the fiscahger ended March 31, 2009 and (ii) achieve BBITDA of not less than $19,500,000 for
the four consecutive fiscal quarters ended Marcg2809. In June 2009, the bank provided the Compatiya waiver of these covenant
defaults.

In addition, in conjunction with the June 2009 waivthe Company entered into a sixth amendmemegcredit Agreement, dated as of June 8,
2009, with its bank. This amendment, among othiegth (i) created a borrowing reserve in the amaiii$t7,500,000 to be reserved by the
Company’s bank against the Company’s Revolving Laanmitment amount and available in the event argdst customer is no longer
having the receivables owed to us factored; (iipaded the Company’s EBITDA covenant to require mimmim EBITDA of not less than
$2,900,000 for the fiscal quarter ending June 8092and to $4,000,000 for each fiscal quarter tfege (iii) amended the Company’s trailing
twelve month EBITDA covenant to require a minimuailing twelve month EBITDA of not less than: (e)26500,000 for the four consecuti
fiscal quarters ending June 30, 2009, (b) $11,Z8D{0r the four consecutive fiscal quarters endegtember 30, 2009, (c) $12,500,000 for
four consecutive fiscal quarters ending Decembef8@9 and (d) $17,000,000 for the four consecutsaal quarters ending March 31, 2010
and thereafter; and (iv) amended the Company’'ségeeratio covenant to require that the Companytaai a leverage ratio of not greater
than (x) 2.25 to 1.00 for the fiscal quarter endinge 30, 2009, (y) 2.50 to 1.00 for the fiscalrtpraending September 30, 2009, and (z) 2.(
1.00 for the fiscal quarter ending December 31 928d thereafter.

The bank holds a security interest in substantalllpf the Company’s assets. At March 31, 2008,kthlance of the Revolving Loan was
$21,600,000. There was no outstanding balanceeRévolving Loan at March 31, 2008. AdditionallyetCompany had reserved $2,201,000
of the Revolving Loan for standby letters of crdditworker’s compensation insurance and $128,@88med for commercial letters of credit
as of March 31, 2009. As of March 31, 2009, $16,00Q was available under the Revolving Loan, anttigf $7,500,000 is reserved for us
the event the Company’s largest customer discoasifiis current practice of having the Company’eirables factored.

The Credit Agreement, among other things, contitaesquire the Company to maintain certain finahcovenants, including cash flow, fix
charge coverage ratio and leverage ratio and a euoflyestrictive covenants, including limits orpital expenditures and
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operating leases, prohibitions against additiondébtedness, payment of dividends, pledge of aaséttans to officers and/or affiliates. In
addition, it is an event of default under the Créddjreement if Selwyn Joffe is no longer the CompsuCEO.

Borrowings under the Revolving Loan bear inter¢gtither the bank’s reference rate or London IraekbOffered Rate (“LIBOR”) as selected
by the Company for the applicable interest perilud pin each case, an applicable margin which tierdened quarterly on a prospective basis
as below:

Leverage Ratio as of the End of the Fiscal Quarte
Greater Than or

Base Interest Rate Selected by the Company Equal to 1.50 to 1.00 Less Than 1.50 to 1.00
Bank's Reference Rate, pl 1.25% per yea 1.0% per yea
Bank's LIBOR Rate, plu: 2.5% per yea 2.25% per yea

Under two separate agreements executed with twomess and their respective banks, the Companysathyhose customers’ receivables to
those banks at a discount to be agreed upon &ttbehe receivables are sold. The Company hasrangement with one additional customer
under which that customer’s receivables may alssote at a discount. These discount arrangements dlbowed the Company to accelerate
collection of customer receivables aggregating 382,000 and $90,408,000 for the years ended MakcBM9 and 2008, respectively, by an
average of 313 days and 286 days, respectivelyarCannualized basis, the weighted average discatenbn the receivables sold to the banks
during the years ended March 31, 2009 and 20084v@8% and 6.6%, respectively. The amount of theadiston these receivables, $3,089,000
and $4,387,000 for the years ended March 31, 2686826808, respectively, was recorded as interestresen In May 2008, one of these
customers suspended the use of its receivableutispoogram, but has advised the Company thatytlmeain a position to re-open the use of
this program sometime in the future.

12. Financial Risk Management and Derivatives

Purchases and expenses denominated in currenbisstioan the U.S. dollar, which are primarily rethto the Company’s production facilities
overseas, expose the Company to market risk frotenmahmovements in foreign exchange rates betweet).S. dollar and the foreign
currency. The Company'’s primary risk exposureasrfrchanges in the rate between the U.S. dollatl@méexican peso related to the
operation of the Comparg/facility in Mexico. In August 2005, the Companggan to enter into forward foreign currency excleaogntracts t
exchange U.S. dollars for Mexican pesos. The extewhich forward foreign currency exchange cortsace used is modified periodically in
response to management’s estimate of market conditind the terms and length of specific purchegeirements to fund those overseas
facilities.

The Company enters into forward foreign currenaghexge contracts in order to reduce the impaabrefign currency fluctuations and not to
engage in currency speculation. The use of deviedinancial instruments allows the Company to cediis exposure to the risk that the
eventual cash outflow resulting from funding th@emxses of the foreign operations will be materiaffigcted by changes in exchange rates.
The Company does not hold or issue financial ims&nts for trading purposes. The forward foreigmengy exchange contracts are designated
for forecasted expenditure requirements to funcotleseas operations. These contracts expire @araor less.

The Company had forward foreign currency exchamggracts with a U.S. dollar equivalent notionalueabf $7,224,000 and $7,303,000 and a
nominal fair value at March 31, 2009 and 2008, eespely. The forward foreign currency exchangetraxts entered into require the Comp

to exchange Mexican pesos for U.S. dollars. Theséracts generally expire in a year or less, @&sragreed at the inception of the contracts.
The counterparty to this derivative transactioa mmajor financial institution with investment graalebetter credit rating; however, the
Company is exposed to credit risk with this ingtitn. The credit risk is limited to the potentiairealized gains (which offset currency
fluctuations adverse to the Company) in any suctiraot should this counterparty fail to performcastracted. Any changes in the fair values
of forward foreign currency exchange contractsrafiected in current period earnings and accoufdeds an increase or offset to general and
administrative expenses.

The following table shows the effect of the Compamerivatives instruments on its Consolidated e3tegtnt of Operations for the fiscal year
ended March 31:

Location of Gain (Loss)

Location of Gain (Loss) Recognized in Income
Derivatives Not Designated as Hedgin Recognized in Income on Derivative
Instruments under Statement 132 on Derivative 2009
Forward foreign currency exchange contr: General and administrative expen $(1,194,00)

F-22




Fair value adjustments of $1,048,000 are includeathier current liabilities in the Consolidated &ate Sheet at March 31, 2009.

13. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company is involved in various legal proceediagsing in the normal course of conducting bussn&he Company believes the amounts
provided in its consolidated financial statemeatsprescribed by GAAP, are adequate in light ofpttedably and estimable liabilities. The
resolution of those other proceedings is not exqubts have a material impact on the Company’s tesiiloperations or financial condition.

Operating Lease Commitments

The Company leases office and warehouse faciliti€alifornia, Tennessee, Malaysia, Singapore aeditb under operating leases expiring
through 2017. The Company also has short term actstiof one year or less covering its third paréyeliouses that provide for contingent
payments based on the level of sales that are ggedehrough the third party warehouse.

The Company’s warehouse distribution facility indNsille, Tennessee was closed in the second quarfisical 2008. The Company sub-
leased this facility for the remainder of its leésen and accordingly, the future minimum rentatmpants were reduced by $358,000 for the
remaining sub-leased period.

At March 31, 2009, the remaining future minimumteg¢payments under the above operating leasesdodaws:

Year ending March 31,

2010 $ 2,664,00!
2011 2,595,001
2012 2,525,00!
2013 1,581,001
2014 1,606,001
Thereaftel 3,139,001
Total minimum lease paymer $14,110,00

During fiscal years 2009, 2008 and 2007, the Comjiracurred total operating lease expenses of $200@2 $3,309,000 and $3,215,000,
respectively.

Commitments to Provide Marketing Allowances underd-Term Customer Contracts

The Company has or are renegotiating long-termeaigeats with many of its major customers. Underdlaggeements, which typically have
initial terms of at least four years, the Compangésignated as the exclusive or primary suppiespecified categories of remanufactured
alternators and starters. In consideration foddisignation as a customer’s exclusive or primappber, the Company typically provides the
customer with a package of marketing incentivegsehincentives differ from contract to contract aad include (i) the issuance of a specified
amount of credits against receivables in accordaiiitea schedule set forth in the relevant contréigtsupport for a particular customer’s
research or marketing efforts on a scheduled b@sjsliscounts granted in connection with eactliidual shipment of product and (iv) other
marketing, research, store expansion or produatldpment support. These contracts typically reqhet the Company meet ongoing
performance, quality and fulfilment requiremerasd one contract grants the customer the rigtgrtoibate the agreement at any time for any
reason. The Company’s contracts with major custeragpire at various dates through December 2012.

The Company typically grants its customers markgtitowances in connection with these customgusthase of goods. The Company rec
the cost of all marketing allowances provided $cciistomers in accordance with EITF 01-9. Sucwalfees include sales incentives and
concessions and typically consist of: (i) allowanadnich may only be applied against future purchasel are recorded as a reduction to
revenues in accordance with a schedule set fortifeifong-term contract, (ii) allowances relatedtsingle exchange of product that are
recorded as a reduction of revenues at the timeetaged revenues are recorded or when such ivesrdire offered and (iii) allowances that
made in connection with the purchase of inventooynfa customer.
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The following table presents the breakout of alloees, other than those reflected in “Note 9-Paysoan Arrangement; Termination of Pay-
on-Scan Arrangement; and Inventory Transaction wétigest Customer” discussed above, recorded eduation to revenues in the years
ended March 31:

Years ended March 31,

2009 2008 2007

Allowances incurred under lo-term customer contrac $ 9,002,00! $11,780,00 $11,863,00
Allowances related to a single exchange of pro 11,725,00 10,427,00 14,100,00
Allowances related to core inventory purchase ations 2,681,00! 2,532,00! 1,506,00I
Total customer allowances recorded as a reducfioevenues $23,408,00 $24,739,00 $27,469,00

The following table presents the commitments tafradlowances which will be recognized as a chaggnst revenue in accordance with the
terms of the relevant long-term customer contracts:

Year ending March 31,

2010 $ 9,054,001
2011 6,549,00!
2012 2,087,00!
2013 1,433,001
2014 1,148,00!
Thereaftel 1,414,001
Total marketing allowance $21,685,00

The Company has also entered into agreements thgsg certain customers’ Remanufactured Core iogeand to issue credits to pay for
that inventory according to an agreed upon schesktléorth in the agreements. Under the signifiteurhs of the largest of these agreements,
the Company agreed to acquire Remanufactured @eeatory by issuing $10,300,000 of credits ovewe-fear period that began in

March 2005 (subject to adjustment if customer sdé&sease in any quarter by more than an agreedpgraentage) on a straight-line basis. In
the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008, the total credd be issued was reduced to $9,940,000, restiftng the reconciliation of the number of
Remanufactured Core inventory available at custdowations. Currently, this agreement is being getiated pursuant to the sale or
combination of two of the Company’s customers. Abarch 31, 2009 and 2008, approximately $1,884 &0 $3,623,000, respectively, of
credits remains to be issued under this arrangerAerthe Company issues these credits, it estasdiaHongerm asset account for the value
the Remanufactured Core inventory in customer handssubject to customer purchase upon agreenreribtgion, and reduces revenue by
recognizing the amount by which the credit excebdsestimated long-term core inventory value asgkating allowance. The amounts
charged against revenues under this arrangemém iyears ended March 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 $334,000, $1,120,000 and $967,000,
respectively. As of March 31, 2009 and 2008, thmgiterm core inventory deposit related to this egrent was approximately $4,253,000 and
$2,848,000, respectively.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005, the Companteeed into a five-year agreement with one of tloelais largest automobile manufacturer to
supply this manufacturer with a new line of rematifired alternators and starters for the UniteteStand Canadian markets. The Company
expanded its operations and built-up its inventorgneet the requirements of this contract and meclicertain transition costs associated with
this build-up. As part of the agreement, the Compalao agreed to grant this customer $6,000,0@0axfits that are issued as sales to this
customer are made. Of the total credits, $3,600v@8®issued during fiscal 2006 and $600,000 wadi each of the second quarters of
fiscal 2007, 2008 and 2009. The remaining $600i8G@heduled to be issued in the second fiscateuaf fiscal 2010. The agreement also
contains other typical provisions, such as perforteaquality and fulfilment requirements that empany must meet, a requirement that the
Company provide marketing support to this custoamet a provision (standard in this manufacturertsdeg agreements) granting the customer
the right to terminate the agreement at any timefy reason.
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In July 2006, the Company entered into an agreemihta new customer to become its primary suppfealternators and starters. This
agreement was amended in January 2008 to extermbittiact period through January 31, 2011. As gfattiis amendment, the Company also
agreed to accelerate $2,300,000 of promotionahaltees provided under this agreement. These pronadtallowances otherwise would have
been earned by the customer during the fourth guaftfiscal 2008 and the first quarter of fiscab2.

In addition, during the years ended March 31, 2@098 and 2007, the Company charged approximagiy $00, $729,000 and $494,000,
respectively, against revenues under the signifitzms of the agreements with certain traditianstomers. As of March 31, 2009 and 2008,
approximately $513,000 and $959,000, respectivelgredits remains to be issued under these agrgsme

The following table presents the customer Remanurfad Core purchase obligations which will be redngd in accordance with the terms of
the relevant long-term contracts:

Year ending March 31,

2010 $2,892,00!
2011 110,00(
2012 58,00(
2013 30,00(
2014 20,00(
Thereaftel 21,00(
Total Remanufactured Core purchase obligat $3,131,001

Workers Compensation Self Insurance

Effective January 1, 2007, the Company is insuredtuthe workers compensation insurance policy nitlleductibles and no aggregate per
year limit. Prior to January 1, 2007, the Compamg wartially setinsured for workers compensation insurance andliabke for the first
$250,000 of each claim, with an aggregate amou2¢500,000 per year. Above these limits, the Camead purchased insurance coverage
which management considers adequate. The Compeosdeean estimate of its liability for self-insuredrkers’ compensation by including an
estimate of the total claims incurred and repoaeavell as an estimate of incurred, but not regoitaims by applying the Company’s
historical claims development factor to its estienaf incurred and reported claims.

14. Major Customers and Suppliers

The Company'’s five largest customers accountethi®following total percentage of net sales anaants receivable for the fiscal years
ended March 31:

Years ended March 31,

Sales 2009 2008 2007
Customer A 49% 53% 64%
Customer E 10% 8% 6%
Customer C 10% 9% 8%
Customer C 13% 12% 9%
Customer E 10% 12% 10%
Accounts Receivable 2009 2008
Customer A 18% 19%
Customer E 19% 24%
Customer C 25% 31%
Customer C 28% 5%
Customer E 3% 11%

For the years ended March 31, 2009, 2008 and 20@/supplier provided approximately 25%, 20% arfh 22 the raw materials purchased,
respectively. No other supplier accounted for ntbem 10% of the Company’s purchases.
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15. Income Taxes

The income tax expense (benefit) for the years@&hierch 31 is as follows:

Current tax expense (benel
Federal
State
Foreign
Total current tax expense (bene
Deferred tax expense (bene
Federa
State
Foreign
Total deferred tax benet
Total income tax expense (bene

Years ended March 31

2009 2008 2007
$2,831,000  $2,574,000 $ (347,000
1,260,001 (32,000) (208,00()
561,00 356,00 461,00
4,652,001 2,898,001 (94,000)
(1,149,00) (708,000  (2,662,00)
(914,00() 506,00 (676,00()
(2,063,00) (202,000  (3,338,00)
$2,589,000  $2,696,000  $(3,432,00)
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Deferred income taxes consist of the following atrivh 31:

2009 2008
Assets

Net operating loss car-forwards $ 242,00( $ —
Accounts receivable valuatic 2,404,00! 1,086,001
Right of return reserv 427,00( 974,00(
Estimate for return 1,109,001 410,00(
Allowance for customer incentive 505,00( 318,00(
Inventory obsolescence rese 866,00( 1,100,001
Inventory capitalizatiol 366,00( 312,00(
Vacation pay 215,00( 200,00(
Deferred compensatic 133,00( 183,00(
Accrued bonu: 596,00( 598,00(
Stock options 1,223,001 1,025,001
Intangible amortizatiol 908,00( —
Deferred core revent 1,108,001 1,166,001
Claims payablt 485,00( 813,00(
Other 676,00( 579,00(
Total deferred tax asse $11,263,00 $ 8,764,00!

Liabilities
Deferred state ta $ (30,000 $ (13,000
Prepaid expense (366,000) (155,000
Accelerated depreciatic (1,363,001 (1,579,000
Prepaid insuranc (238,000 —
Other — (3,000
Total deferred tax liabilitie $(1,997,000  $(1,750,00i)
Net deferred tax asse $ 9,266,00! $ 7,014,00!
Net current deferred income tax as $ 8,277,00! $ 5,657,00!
Net lon¢-term deferred income tax ass 989,00( 1,357,001
Total $ 9,266,00! $ 7,014,001

At March 31, 2009, the Company had no federal petating loss carryforwards, and approximately $billon of state net operating loss
carryforwards. The utilization of these net opemgtioss carryforwards may be limited in a givenry@he state net operating loss
carryforwards expire between 2013 and 2026.

Realization of the deferred tax assets is depengmr the Company’s ability to generate sufficiex@able income. Management believes that
it is more likely than not that future taxable ino® will be sufficient to realize the recorded deddrtax assets.

For the year ended March 31, 2009, 2008, and 28@Hrimary components of the Company’s incomeptaxision or benefit rates were
(i) the current liability due to or current recedd@s due from federal, state and foreign incomedand (ii) the change in the amount of the net
deferred income tax asset.
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The difference between the income tax expensesdetteral statutory rate and the Company’s effedtx rate is as follows:

Years ended March 31

2009 2008 2007
Statutory federal income tax re 34% 34% 34%
State income tax rate, net of federal ber 4% 4% 6%
Foreign income taxed at different ra D)% (2% 2%
Other income ta 3% 1% (D)%

40% 37% 41%

During the current fiscal year, the Company recpgdian increase of $267,000 in the FIN 48 liabftityunrecognized tax benefits.

The Company and its subsidiaries file income taurres in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and varistete and foreign jurisdictions. With few
exceptions, the Company is no longer subject ta féderal, state and local, or non-U.S. incomeeteaminations by tax authorities for fiscal
years prior to fiscal 2005. There are currentlymernal Revenue Service (IRS) examinations takiage or schedule:

The Company adopted the Provisions of FASB Integpien No. 48 Accounting for Uncertainty in Income TaxgBIN 48”) on April 1, 2007.
A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amoofinrecognized tax benefits is as follows at Ma3é:

2009 2008
Balance at beginning of peri $663,00( $ —
Additions based on tax positions related to theeniryeal 287,00( 431,00(
Additions for tax positions of prior ye: 10,00( 232,00(
Reductions for tax positions of prior ye (35,000 —
Settlement: — —
Balance at end of peric $925,00( $663,00(

The total unrecognized tax benefits that, if re¢ogt, would affect the Company’s effective tax nare $478,000 as of March 31, 2009.

Included in the balance at March 31, 2009, are PO®of tax positions for which the ultimate dedhitity is highly certain, but for which
there is uncertainty about the timing of such dédiity. Because of the impact of deferred tax@aating, other than interest and penalties
disallowance of the shorter deductibility periodulbnot affect the annual effective tax rate, bould accelerate the payment of cash to the
taxing authority to an earlier period. Accordinghhile it is expected that the amount of such uogeized tax benefits will change in the next
12 months, the Company does not expect the changave a significant impact on the results of opena or the financial positions of the
Company.

The Company recognizes interest and penalties ederlated to unrecognized tax benefits as partooime tax expense, which amounted to
$7,000 and $55,000 at March 31, 2009 and Marct2@Qa8, respectively.

16. Defined Contribution Plan

The Company has a 401(k) plan covering all empleye®o are 21 years of age with at least six mootiservice. The plan permits eligible
employees to make contributions up to certain atiohs, with the Company matching 25% of each pi@dting employee’s contribution up to
the first 6% of employee compensation. Employeesramediately vested in their voluntary employeptdbutions and vest in the Company’s
matching contributions ratably over five years. TBwmpany’s matching contribution to the 401(k) preas $93,000, $77,000 and $69,000 for
the fiscal years ended March 31, 2009, 2008 and ,2@8pectively.

17. Stock Options

In January 1994, the Company adopted the 1994 ®ption Plan (the “1994 Plan”), under which it veaghorized to issue nagualified stocl
options and incentive stock options to key emplgyé@ectors and consultants. After a number ofedhalder-approved increases to this plan,
at March 31, 2002 the aggregate number of stodkmgptpproved was 960,000 shares of the
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Company’s common stock. The term and vesting pesfaxptions granted is determined by a committethefBoard of Directors with a term
not to exceed ten years. At the Company’s Annuattiig of Shareholders held on November 8, 20021881 Plan was amended to increase
the authorized number of shares issued to 1,155890f March 31, 2009 and 2008, options to pureht&5,350 and 479,225 shares of
common stock, respectively, were outstanding uttted 994 Plan and no options were available fontgra

At the Company’s Annual Meeting of Shareholderslte December 17, 2003, the shareholders approiee@ampany’s 2003 Long-Term
Incentive Plan (“Incentive Plan”) which had beewpteéd by the Company’s Board of Directors on Oct@ie 2003. Under the Incentive Plan,
a total of 1,200,000 shares of the Company’s comstock were reserved for grants of Incentive Awandd all of the Company’s employees
are eligible to participate. The 2003 IncentiverRAall terminate on October 31, 2013, unless teatad earlier by the Company’s Board of
Directors. As of March 31, 2009 and 2008, optianpurchase 1,097,734 and 1,105,234 shares of corataok, respectively, were outstand
under the Incentive Plan and options to purchasgs63and 56,350 shares of common stock, respegtiwelre available for grant.

In November 2004, the Company’s shareholders agprtive 2004 Non-Employee Director Stock Option Ftha “2004 Plan”) which
provides for the granting of options to non-empkygérectors to purchase a total of 175,000 shdrdeaCompany’s common stock. As of
March 31, 2009 and 2008, options to purchase 1880@d 77,000 shares of common stock, respectiwaye issued, of which options to
purchase 12,875 shares of common stock, respggtivere not immediately exercisable under the 20 and 17,000 and 98,000 shares of
common stock were available for grant.

The shares of common stock issued upon exerciag#viously granted stock option are considerediasuances from shares reserved for
issuance upon adoption of the various plans. Thegany requires that the option holders provide itaw notice of exercise to the stock plan
administrator and payment for the shares priossaance of the shares.

A summary of stock option transactions follows:

Number of Weighted Average
Shares Exercise Price
Outstanding at March 31, 201 1,350,80! $ 7.0F
Granted 411,50( $12.0¢
Exercisec (57,017 $ 5.1¢€
Cancellec (17,219 $11.2¢
Outstanding at March 31, 201 1,688,06 $ 8.2¢
Granted 58,00( $11.5¢
Exercisec (55,529 $ 4.71
Cancellec (29,089 $10.64
Outstanding at March 31, 201 1,661,45! $ 8.47
Granted 84,00( $ 5.8¢
Exercisec — $ —
Cancellec (14,379 $12.13
Outstanding at March 31, 201 1,731,08 $ 8.32

Based on the market value of the Company’s comnmok st March 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, the prarainsic value of options exercised
was $0, $87,000 and $524,000, respectively.
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The followings table summarizes information abdwt options outstanding at March 31, 2009:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted
Weighted Average Weighted

Average Remaining Aggregate Average Aggregate

Range of Exercise Life Intrinsic Exercise Intrinsic

Exercise price Shares Price In Years Value Shares Price Value
$1.100 to $1.80 23,75( $ 1.2¢ 2.24 $ 65,78¢ 23,75( $ 1.2t $ 65,78¢
$2.160 to $3.60 352,10( 2.7: 2.8¢ 447,16° 352,10( 2.7% 447,16°
$4.200 to $9.27 530,65( 7.91 5.8¢ — 476,64¢ 8.1¢ —
$9.650 to $11.81 398,58 10.1¢ 6.71 — 383,58 10.12 —
$11.900 to $13.80 420,00( 12.0¢% 7.3¢€ — 395,00( 12.0¢t —
$14.500 to $18.37 6,00( $ 14.5( 7.6€ — 6,00( $ 14.5( —
1,731,08 $512,95! 1,637,08: $512,95!

The aggregate intrinsic values in the above tadpeasent the pre-tax value of all in-the-moneyaiif all such options had been exercised on
March 31, 2009 based on the Company'’s closing gpoicke of $4.00 as of that date.

Options to purchase 1,637,082, 1,463,123 and 162%Gshares of common stock were exercisable asaofiM31, 2009, 2008 and 2007,
respectively. The weighted average exercise pfiogptions exercisable was $8.31, $8.02 and $7.2% Barch 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007,
respectively.

A summary of changes in the status of non-vestekgiptions during the fiscal year ended March28)9 is presented below.

Weighted Average Grant
Number of Shares Date Fair Value
Non-vested at March 31, 20( 198,33¢ $4.9¢
Granted 84,00( $1.82
Vested (183,33 $4.6(
Cancelled or Forfeite (4,999 $2.41
Non-vested at March 31, 20( 94,00: $2.9¢

The Company adopted SFAS No. 123(R) effective AhrR2006 using the modified prospective adoptiotho@. The Company did not modify
the terms of any previously granted options in@pétion of the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R). At Miai31, 2009, there was $160,000 of total
unrecognized compensation expense from stock-l@Esagensation granted under the plans, which ise@l® non-vested shares. The
compensation expense is expected to be recognizrchoveighted average vesting period of 1.1 years.

18. Litigation

In December 2003, the SEC and the United Statesry’s Office brought actions against Richard Matke Company’s former President
and Chief Operating Officer. (Mr. Marks is also g of Mel Marks, the Company’s founder, largéstreholder and member of its Board of
Directors.) Mr. Marks ultimately pled guilty to senal criminal charges in June 2005.

On July 22, 2008, the Company retired 108,534 shafrés common stock which had been pledged byRitthard Marks in satisfaction of a
$682,000 shareholder note receivable the Compamyded in connection with the reimbursement amowd to the Company by Mr. Marks
for certain previously advanced legal fees andsgqtis interest accrued from January 15, 2008itiir@uly 22, 2008, and the remaining sh
pledged as collateral for this amount were releasédr. Marks.

The Company is subject to various lawsuits andrddn the normal course of business. Managemerst nloebelieve that the outcome of these
matters will have a material adverse effect offifigncial position or future results of operations.
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19. Related Party Transactions

The Company has arrangements or entered into agresmwith three members of its Board of Directdsssrs. Mel Marks, Philip Gay and
Selwyn Joffe. In addition, the Company entered artemployment agreement with Mr. Mervyn McCulloch.

In August 2000, the Company’s Board of Directoreead to engage Mr. Mel Marks to provide consulegvices to the Company. Mr. Marks
is currently paid an annual consulting fee of $880,per year. Mr. Marks was paid $350,000 in fi@09, 2008, and 2007. The Company can
terminate this arrangement at any time.

The Company agreed to pay Mr. Gay $90,000 perfgeaerving on the Company’s Board of Directors] &or being Chairman of the
Company’s Audit and Ethics Committees.

On February 14, 2003, Mr. Joffe accepted his ctipesition as President and Chief Executive Officeaiddition to serving as Chairman of
Board of Directors. Mr. Joffe’s agreement, whichsvesiginally scheduled to expire on March 31, 20&8led for an annual base salary of
$500,000, the continuation of his prior agreemetztive to payment of 1% of the value of any tratisas which close by March 31, 2006 and
other compensation generally provided to the Comigasther executive staff members.

On April 22, 2005, the Company entered into an anent to its employment agreement with Mr. Joffader the amendment, Mr. Joffe’s
term of employment was extended from March 31, 200@arch 31, 2008. His base salary, bonus arraeg&sn1% transaction fee right and
fringe benefits remained unchanged. This amendmastunanimously approved by the Company’s Boaidictors.

Before the amendment, Mr. Joffe had the right tmbeate his employment upon a change of controlrandive his salary and benefits through
March 31, 2006. Under the amendment, upon a chaihgentrol (which has been redefined pursuant éoatmendment), Mr. Joffe will be
entitled to a sale bonus equal to the sum of (@ twes his base salary plus (ii) two times hisrage bonus earned for the two years
immediately prior to the change of control. The adraent also grants Mr. Joffe the right to termirtdteemployment within one year of a
change of control and to then receive salary amefits for a one-year period following such terntioa plus a bonus equal to the average
bonus Mr. Joffe earned during the two years immefigrior to his voluntary termination.

If Mr. Joffe is terminated without cause or resifmsgood reason (as defined in the amendment)Ctmapany must pay Mr. Joffe (i) his base
salary, (ii) his average bonus earned for the teary immediately prior to termination, and (iii) @her benefits payable to Mr. Joffe pursuant
to the employment agreement, as amended, throeglatir of two years after the date of terminatibemployment or March 31, 2008. Under
the amendment, Mr. Joffe is also entitled to antamthl “gross-up” payment to offset the excisedsxXand related income taxes on the “gross-
up” payment) that he may be obligated to pay wéipect to the first $3,000,000 of “parachute paysidias defined in Section 280G of the
Code) to be made to him upon a change of conth®. damendment has redefined the term “for catesapply only to misconduct in connect
with Mr. Joffe's performance of his duties. Pursuanthe amendment, any options that have beeragrba granted to Mr. Joffe will fully vest
upon a change of control and be exercisable faroayear period following the change of control, &Md Joffe agreed to waive the right he
previously had under the employment agreementdoire the Company to purchase his option sharesaapdinderlying options if his
employment were terminated for any reason. The dment further provides that Mr. Joffe’s agreementttn compete with the Company
terminates at the end of his employment term.

In December 2006, the Company’s employment agreewiém Mr. Joffe was amended to extend the terrthisf agreement from March 31,
2008 to August 30, 2009. This amendment was unamsiy@pproved by the Company’s Board of Directors.

On March 27, 2008, the Company’s employment agreemith Mr. Joffe was further amended to extendttren of this agreement from
August 30, 2009 to August 31, 2012. All other telans conditions of Mr. Joffe’'s employment remained¢hanged. This amendment was
unanimously approved by the Company’s Board of @es.

On December 31, 2008, the Company entered intoreemded and restated employment agreement withdife. Mr. Joffe’s previous
employment agreement was amended and restatedrityitoeadd language that satisfies the requiresefthe final treasury regulations
issued pursuant to Section 409A of the Code wisheet to certain of the payments that may be peavid Mr. Joffe pursuant to the
employment agreement. The restated agreement db@screase the amounts payable to Mr. Joffe asyabonus, severance or other
compensation, nor does it extend the term of enmpéayt, but it does clarify that if the Company teraies the restated agreement without
cause, either directly or constructively, Mr. Joff#l be entitled to receive severance paymentd th later of (i) that date which is two years
after the termination date or (ii) the date uponchthe restated agreement would
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otherwise have expired. All other substantive teamd conditions of Mr. Joffe’'s employment remairchnged. The restated agreement was
unanimously approved by the Company’s Board of &dnes.

In February 2008, the Company entered into a lagjeeement with Mr. McCulloch pursuant to which ¢usrent pay and benefits will remain
unchanged, except that Mr. McCulloch will be ertitto: (i) a proportionate bonus for the fiscalryeaded March 31, 2008 for his services as
the Company’s Chief Financial Officer during thatipd so long as bonuses are generally paid t€tmepany’s other executives; (ii) the right
to earn certain bonuses in his position as Chiefugitions Officer for the successful consummatibspecified acquisitions, the amount and
terms of which shall be agreed to in writing by @@mpany’s Chief Executive Officer; and (iii) sixomths’notice or the payment of six mon
of his then current pay (or combination thereoflién of such notice in the event of terminatiorhaf employment with the Company for any
reason. On February 16, 2009, the Company notiiedMcCulloch that his right to six months’ notioe salary (or a combination thereof) in
the event of his termination shall terminate on é&tdl8, 2009.

During the year ended March 31, 2009, the Compaiy ldoulihan Lokey Howard & Zukin Capital, Inc. 43,000 retainer for services and
reimbursement of other out-of-pocket expenses.tScétdelson, a member of the Company’s Board oé@ors, is a Senior Managing
Director for Houlihan Lokey Howard & Zukin Capitahc.

20. Equity Transaction

On May 23, 2007, the Company completed the sab631,909 shares of the Compamgbmmon stock at a price of $11.00 per shareltieg

in aggregate gross proceeds of $40,061,000 angroeteds of $36,905,000 after expenses, and wan@purchase up to 546,283 shares of its
common stock at an exercise price of $15.00 paesfihis sale was made through a private placetoeattcredited investors. The warrants
callable by the Company if, among other things,uhleme weighted average trading price of the Camgfsacommon stock as quoted by
Bloomberg L.P. is greater than $22.50 for 10 congee trading days. As of March 31, 2008, the Conypeharged approximately $3,156,000
for fees and costs related to this private placeneeits additional paid-in-capital. The fair valoéthe warrants at the date of grant was
estimated to be approximately $4.44 per warramtgusie Black-Scholes pricing model. The followirggamptions were used to calculate the
fair value of the warrants: dividend yield of 0%pected volatility of 40.01%; risk-free intereste@f 4.5766%; and an expected life of five
years.

21. Customs Duties

The Company received a request for informationdiafgril 16, 2007 from the U.S. Bureau of Customd &order Protection (“CBP”)
concerning the Company’s importation of producteaaufactured at the Company’s Malaysian facilitiegesponse to the CBP’s request, the
Company began an internal review, with the assigtarf customs counsel, of its custom duties proeeduDuring this review process, the
Company identified a potential exposure relatethéoomission of certain cost elements in the appthvalue of used alternators and starters,
which were remanufactured in Malaysia and retutiodtie United States since June 2002.

The Company provided a prior disclosure letter ddiene 5, 2007 to the customs authorities in dadebtain more time to complete its intel
review process. This prior disclosure letter alsovales the Company the opportunity to self reporst underpayment of customs duties in
years which could reduce financial penalties, if,amposed by the CBP. Based on the review conduzyethe Company, it was determir
that it was probable the CBP would make a claimafiditional duties, fees and interest on the vafuemanufactured units shipped back to
Company from Malaysia. Therefore, an accrual faB$&,000 was recorded as of March 31, 2008, reptiesethe estimated maximum value
of the probable claim.

On February 7, 2008, the Company responded to Bie Wth the results of its internal review for puats shipped back to the Company
during the period from June 5, 2002 to March 310720n connection with this response, the Compaaigt ppproximately $278,000 to the
CBP, which included the payment of duties, fees, iaterest on the value of certain componentswhsie used in the remanufacture of the
products shipped back to the Company. On May 6320@ Company paid an additional $126,000 to tB Covering duties, fees and interest
on the value of certain components that were uséldei remanufacture of the products shipped batkei@ompany during the period from
April 1, 2007 to March 31, 2008. These paymentsiced the accrued liability recorded in connectiatinthe claim.

During the three months ended June 30, 2008, timep@ny received notification from the CBP statingttthe prior disclosure had been
reviewed and determined to be valid, thereforefuniher penalties are likely to be assessed andetliew was closed regarding remanufact
units shipped back to the Company from Malaysia atcrual of $1,307,000 was reversed, reducingaagiods sold for the year ended
March 31, 2009.
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22. Unaudited Quarterly Financial Data

The following table summarizes selected quartergricial data for the fiscal year ended March NP

Net sales
Cost of goods sol

Gross profil

Total operating expens:
Operating income (los:
Interest expens— net
Income tax expense (benel

Net income (loss
Basic net income (loss) per shi
Diluted net income (loss) per sh

The following summarizes selected quarterly finahdata for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008:

Net sales
Cost of goods sol

Gross profi

Total operating expens
Operating incomi

Interest expens— net
Income tax expense (benel

Net income (loss
Basic net income (loss) per shi
Diluted net income (loss) per shi

Quarterly and year-to-date computations of peresharounts are made independently. Therefore, theofyper share amounts for the quarters

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
$32,705,00 $36,437,00 $35,802,00 $29,922,00
21,225,00 24,531,00 25,672,00 23,891,00
11,480,00 11,906,00 10,130,00 6,031,00!
5,676,00! 6,897,001 9,621,00! 6,711,00!

5,804,00! 5,009,00! 509,00( (680,000
818,00( 1,148,001 1,203,001 1,027,001
1,954,00! 1,541,001 (380,00() (526,000
$ 3,032,00! $ 2,320,00! $ (314,000  $(1,181,00
$ 028 $ 0.1¢  $ (009 $ (0.10)
$ 028§ 01¢ $ (0.09 $ (0.10)
First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
$35,441,00 $33,819,00 $28,182,00 $35,895,00
25,241,00 25,574,00 20,694,00 24,608,00
10,200,00 8,245,00! 7,488,00! 11,287,00
5,992,00! 5,797,00! 6,646,00! 6,034,001
4,208,00! 2,448,00! 842,00( 5,253,00!
1,643,001 1,543,001 1,257,001 1,005,001
973,00( 439,00( (232,000 1,516,001
$ 1,592,00! $ 466,00( $ (183,000 $ 2,732,00
$ 01€ $ 0.0/ % (0.02 $ 0.27
$ 0.1 $ 0.0/ % (0.0 % 0.22

may not agree with per share amounts for the yeaws elsewhere in the Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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Schedule 11— Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
Accounts Receivable— Allowance for doubtful accounts

Balance at Charge to Balance at
Years Ended beginning of bad debts Amounts end of
March 31, Description period expense written off period
200¢ Allowance for doubtful accoun $18,00( $225,00( $ — $243,00(
200¢ Allowance for doubtful accoun $18,00( $124,00( $124,00( $ 18,00(
2007 Allowance for doubtful accoun $26,00( $175,00( $183,00( $ 18,00(
Accounts Receivable— Allowance for customerpayment discrepancies
Charge to
Balance at (recovery of) Balance at
Years Ended beginning of bad debts Amounts end of
March 31, Description period expense Processed period
200¢ Allowance for custom-payment discrepancit $ 492,00( $ 915,00( $ 726,00( $681,00(
200¢ Allowance for custom~payment discrepancit $ 823,00( $(294,00() $ 37,00( $492,00(
2007 Allowance for custom-payment discrepancit $1,980,00! $ (71,000 $1,086,00! $823,00(
Inventory — Allowance for excess and obsolete inventory
Provision for
Balance at excess and Balance at
Years Ended beginning of obsolete Amounts end of
March 31, Description period inventory written off period
200¢ Allowance for excess and obsolete invent $2,762,001 $ 36,00( $617,00( $2,181,00!
200¢ Allowance for excess and obsolete invent $2,093,00! $1,017,001 $348,00( $2,762,00!
2007 Allowance for excess and obsolete invent $1,989,00! $ 379,00( $275,00( $2,093,00!



EXHIBIT 10.51

SIXTH AMENDMENT AND WAIVER
TO AMENDED AND RESTATED CREDIT AGREEMENT

THIS SIXTH AMENDMENT AND WAIVER TO AMENDED AND REST ATED CREDIT AGREEMENT (“Sixth Amendment”),
dated as of June 8, 2009, is made and enterettyraod betweeMOTORCAR PARTS OF AMERICA, INC. , a New York corporation
(“Borrower”), andUNION BANK, N.A. , a national banking association formerly knowryagon Bank of California, N.A. (“Bank”).

RECITALS :

A. Borrower and Bank are parties to that certainefded and Restated Credit Agreement dated as ob&rc?24, 2007, as amended by (i) that
certain First Amendment dated as of January 148 20i)) that certain Second Amendment dated as ay W3, 2008, (iii) that certain Third
Amendment dated as of August 19, 2008, (iv) thabae Fourth Amendment dated as of January 30, 20@9(v) that certain Fifth Amendme
dated as of April 6, 2009 (as so amended, the “@&ment”), pursuant to which Bank agreed to makeouarcredit facilities available to
Borrower in the respective amounts provided forahe

B. Pursuant to Section 6.5(a) of the Agreementr®eer agreed, among other things, to achieve, @maolidated basis with its Subsidiaries,
EBITDA of not less than Four Million Five Hundredhdusand Dollars ($4,500,000) for each fiscal quameling after December 31, 2008.
Borrower failed to comply with Section 6.5(a) oétAgreement for the fiscal quarter ended Marchi2BD9, which failure constitutes an Event
of Default under Section 8.1(c) of the Agreement.

C. Pursuant to Section 6.5(b) of the Agreementr@®weer agreed, among other things, to achieve, @maolidated basis with its Subsidiaries,
total EBITDA of not less than Nineteen Million Fittundred Thousand Dollars ($19,500,000) as ofdkeday of each fiscal quarter ending
after December 31, 2008, for the four (4) conseeuiiscal quarters ending on such date. Borrowiggddao comply with Section 6.5(b) of the
Agreement as of the close of the fiscal quarteedridarch 31, 2009, which failure constitutes anriiwd Default under Section 8.1(c) of the
Agreement.

D. Borrower has requested that Bank agree to waévents of Default described in Recitals B arfie€einabove. Bank is willing to so
waive such Events of Default, subject, howevethtterms and conditions of this Sixth Amendment.

E. In addition to the foregoing waivers, Borroweasstrequested that Bank agree to amend the Agreémeattain respects. Bank is willing to
so amend the Agreement, subject, however, to thestand conditions of this Sixth Amendment.

AGREEMENT :
In consideration of the above recitald ahthe mutual covenants and conditions contalrezdin, Borrower and Bank agree as follows:

1. Defined Terms. Initially capitalized terms used herein which act otherwise defined herein shall have the megnassigned thereto in
the Agreement.

2. Waivers.

(a) Subject to the terms and conditions sehfim this Sixth Amendment, Bank hereby waivesHEvents of Default that occurred under
Section 8.1(c) of the Agreement as a result of 8eer’s failure to




comply with Section 6.5(a) and Section 6.5(b) & figreement, all as more specifically describeRégitals B and C hereinabove.

(b) The waivers provided for in subsectiondBdhis Section 2 are limited precisely as writtard shall not be deemed to excuse Borrower’s
further performance of Section 6.5(a) or Sectid{l®.of the Agreement, as amended by this Sixth Adneent, or of any other condition,
covenant or term contained in the Agreement, andeteby this Sixth Amendment, or any other Loanuoent. Any failure or delay on the
part of Bank in the exercise of any right, powepudvilege under the Agreement, as amended by3ixih Amendment, or any other Loan
Document shall not operate as a waiver thereof.

3. Amendments To The Agreement

(a) Section 1 of the Agreement is hereby aredrxy adding new definitions ofReserve” and “ Reserve Amount” thereto in the
appropriate alphabetical order, which shall reafiiinas follows:

“ Reserve’ shall mean a borrowing reserve established imection with the Revolving Credit Commitment, whigbserve shall
remain in effect thereunder if and only if Borrowg@ party to any factoring program or similamagement with a factor reasonably
satisfactory to Bank, pursuant to which the acceueteivable of Borrower owing by its largest actalebtor are being factored by such
factor.”

“ Reserve Amount’ shall mean the amount of the Reserve, which dlebeven Million Five Hundred Thousand Dollars,$$D,000)
from and after the effective date of the Sixth Anment.”

(b) Section 1 of the Agreement is hereby fertimended by adding a new definition @&iXth Amendment” thereto in the appropriate
alphabetical order, which shall read in full asdals:

“ Sixth Amendment’ shall mean that certain Sixth Amendment to thigement, dated as of June 8, 2009, by and betBesawer
and Bank.”

(c) Section 2.1 of the Agreement is herebyraated to read in full as follows:

“2.1 Revolving Credit Commitment. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreet, from the effective date of the Sixth
Amendment to this Agreement to but excluding thedRéng Credit Commitment Termination Date, prouidthat no Event of Default then t
occurred and is continuing, Bank will make one arenrevolving loans (collectively, the ‘Revolvingéns’ and individually, a ‘Revolving
Loan’) to Borrower as Borrower may request fromdito time; provided, however, that (a) the aggregatstanding principal amount of all
such Revolving Loans at any one time shall not eddbe differencef (i) Forty Million Dollars ($40,000,000) leqs) the Reserve Amount
(the ‘Revolving Credit Commitmentgnd (b) the aggregate principal amount of all Reingl Loans made by Bank to Borrower during the t
of this Agreement, the proceeds of which are useBdyrower for the purpose of consummating a Peeaiifcquisition, shall not exceed
Fifteen Million Dollars ($15,000,000). Each RevalgiLoan requested and made hereunder which bearsshat a rate based upon the Base
Interest Rate (as such term is defined in the Ré&wpINote) shall be in a principal amount of nadehan Five Hundred Thousand Dollars
($500,000). Each Revolving Loan requested and rhadeunder which bears interest at a rate basedthpdReference Rate (as such term is
defined in the Revolving Note) shall be in a prpatiamount of not less than One Hundred Thousarld®¢$100,000). Within the limits of
time and amount set forth in this Section 2.1, Bawr may borrow, repay and reborrow Revolving Loamder the Revolving Credit
Commitment. All Revolving Loans shall be requedtefbre the Revolving Credit Commitment Terminatizete, on which date all outstand
principal of and accrued but unpaid interest orRalolving Loans shall be due and payable. Borrsaasligation to repay the outstanding
principal amount of all Revolving Loans, togethéthvaccrued but unpaid interest thereon, shalMigesced by a promissory note issued by
Borrower in favor of Bank (the ‘Revolving Note’) dhe standard form used by Bank to evidence itsneerial loans. Bank shall enter the
amount of each Revolving Loan, and any paymentgdtigin its books and records, and such entrial bk _primafacie evidence of the
principal amount outstanding under the RevolvingdiirCommitment. The




failure of Bank to make any notation in its books aecords shall not discharge Borrower of itsgddiion to repay in full with interest all
amounts borrowed hereunder. The proceeds of thellReg Loans shall be disbursed pursuant to an éwzhtion to Disburse, on Bank’s
standard form therefor, executed and delivered dayd@ver to Bank, and used by Borrower for any ef plurposes set forth in Section 2.3(a)
hereinbelow.”

(d) Section 6.5 of the Agreement is herebyraed to read in full as follows:
“6.5 EBITDA .

(a) Borrower and its Subsidiariealshchieve EBITDA of not less than (i) Two Milliodine Hundred Thousand Dollars ($2,900,000)
for the fiscal quarter ending June 30, 2009 and-6ur Million Dollars ($4,000,000) for each fisaplarter ending thereafter; and

(b) Borrower and its Subsidiariealshchieve total EBITDA of not less than (i) Tweliillion Five Hundred Thousand Dollars
($12,500,000) as of the last day of the fiscal tpragnding June 30, 2009, (ii) Eleven Million Twaihtired Fifty Thousand Dollars
($11,250,000) as of the last day of the fiscal tpragnding September 30, 2009, (iii) Twelve Millibive Hundred Thousand Dollars
($12,500,000) as of the last day of the fiscal trraending December 31, 2009 and (iv) SeventeeloMiDollars ($17,000,000) as of the last
day of each fiscal quarter ending thereafter, chezse for the four (4) consecutive fiscal quarégrding on such date.”

(e) Section 6.7 of the Agreement is hgrinended to read in full as follows:

“6.7 Leverage RatioBorrower and its Subsidiaries shall maintain a lrage Ratio of not greater than (a) 2.25 to 1.00fdke last
day of the fiscal quarter ending June 30, 20092(5) to 1.00 as of the last day of the fiscal tpragnding September 30, 2009 and (c) 2.00 to
1.00 as of the last day of each fiscal quarterrenthereafter.”

4. Effectiveness Of This Sixth AmendmentThis Sixth Amendment shall become effective asefdate hereof when, and only when, Bank
shall have received all of the following, in formcasubstance satisfactory to Bank:

(a) A counterpart of this Sixth Amendmehtly executed by Borrower:

(b) A waiver fee in connection with thaiwers granted by Bank to Borrower pursuant to $tikh Amendment in the sum of Twenty-
Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000), which waiver feallsbe non-refundable;

(c) A legal documentation fee in the spintight Hundred Dollars ($800), which legal docuntaion fee shall be non-refundable; and

(d) Such other documents, instrumentsgoeements as Bank may reasonably deem necessademto effect fully the purposes of this
Sixth Amendment.

5. Ratification .

(a) Except as specifically amended hatsive, the Agreement shall remain in full force affdct and is hereby ratified and confirmed;
and

(b) Upon the effectiveness of this Sigthendment, each reference in the Agreement to Algieement”, “hereunder”, “herein”,
“hereof”, or words of like import referring to thhggreement shall mean and be a reference to theefiggst, as amended by this Sixth
Amendment.




6. Representations and Warranties Borrower represents and warrants as follows:

(a) Each of the representations and wées contained in Section 5 of the Agreementnasraeded hereby, is hereby reaffirmed as of the
date hereof, each as if set forth herein;

(b) The execution, delivery and perforcenf this Sixth Amendment are within Borrowsecorporate powers, have been duly authot
by all necessary corporate action, have receiMateakssary approvals, if any, and do not contraay law or any contractual restriction
binding on Borrower;

(c) This Sixth Amendment is the legaliddand binding obligation of Borrower, enforceabigainst Borrower in accordance with its
terms; and

(d) No event has occurred and is contiguir would result from this Sixth Amendment whadnstitutes an Event of Default under the
Agreement, or would constitute an Event of Default for the requirement that notice be given oretimapse, or both.

7. Governing Law . This Sixth Amendment shall be deemed a contradeuand subject to, and shall be construed fgruathoses and in
accordance with, the laws of the State of Califrni

8. Counterparts . This Sixth Amendment may be executed in two orexamunterparts, each of which shall be deemedigmal and all of
which together shall constitute one and the sameeagent.




WITNESS the due execution hereof as of the date first alaiteen.

“Borrower”
MOTORCAR PARTS OF AMERICA, INC.

By: /s/ Selwyn H. Joff
Selwyn H. Joffe
Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Office

“Bank”
UNION BANK, N.A.

By: /s/ Cary L. Moore

Cary L. Moore
Senior Vice Presidel




List of Subsidiaries
MVR Products Pte. Limited, a company organized uigke laws of Singapore
Unijoh Sdn. Bhd., a company organized under the laf\Malaysia
Motorcar Parts de Mexico, S.A. de C.V., a compamanized under the laws of Mexico

Motorcar Parts of Canada, Inc., a company organireldr the laws of Canada

Exhibit 21.1



Exhibit 23.0

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference irRbgistration Statements (Form S-8 No.’s 333-114383-103313, and 333-144883)
pertaining to the Long Term Incentive Plan, 199c&tOption Plan, and 2004 Non-Employee DirectocktOption Plan, respectively, of
Motorcar Parts of America, Inc. of our reports dalene 10, 2009, with respect to the consolidatexhtial statements and schedule of
Motorcar Parts of America, Inc. and the effectivanef internal control over financial reportingMbtorcar Parts of America, Inc. included in

this Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the year endedrth 31, 2009.
/sl Ernst & Young LLP

Los Angeles, CA
June 10, 2009



Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTIN&GRM

We have issued our report dated June 28, 2007pefareNote 21 as to which the date is October2D®7, with respect to the consolidated
financial statements and schedules (which repgtessed an unqualified opinion and contains anaggbbry paragraph as the Company
changed its method of accounting for stock-basedpemsation as a result of adopting Statement @rigiilal Accounting Standards

, Share Based Paymeneffective April 1, 2006 and an emphasis paragiepthe Company has disclosed a possible underpayrhduties
payable to the U.S. Customs and Border Protecimmfyded in the Annual Report of Motorcar Part\afierica, Inc. and subsidiaries on Form
10-K for the year ended March 31, 2009. We heremsent to the incorporation by reference of sgbriein the Registration Statements of
Motorcar Parts of America, Inc. on Forms S-8 (Nl 333-114169, 333-103313 and File No. 3313883 effective April 2, 2004, February
2003 and July 26, 2007, respectively) and Formsa8elS-1/A (Amendment No. 1) (File No. 333-144887).

/sl GRANT THORNTON LLP

Irvine, California
June 10, 2009



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS
I, Selwyn Joffe, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this report on Form 10-KMuftorcar Parts of America, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report doesantain any untrue statement of a material factnoit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statets) and other financial information includedhistreport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdth@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officérésd | are responsible for establishing and maiimtg disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
() and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and piures, or caused such disclosure controls and guoes to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duritg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over finahogéporting, or caused, such internal control diveamcial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadang the reliability of financial reporting attie preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallymedeaccounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the regissalisclosure controls and procedures and preddntthis report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees) as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change inrgggstrant’s internal control over financial repogt that occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrantourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabmg that has materially affected, or is reasopéikély to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal cohwer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officérénd | have disclosed, based on our most recaei@ion of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmnmittee of registrard’Board of Directors (or persons performing theieaant functions)

a. All significant deficiencies and materiad@knesses in the design or operation of interrarabover financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regidfsaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, thatdtves management or other employees who havendisant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: June 15, 200 /s/ Selwyn Joffe
Selwyn Joffe
Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATIONS
I, David Lee, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this report on Form 10-KMuftorcar Parts of America, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report doesantain any untrue statement of a material factnoit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statets) and other financial information includedhistreport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdth@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officérésd | are responsible for establishing and maiimtg disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
() and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and piures, or caused such disclosure controls and guoes to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duritg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over finahogéporting, or caused, such internal control diveamcial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadang the reliability of financial reporting attie preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallymedeaccounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the regissalisclosure controls and procedures and preddntthis report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and prorces) as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based upon such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change inrgggstrant’s internal control over financial repogt that occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrantourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabmg that has materially affected, or is reasopéikély to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal cohwer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officérénd | have disclosed, based on our most recaei@ion of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmnmittee of registrard’Board of Directors (or persons performing theieaant functions)

a. All significant deficiencies and materiad@knesses in the design or operation of interrarabover financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regidfsaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, thatdtves management or other employees who havendisant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: June 15, 200 /s/ David Lee
David Lee
Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 31.3

CERTIFICATIONS
I, Kevin Daly, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this report on Form 10-KMuftorcar Parts of America, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report doesantain any untrue statement of a material factnoit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, nigtadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statets) and other financial information includedhistreport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdth@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officérésd | are responsible for establishing and maiimtg disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
() and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and piures, or caused such disclosure controls and guoes to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duritg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over finahogéporting, or caused, such internal control diveamcial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadang the reliability of financial reporting attie preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallymedeaccounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the regissalisclosure controls and procedures and preddntthis report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and prorces) as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based upon such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change inrgggstrant’s internal control over financial repogt that occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrantourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabmg that has materially affected, or is reasopéikély to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal cohwer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officérénd | have disclosed, based on our most recaei@ion of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmnmittee of registrard’Board of Directors (or persons performing theieaant functions)

a. All significant deficiencies and materiad@knesses in the design or operation of interrarabover financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regidfsaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, thatdtves management or other employees who havendisant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: June 15, 200 /s/ Kevin Daly
Kevin Daly
Chief Accounting Officer




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATE OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, CHIEF FINAN CIAL OFFICER AND CHIEF
ACCOUNTING OFFICER PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Motardarts of America, Inc. (the “Company”) on For@iK for the year ended March 31, 2009
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commiseiothe date hereof (the “Annual Report”), |, Setwloffe, Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section01 2% adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sasiiaxiey Act of 2002, to my knowledg
that:

1. The Annual Report fully complies with trequirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SéiesrExchange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Annual Befairly presents, in all material respects, fihancial condition and results of operations of
the Company.

/s/ Selwyn Joffe
Selwyn Joffe

Chief Executive Officer
June 15, 200¢

In connection with the Annual Report of Motard®arts of America, Inc. (the “Company”) on ForiK for the year ended March 31, 2009
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commiseiothe date hereof (the “Annual Report”), |, Dhlzee, Chief Financial Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section01 25 adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sasiiaxiey Act of 2002, to my knowledg
that:

1. The Annual Report fully complies with theguirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SéiesrExchange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Annual Befiairly presents, in all material respects, fihancial condition and results of operations of
the Company.

/s/ David Lee

David Lee

Chief Financial Officer
June 15, 200¢

In connection with the Annual Report of Motard®arts of America, Inc. (the “Company”) on ForiK for the year ended March 31, 2009
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiothe date hereof (the “Annual Report”), I, Kealy, Chief Accounting Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section01 2% adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sasiiaxiey Act of 2002, to my knowledg
that:

1. The Annual Report fully complies with theguirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SéiesrExchange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Annual Befiairly presents, in all material respects, fihancial condition and results of operations of
the Company.

/s/ Kevin Daly

Kevin Daly

Chief Accounting Office
June 15, 200¢

The foregoing certifications are being furmidho the Securities and Exchange Commission a®ptire accompanying report on Form 10-
K. A signed original of each of these statementsheen provided to Motorcar Parts of America, &mad will be retained by Motorcar Parts of
America, Inc. and furnished to the Securities ardiange Commission or its staff upon request.



